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The Members of Jana Capital Limited,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 10"™ Annuai Report on the business and the state of affairs of the
Company together with the audiied financial statements of the Company forthe financizl year ended March

31, 2025,

1. Financial Highlights based on the Standalone and Consolidated financials of the Company:

{Rs. in thousands)

exceptional items

Particulars Standalone

Year ended 31.03.2025 Year ended 31.03.2024
Interest Income Nil 11,352.00
Gsin  from  purchase of Nit 08,98,214.75
securities
Total Revenue  from | Nil 99,08,566.75
Operations
Other nags ™1 - . T
Total Income 6,271.52 99,09, 717.68
Total Expenditure 86,45,025.34 2,04,80,638.66
Profit/{Loss) before {85,38,753.82) {1,05,70,921.29)

' Exceptional ltems

2,26,26,366.10

N#

Profit/(Loss) after exceptional

1,39,87,612.27

{1,05,70,921.29)

items
Tax expenses Nit Nit
Profit/(Loss) for the year 1,39,87,612.27 (1,05,70,821.28)

Surplus/{deficit} carried to the
Balance Sheet

1,39,87,612.27

(1,05,70.921.29)

M.Particu!ars Conso!id_gted
Year ended 31.03.2625 | Year ended 31.03.2024

Interest Income Nil ! 11,352.00
Gain from purchase of securities Nil 93,98,214.75
Totat Revenue from Operations Nl 98,09,566.75
Other Income 8,564.65 645.07
Tota! Income 8,564 65 £9,10,211.82
Total Expenditure 86,19,239.14 1,25,99,665.93
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items (86,10,674 .49) {26,89,454.12)
Exceptional ltems 2,26,26,366.10 Nif
Share of Associales 1,71,098.06 25,06,276.87
Proﬁﬂ(Loss)forihe year B oy e (1,8317724) R

2. State of Company affairs:

The Company is a Core Investment Company (CIC) and Holding Company of Jana Holdings Limited
(JHL), its wholly swned subsidiary. The Company does not have any other operations except holding

the Investments in JHL. The Company is a registered with the RBl as NBFC-CIC-N-51.



Dividend:
During the year under review, the Company has not proposed any dividend as the Camnpany has
sufferad losses.

Amount proposed to be carried 10 reserves:
No athount was carried o reserves during the year under review in view of losses as stated above.

Share Capital:
The Autharised share capital of the Company as on 31%' March 2025 was Rs. 3,00,00,000/- {(Rupees
three crores) divided into 30,060,000 {thirty lakhs) Equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each.

The lssued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company as on 31 March 2025 Rs.
2,70,41,810 (Rupees two crores seventy iakhs forty-one thousand eight hundred and ten} comprising
27,04,181 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each,

During the year under review, there was ne change in the Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up
capital of the Company.

Registered Office of the Company:

During the year, the Company shified its registered office from 20 Floor, No. 80, 5th Cross, 4th Main,
Maruthi Extension, Bangalore - 560021 to #19/4, Sair Bagh” Building, 4% Floor, Cunningham Road,
Vasanth Nagar, Bengaluru, Kamataka- 560052 and further to 3¢ Floor, Si Krishna Towers, Sy.
No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur, Tamil Nady 635169 with the consent of the Regional
Director, South-East Region, Hyderabad.

During the year, the Company designated #19/4, Sair Bagh” Building, 4% Fleor, Cumingham Road,
Vasanth Nagar, Dr. Ambedkar Veedhi Bengaluru, Karrataka- 560001 as its Corporate Office,

During the year, the Company has changed the piace of keeping and maintaining books of accounts
and other documents of the Company to #19/4, Sair Bagh” 3uilding, 4% Floor, Cunningham Road,
Vasanth Nagar, Dr. Ambedkar Veedhi Bengaluru, Karnataka- 560001, the Corporate Office of the
Company.

RBI Compliance:

The Company continues to comply with the RB! reguiations as applicable to it. The Company being a
CIC has not accepted any deposits from the public dunng the year under review and shali not accept
any deposits from the public without ebtaining prior approval of the RBL.

Further, the Company being an NBFC, disclosure requirements under Chapter V of the Act read with
Rule 8(5)(v} and 8(5)(v)) of the Companies {Accounts) Ruies, 2014 are not applicable to the Company,

The Company has also complied with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act™), the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and other applicable rules/regulations/guidelines, issued from time to
time as applicable.

Debentures:
During the year under review, the Company issued following Debentures:



Sr. No.| Series No. of Face Value Amount Allotment date |
Debentures {in Rs.) {in Rs.)
1. £t 8,500 1,00,000 65,00,00,000 2510312025
; 2. E2 5,147 1,00,000 51,47,00,000 28/03/20258

9. Change in Directors & Key Managerial Personnel:
The composition ofthe Board is in compliant with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
(“Act”) and the rules framed thereunder, guideline(s) issued by the Reserve Bank of India, SEBI (Listing
and Obtigations Disclosure Requirements} Regulation, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations™) and other

applicable

laws,

During the period under review Mr. Nirav Vinod Mehta resigned from the Board as a Nominee Director
with effect from January 9, 2025, on account of pre-cccupation.

During the year, the changes in the Key Managerial Personnels of the Company is as stated below:

Sr. Name of the KMP Designation Nature of Change Effective Date
No. _
1 [ Ms. Vidya Sridharan Company Secretary | Resignation Closing of business
and Compliance hours of July 29,
Officer 2024
2. | Me. S. Gopalkrishnan | Chief Financial | Resignation July 4, 2024
Officer
3. | Ms. Krishi Jaln Company Secretary | Re-designation August 1, 2024
and Compliance
Officer
4, | Mr, Srinivas N R Chief Financial | Appointment July 4, 2024
Officer
5. | Ms. Leela KS Chief Compliance | Appointment October 16, 2024
Officer

10. Policy on Appointment of Directors and Senior Management FPersonnei:
In terms of Section 178 of the Act read with rules framed thereunder and the RB! Master Directions,
the Board has adopted, ‘Policy on Fit & Proper Criteria for appointment of Directors. The said policy
has been updated on the website (https://www janacagital.co.in) of the Company.

11. Board of Directors:
The constitution of the Board of Directors of the Company as on 315 March 2025 was as fallows:

Sr. No. Name of the Director Designation
1. Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan Chairman and Non-Execuiive Director
2. Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy MD and CEQ
3. Mr. Sakalespur Visweswaraiya | Independent Director
Ranganath
4. Mr. Abraham Chacko independent Director
5. Mrs. Rajatakshmi Ambady Independent Director
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14,

15

b

; Sr. No. Name of the Director Designation

Ltd

{ o. Mr. Puneet Bhatia Director nominated by TPG Asia V! SF Pte

The composition of the Board is in accerdance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act and
Regulation 82D of the Securities and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations”), with an oppropriate combination of Executive
Diractors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

As on the date of this report, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises € directors comprising
of 3 Independent Directors {including 1 woman director), 2 Noa-executive Non-Independent Directors
and 1 Executive Director,

Declarations from the Directors:

Based on the declarations and confimations received In terms of the applicabie provisions of the Act,
circulars, nofifications and directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the Companies Act,
2013, none of the Directars of the Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors of the
Company. The Company has received necessary declarations from the Independent Directors,
affimning compliance with the critena of independence stiputated under Section 149(6) of the Act and
SEB Listing Regulations,

A statement regarding Independent Directors:

All Independent Directors have submitted the declaration of independénce, pursuant to the provisions
of Section 149(7} of the Act and Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations, stating that they meet the
criteria of independence as provided in Section 14%{8) of the Act and Regulations 18(1Xb) and
Regulation 620 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and they are not aware of any circumstance or situation,
which exist or may be reasonably anficipated, that could impair or impact his/her abifity to discharge
his/ her duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external influence.

Further the terms and conditions of appoiniment of Independent Directors are available on the website
of the Company viz. (hitps/Aww.janacapitai.co.in}. The Board is of the opinion that the Independent
{irectors of the Company possess requisite qualifications, experience and expertise and hold highest
standards of integrity.

Declaration of compliance with the Code of Conduct for the Directors and Members of Senior
Management Personnel;

Each of the Directors of the Company have confirmed that they satisfy the “fit and proper” criteria as
prescribed under Chapter XXl of RBI Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India {Non-Banking
Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 {as amended from time to time) and
that they are not disqualified from being appointed/ continuing as Directors in terms of section 164(2)
of the Act. Further, all the Directors and Senior Management of the Company have affirmed compliance
with the Code of Conduct of the Company.

Director(s) retiring by rotation:

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy
retires by rotation and being eligible, offered himself for re-appointment.

16. Key Managerial Personnel:
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18.

19.

20,

During the year under review, following were the changes in the Key Meanageria Personnels of the
Company as per Section 203 of the Act:

Ms Vidya Sridharan resigned as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company
w.e.f. dosure of business hours of July 28, 2024, due to career growth and advancement.

Mr. S. Gopalkrishnan resigned as the Chief Financlal Officer of the Company w.ef. July 4, 2024, due
to personal commitments and age factor,

Ms, Kiishi Jain who was the Chief Compliance Officer of the Company was re-designated as the
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. August 1, 2024.

Mr. Srinivas N R was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.ef. July 4, 2024,
Ms. Leela KS was appointed as the Chief Compliance Officer of the Company w.e f. October 16, 2024

Board Diversity:,

The Company recognizes and embraces the impottance of a diverse Board. The Company believes
that a truly diverse Board will leverage differences in thought, perspeclive, knowledge, skills, regional
and industry experience, cuttural and geographical backgrounds, age, ethnicity, race, gender that will
help us retain our competitive advantage.

The policy regarding diversity of the Board forms part of Policy on appointment of Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel, Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Employses,
approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee and Board of Directors is displayed on the
website of the Company at {hitps:/www janacapital.co.n).

Subsidiaries / Joint Venture / Associate Companies:

Jana Heldings Limited coniinues to be the Wholly owned subsidiary Company in accordance with the
provisions. of the Act. Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiary
Company In form AQC-1 iz attached as Annexure-1.

Brief contribution and performance of Jana Holdings Limited ("JHL"} is as follows:

The total expendifure was Rs, 18,624.27 lakhs (FY 2024-25} as against Rs. 1,58,371.79 lakhs (FY
2023-24). The finance cost of JHL decreased fo Rs. 17,942 .50 lakhs {FY 2024-25) as against Rs.
30,903.31 lakhs {FY 2023-24) mainly due to redemption of non-convertible debentures during FY2023-
24.

JHL has further invested in the shares of Jana Small Finance Bank, Associate Company.

Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF):
Since there was no amount lying with respedt to the unpaidiunciaimed Dividend, the provisions of
Section 125 of the Act, do not apply.

Compliance Monitoring System:
In terms of provisions of Section 134{5)(f) of the Act, the Company has right resources for effectively
menitoring to ensure compliance with the provisions of ail applicable laws and that such systems are
adequate and operating sffectively.
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During the year under reviaw, the Company adopled a2 Compiiance Management System named as
Lawrbit — Global Compliance Network for ensuring effective monitoring and repoiting of various
compliances applicable to the Company.

Amalgamation:

The Board at its meeting held on October 21, 2019, and December 09, 2018, approved fast-track
method for merging Jana Holdings Limited {JHL), being the wholly cwned Non-Operative Financial
Holding Company {(NOFHC), with its Holding as weli as Core Investment Company, Jana Capital
Limited after receiving the In-principle approval from the RB! on 10th August 2020. As per the axisting
guidelines, the requirement of having @ NOFHC has been dispensed with by the RBI for setting up
small finance Banks and Universal Banks. Further, such a merger of the whiclly owned subsidiary with
the Holding Compahy will simplify the compliances to he reporied to varisus Regulatory Authorities,
besides resulting in lower operating costs. Subsequent to the receipt of the in-principle approval from
the RBI, the Board of Directors of the fransferor and the Transferee Companies met on 24th August
2020, approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of Jana Hoidings Limited (Wholly Owned substdlary)
with Jana capital Limited (Holding Company),

Jana Capital limited, transferee Company submitted necessary application to the Regional Director,
South-East Region, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Hyderabad, on 6th November 2020 for obtaining
approval of Amalgamation under Section 233 of the Companies Act, 2013. Regional Director, Ministry
of Company Affairs, Hyderabad vide leter dated 26th March 2021 rejected the application filed on 6th
November 2020 for the merger of JHL with JCL, since JHL had obtained consent from the creditors to
the extent of 82.78% in vajue as against the minimum threshold of consent from 0% of the creditors
in value as required under Section 233 of the Companies Act, 2013 and, as such, the provisions of
Section 233{1){d) could not be fully complied with. The Board of Directors considered the afaresaid
rejection order and resolved to file the fresh merger application subject to the approvat of the Scheme
by the Board of Directors, Shareholders, Creditors, and such other authorities as may be required. In
the meanwhile, the Board of directors of both Jana Holdings Limited and Jana Capital Limited on
November 14, 2022, have once again approved the scheme of amalgaration and resclued to apply
afresh for the merger of the company with Jana Capital Limited, the Holding Company. In line with the
decision of the Board of Directors, the company has taken steps to obtain affidavit in the prescribed
Formats from the creditors and sharehelders for the merger.

However. the Company, in the meanwhile, received a request from Jana Sma!l Finance Bank Limited
(JSFBJ regarding the merger and, due to certain commercial considerations, the Com pany has decided
to put the merger on hold till the listng process of the Jana Small Finance Bank s completed. Now that
JSFB shares are already listed with effect from 14" February 2024.

The Company received the In-principte approval afresh from RBI on July 29, 2024,

Further, in order to mitigate the stamp duly implications associated with the approval of the merger
scheme by the NCLT, the Company shified its registered office from the State of Karnataka to the Siate
of Tamil Nadu w.e.f. January 24, 2025, basis the approval of the Regiona! Director South East Region,
Hyderabad, Ministry of Corporate Affair and other regulatory approvals and consequently the Clause |
of the Memorandum of Association of the Company was aitered o that extent.

The Board re-approved the draft scheme of amalgamation on February 3, 2025, as the previous
approval was dated.
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The Company has obtained the consent from all the shareholders and debenture holders in the
prescribed format.

The Company has applied to the BSE for its in-principle approval and the same has been further
commended to SEBI for its approval. The Company has responded to the queries raised by SEBI and

the in-principle approval is awaited.

Credit Rating:
The following ratings were given by India Ratings and Research Pvt Ltd during the year under review:
Sr, No. Rating date Rating Agency Rating
1. January 31, 2025 india Ratings and Research IND BB/Stable
Pviitd

Particulars of Deposits:

The Company has been granted Certificate of Registration by the RB] to carry on the business of non-
banking financial Institution without acceptng public deposits. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 73
and Secfion 74 of the Act read with Rule 8(5)(v) & {vi) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are
not applicable to the Company.

During the year under review, the Company had neither accepted nor held any deposits from the public
and shall not accept any deposits from the public without obtaining prior approval from the Reserve

Bank of India.

Extracts of the Annual Return:

In accordance with the notification by MCA dated 28" August 2020, the Company is not reguired to
attach the extract of the Annual retuim with the Beard's report in form MGT-8, if the web link of such
annual return has been disclosed in the Board's report in accordance with sub-section (3j of Section
82 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the Company having the website has uploaded its Annual
Return and the same can be accessed from the website {hitps:/www janacapital.co.in) of the

Company.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties;

During the period under review, there was no new contract entered with the related party. Details of
contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred fo in sub-section (1)
of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in Form AOC-2 forming part of Annexure-2 of

this Report.

Refated Party Transaction Policy is placed on the website of the Company and the same can be
accessed from the website (www janacapital.co.in} of the Company.

Particulars of Loans, Guaranfees and Investments:

buring the vear under review, the following investments were made:

isr. Name of Company Amount Date of Investment ; Particulars
! No. invested (Rs. in

z thousands) 1

{ Nil
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The provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to granting of loans to any persons
or body corporate and giving of guarantees or providing security in connection with the loan o any
other bady comporate or persons are not applicable to tha Company, since the Company is a Non-
Banking Financial Company, registered with Reserve Bank of India.

{nternal Financial Control Systems:

Pursuant to Section 134{5){e) your Company has a proper and an adequate system of Internal Financial
Control. commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. To maintain its objectivity
and independence, the Company has appointed Ramesh Ashwin & Karanth, Charteraed Accountants
as Internal Auditor who conducted the Internal Audit of the Company for the Finandial Year 2024-25 on
a voluntary basis as the said provision is not applicable to the Company as per rule 2A of Companies
(Specification of definiions details) Rules, 2014 with offect from 1% April 2021, The Internal Auditor
monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal financial control system in the Company,
its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies of the Company, Based on
the interna! audit report, process owners undertake corrective aclion in their respective areas and
thereby sirengthen the conirols. Significant audit observaiions and corrective actions, if any, are
presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. During the year under review, such controfs were tested
by the internal Auditors of the Company and no material weaknesses in the design or operations were
observed.

Conservation of energy. technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

A. Conservation of Energy:

Your Company, with a view to conserving energy wherever possible and practicable, has implemented
suitable devices. As far as possible, natural light is used during the daytime. CFL/ LED lamps/ monitors
are used to save power consumption. Further, awareness is also created among the employees on the
need to canserve the energy in their workplace. There was no capital investment in this regard.

B. Technology Absorption:

Your Company being Core Invesiment Company does not have any operation except for holding
investment in Janza Heldings Limited (JEL). As such the Company has updated technology to work
effectively as far as the extent and scope for which the Company is concerned,

C. Research & Development Activities (R & D)
Since the Company does not have operations on its own no research and development activities are
carried out.

D. Foreign exchange earnings and Qutgo:
There were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review.

Risk Management:

The Company has constituted a Risk Management Commiltee {"RMC" in terms of the requirements of
Regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations and RBI. The details of the same are disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report.

The Company has a risk management framework and Board mermbers are informed about risk
assessment and minimisation procedures and periodical review to ensure management controis risk
by means of a properly designed framework.
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The Company's principal financial liabiliies comprise debt securities and sundry payables. The
Company'sfinanciat liabilifies arise mainly due 1o the borrowings for the purpose of making investments
in its operating entity. The Company's principal financial assets include investments in associate
company, cash and cash equivalents, balances in banks other than cash and cash equivalents.

The Company, as it advances towards its business objectives and goals, is often subjected to various
risks. Credit risk, market risk, liguidity risk and operational risk are some of the risks that the Company
is exposed to and details of the same are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report
as appended io the Direclors’ Repori.

Nomination and Remuneration policy:

Disciosure of remurieration & particulars of employees:

in terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Beard has adopled a ‘Nominaton and
Remunerafion Policy’ setting out the criteria for deciding remuneration of Execulve Directors, Non-
Executive Directors, Key Management Personnel, Senior Management and QOther employees. The said
Policy is available on the website (https://www janacapital.co.in/) of the Company.

In terms of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies {Appoiniment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, the disclosures with respect o the
remuneration of Directors, Key Mapageriai Personnet and Employees of the Company are not
applicable to the Company w.e.f. 15t April 2021 pursuant to rule 2A of Companies (Specification of
definitions details) Rules, 2014 as the Company is hot covered under the deﬁ_rﬁti_on of listed Company.

The Board hereby confirms that the remuneration paid to the Directors is as per the Remuneration
Pdlicy of the Company.

Corporate Soclal Responsibility (CSR):

The CSR commiftes was formed as per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Section 135(9) of the Companies Amendment Act, 2020 notitied on 28th September 2020 effective
from 22nd January 2021 provides that, if the amount to be spent by a company under Sectior 135(5}
for CSR aclivity, does not exceed fitty lakh rupees, then the Company is not required fo constitute the
Carporate Social Responsibility Committee and the functions of such Commitiee provided under this
section shall be discharged by the Board.-Accordingly, the CSR committee was dissolved by the Board
on March 4" 2021. The CSR policy formulated by the Company pursuant to Seclion 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been placed on the website (hitps://www janacapital.co.in} of the Company.

The CSR policy formutated by the Company pursuant io Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been placed on the website (https:#/www.janacapital.co.injof the Company. The guiding principles of
this policy are io reach out to underprivileged and underserved communities to address fundamental
challenges in our society, thereby generating opportunities of better livelihood and building a more
inclusive society. We shall mainly focus on the following areas which are aligned to Schedule Vil to the
Companies Acdt, 2013:

+ FEducation and skilt development

+ Environmental sustainability including water and sanitation, green energy, afforestation
+ Livelihood

+ Health & Nutriton
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During the year under review, the Company was not required to spend any amount towards CSR
expenditure.

Whistle Blower / Vigil Mechanism:

Pursuant fo the provisions of section 177(9) & (10} of the Act, the Company has established a vigil
mechanism for directors, employees, and other external stakeholders to report genuine concems. The
vigl mechanism forms a part of the Whistleblower Policy, which has been approved by the Board of
Directors and is displayed on the website of the Company at (hitp:/ianacanital co.in).

The Vigil Mechanism Framework empowers all levels of employees including top management to raise
voice against actual/ suspected viclations. The framework ensures protection to the whistieblower to
avoid any sort of unfair or prejudicial efmployment practices. The Chairpersen of the Audit Commitee
has direct access to all complaints raised through the framewark. Atthe Audit Commiites. a brief update
is presented to the Members for their review. The Commitiee takes necessary actions to maintain
confidentiality within the organisation on matters brought to its attention.

The mechanism framed by the Company is in compliance with the requirements of the Act and Listing
Regulations.

During FY 2024-25, no case was reported under this mechanism,

Management Discussions and Analysis:
The Management Discussion and Analysis is annexed herewith as Annexure 3 to this Report.

Maintenance of cost records:

The Company Is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of secton 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, such accounts and records
are not made and maintained.

Compliance with Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace {Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013:

The Board of Direciors have adopted POSH policy. The Company is not required to constitute Internat
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Warkplace {Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal} Act, 2013 since the number of employees are less than 10.

During the year under reporting, the Company has net received any complaint of Sexual harassment
and no complaints recelved /disposed of during the period under review.

Secretarial Standards:

In terms of provisions of Section 118 of the Act, the Company is in compliance with Secretarial
Standards on meetings of the Board of Directors and Secretarial Standards on Beneral Meeting issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees:

The Board is required to meet at perlodical intervals and the gap between two Board meetings does
not exceed 120 days as required under the Companies Act, 2013, During the financial year 2024-25,
the Company held the following meetings of the Board of Directars as per Section 173 of Companies
Act, 2013 as menticned below:



May 17, 2024
June 18, 2024
July 26, 2024
Qctober 11, 2024
October 24, 2024
February 3, 2025
February 26, 2025
March 18, 2025
March 25, 2025
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The Company has constituted mandatory commitiees as required under the Companies Act, 2013,
RBI regulations and SEBI Listing Regulations such as Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Commitiee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Risk Management Committee, Asset and Liakility
Management Commitiee, IT strategy committee, Group Risk Management Commitiee, Committee for
follow up and monitoring of frauds and Outsourcing Committee. The details of said committees are
provided below:

Audit Commitiee:

Sr. No. | Date of Audit committee Meeting | No. of Members | No. of Members .

eligible to attend the | attended the |
meeting | meeting !
1. May 17, 2024 4
2. June 18, 2024 s 5
3. July 26, 2024 5 5
4. October 24, 2024 5 5
S. February 3, 2025 5 5

Risk Management Committee
Sr.No. | Date of Risk management  No. of Members | No, of Members

Commitiee Meeting eligible to attend the | attended the .

meeting meeting :
1. May 17, 2024 5 4
2. July 26, 2024 5 4
2 October 24, 2024 5 4
4. February 3, 2025 4 4

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Sr. No. Date of Nomination and| No. of Members |No. of Members
Remuneration Committee | eligible to aftend the | attended the meeting
Meeting meeting
1. May 17, 2024 3 3
2. June 19, 2024 3 3
3. Juiy 26, 2024 3 3
4. QOctober 24, 2024 3 3

Asset and Liability Management Committee Meeting



$r. No. Date of Asset and Liability | No. of Members | No. of Members
Management Committee | eligible to attend the | attended the
Meeting meeting meeting
1. May 17, 2024 h 4 4
2. July 26, 2024 4 4 o
3. Cclober 24, 2024 4 4
4, February 3, 2025 4 4
iT Strategy committee Meeting
Sr.No Date of T strategy committee | No. of Members | No. of Members
Meeting eligible to attend the | attended the meeting
meeting ‘
1. June 19, 2024 4 4
2, September 24, 2024 4 B 4 )
3. February 3, 2025 4 4

Group Risk Management Committee Meeting

Sr. No. | Date of Group Risk No. of Members No. of Members
Management Committee eligible to attend the . attended the
Meeting meeting meeting
1. June 5, 2024 5 s
2. Septemnber 24, 2023 5 3
3 December 17, 2024 5 g
4 March 20, 2025 5 5

Committee for Foliow up and Monitoring of Frauds

[ 'sr. No. | Date of Group Risk No. of Members No. of Members R
Management Conunittee efigible to attend the | attended the
Meeting meeting meeting ’
U Niarh 363655 3 . | 3 L !
Outsourcing Committee Mesting
‘Sl.No. Date of Outsourcing No. of Members | No. of Members
i Committee Meeting . eligible to attend the | attended the meeting
. meeting k
i “March 21, 2095 3 3 |
Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meeting
Sl. No. | Date of Stakeholders | No. of Members | No. of Members .
Relationship Committee Meeting | eligible to attend the | attended the meeting
meeting :
1 October 24, 2024 4 4 i

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of all the aforementioned Commiliees. The Board of
Directors and the Committees also take decisions by eireular resolutions, which are noted by the Board
/ respective Committees of the Board at their next meetings.



38.

39.

The Board noies the minutes of meetings of all Commitiees at regular intervals. The details of formation,
constitution, terms of reference, meetings held, and alfendance of the Members are disclosed in the

Corporate Governance Report appended to this report.

Meeting of independent Directors:
The Company held meeting of the Independent Direcfors on February 3, 2025.

Performance Evaluation:

The Board acknowledges its intention 1o establish and follow "best practices” in Board governance to
fulfil its fiduciary obligation to the Company. The Board is committed to assessing its own perfarmance
as a Board {o identify its strengths and areas in which it may improve Hs functioning. The Company has
laid down an Evaluation Policy for Board Evaluation setting the criteria based on which the Board has
camied out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the individual directors as well
as the evaluation of its various Committees.

The evaluation was conducted based on a structured questionnaire which comprises performance
criteria such as performance of duties and obligations, indepenridence of judgement, level of
engagement and participation, their confribution in enhancing the Board's overall effectiveness, etc.
The Board has expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

40. Statutory Auditors:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 138, 142 of the Compantes Act, 2013 and the Rules framed
thereunder and Reserve Bank of India (RBIYs Guidelines issued vide ifs circular No
DoS.COARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021- 22 dated April 27, 2021 for appointment of Statutory Auditors
{SAs) of Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) {("RBI Guidelines”), Rao & Emmar, Chartered
Accountants, Bangalore (Firm Registrafion number 003084S) are the statutory auditors of the
Compeny. They, have given their consent and confirmed their eligibility to act as the statutory auditors
of the Company.

During the year under review, the statutory auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Audit
Committee/Board of Directors.

The Company has received a letter from Rao & Emmar, Chardered Accountanis, Bangalore (Firm
Registration number 0030843), that they are not disqualified from appointing as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company.

41. Qualification made by the Statutory Auditor's Repaort in the standalpne financial statement:
Following sre the gualifications/observations made by the statutory Auditors in the Statutory Audit
report on Standalcne financial statements for the Financial Year 2024-25;

Auditor's Observation Management's Response

The Adjusted Net Worth of the Company is The Company's Adjusted Net Worth (ANW) of
1.21% of its aggregate risk weighted assets 121% falls significantly short of the regulatory
which is less than the imit of minimum 30% requirement, indicaling inadequate capital to
specified as per Section |l of Master Direction absoth potential losses and maintain financial
DoR (NBFC).PD.003/03.10.119/2016-17 ("The stability as mandaled by the RBl Despite
Directions”) dated August 25, 2016 and maintaining an equity capital ¢f Rs. 2.70 crores,
subsequently updated as at August 28, 2023; the company's Reserves & Surpius {s burdened

with accumulated losses of Rs.1,226.05 crores




as of March 31, 2025 which continues to
escalate annually due to the absence of revenue
sireams as the Company adheres to  the
licensing conditions stipulated by the RBI for
the Core Investment Cempanies.

In this context, the key to improving the
company's financial healih lies in the investment
held by its subsidiary company. As the sole
asset, the equity shares in the operating entity
hold significant potential for value appreciation.
Any increase in the markat value of these shares
would directly enhance the subsidiary's financial
position, which in turn would positvely impact

the holding company's financials. Effective risk !

management and prudent consideration of
market factors wil be crucial in navigating
through this scenario and potentially leading to
improved reserves and financial stability.

The outside labilities of the Company as at
March 31, 2025, are 85.22 (the debt equity ratio
being 82.82) times its adjusted net worth, against
the limit of 2.5 times specified in the Directions

The company's ocutside liabilities stand at 8522
times, with debt equity at 82 .82 times, indicating
that the majority of liabilittes are debtrelated,
while other obligations are relatively minimal,
posing negligible risk. The primary risk fies in
the debt borrowed, which is reflected in the
debt-equity ratio. However, we have proactively
engaged with debt borrowers and investors,
providing comprehensive explanations of the
seenario  and obtaining their consent for
derecognition of the debt from face valus to fair
value. This approach aligns with the investment
strategy, wherein the subsidiary company, JHL,
has invested in equity shares of the operating
enfity, JSFB, in accordance with the DTD
ciause 9(1)a).

Note 9 observation made on the settlernent terms
of the Non-Convertible Debentures issued by
Jana Capital Limited.

The management agrees with the audit
observation regarding the derecognition of
Non-Convertible Debentures (NGCDs) resulting
in notional gain, acknowledgement of the
qualification in the audit opinion due to the
uncerainty surcunding the  accounting
treatment's impact on the company's financial
position.

The Comgany has not assessed the impact of
deferred tax

The company acknowledges the comment
regarding deferred tax impact. However, given
the substantial accumulated losses carried
forward from previous years, the management
believes that assessing deferred tax impact
may not be necessary at this stage.

42 Qualification made by the Statutory Auditor's Report in the Consoclidated financiat statement:

The qualification made by the Statutory Auditor in the Consolidated financial Statement and the reply

is mentioned below:



Auditor's Observation

Management's Response

The Adjusted Net Worth on a standalone basis of
the Holding Company is 1.21% of ifs aggregate
risk weighted assets which is less than the limit
of minimum 30% specified as per Secton l of
Master Direction DoR (NBFC).
PD.003/03.10.119/2016-17 {“The Directions”)
dated August 25, 2016 and subsequently
updated as at August 28, 2023

The company's Adjusted Net Worth (ANW) of
1.21% falls substantially below the regulatory
requirement, indicaling inadequate capital
buffers to absorb potental losses and maintain
financial stability as mandated by the RBIL
Despite an equity capital of Rs.2.70 crores, the
company's Reserves & Suplus is significantly
impacted by accumulated losses of Rs.1226.05
crores as of March 31, 2025, These losses are
expected to persist annually due {o restricted
revenue sfreams as the Company adheres to the
licensing condifions stipulated by the RBI for the
Core 'Investment Companies. The company's
financial -health is therefore closely tied fo the
performance of its investment in the subsidiary,
which holds equity shares in the operating entity.
The value appreciation potential of these shares
is crifical, as any increase in market value would
enhance the subsidiary's financial position and,
in tum, positively impact the holding company's
financials, Effective risk management and
prudent market consideration will be essential in
navigating this scenario, with the potential to
improve reserves and restore financial stability.

he oulside liabilities of the Holding Company on &
standalone basis as at March 31, 2025, stood at
85.22 times its adjusted net worth, (resulting in a
debt-equity ratio of 82.82), against the limit of 2.5
times prescribed in the applicable Directicns

The company's outside liabifities stand at 85.22
times, with debt equating fo 82.82 times,
indicating a predominance of debt-related
liabifilies. Other obligations are relatively
minimal, posing negligible risk. The primary risk
exposure lies in the debt borrowed, as refiected

in the debtequity ratio. However, we have
proactively engaged with lenders and
stakeholders, providing comprehensive

explanations of the scenaric and securing ther
consent for derecognition of debt from face value
to fair value. This strategic approach aligns with
our investment structure, wherein our subsidiary,
JHL, has invesied in equity shares of JSFB, the
operating entity, in accordance with the D7D
clause 9(1}a).

RB{ provision mandates that the NOFHC
maintain the prescribed regulatory leverage ratio
1.25 imes. Reported LR at 2.82 times and
consequential impact of such non-compliances
on the Consolidated financial resuits is presently
unascertainable

The company acknowledges the RBl's
regulatory requirement for maintaining =
leverage ratio of 1.25 fimes. Although the
reporied leverage ratio stands at 82.82 times,
the management will closely monitor the debt
fiability and consider refinancing options, if
requiired, to align the carmrying value (face value
to fair value) as per regulatory noms.

The Company has not assessed the impact of
deferred fax

The company acknowledges the comment
regarding deferred tax impact. However, in light
of substantial accumulated losses carried
forward from previcus years, the management
considers assessing deferred tax impact as nof
necessary at this junsiure.




The Holding Company has inifially recognized The Holding Company had initially recognized
goodwilt goodwilt tn  accordance with  applicable

accounting standards. Given the ongoing
merging activity of the subsidiary, the
management intends to closely montor the
goodwill scenario and will continue to carry i at
its current value until the merger process is
completed, at which point a further assessment
will be made in accordance with relevant |
accounting standards.

"NOF below the regulatory minimum of Rs. 200 The entity had an initiai securities premium of
Lakhs Rs.1,22547 on oquity shares, but substantial ¢

accumulated losses have eroded Reserves,
leading to a deficit balance. However, with the |
derecognition of debt equivalent to investment in |
JHL, our subsidiary, whose firancial
performance is closely tied to the performance of |
JEFB, our operating entity, we expect this move
to positively impact our financial position in the
future. :

43.

44.

45,

46.

Details of fraud(s):

Pursuant to Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 Board of Directors, 1o the best of their
knowledge and ability, confirm that no offence of fraud has been committed in the Campany or by its
officers or employees.

Internal Auditors:

In terms of provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, Ramesh
Ashwin & Karanth, Chartered Accountants, Firm Registration Neo. 0106803 were appointed as the
Internal AudHors of the Company for the FY 2024-25. The Internal Audit reporis were reviewed by the
Audit Committee,

Secretarial Auditors:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and 62M of SEB] Listing
Regulations, the Company has appointed Nagendra. D. Rao, Practising Company Secretary.
Bangalore to conduct the secretarial audit for the financial year ended March 31. 2025. The Report of
the Secretatial Auditor is provided as Annexure 5 to this Report.

Further, in terms of the provisions of the Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2018 dated February 8, 2019,
issued by SEBI, Nagendra D. Rac, Practising Company Secretary has issued the Annual Secretarial
Compliance Repaort, confirming compliance by the Company of the applicable Listing Regulations and
circulars f guidelines issued thereunder,

There is no qualification made by the Secretarial Auditors in their report. There is no adverse remark.
qualification, reservation or disclaimer in the Secretarial Audit Report.

Change in nature of business:
During the period under review, there was no change in the nature of business of the Company.



47.

48.

49,

50.

51.

52.

Material changes and commitments if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which
have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial
statements relate and the date of the report;

There have been no material changes and commitments, which affect the financiat position of the
company that have occurfed between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements
relate and the date of this Report,

Material adverse orders, if any:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Reserve Bank of india or the Minisiry of
Corporate Affairs or Courts or Tribunals or other Regulatory/ Statutory authorities which will have an
impact on the going concern status of the Company and Company's operations in future.

Report on Comorate Govermnance:

The Company recognizes its role as a corporate citizen and endeavors fo adopt practices and
standards of corporate governance through transparency in business ethics, accountabiiity to its
customers, government and various stakeholders for buitding the strong foundation the Company.
Thus, in accordance with ferms of the Act 2013, Listing Regulations (to the extent applicabie) and RBI
regutations, Report on Corporate Governance of the Company forms an integral part of this report.

Directors’ responsibility statemeit

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained
by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies
Act, 2013:

{a) That in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year unhder review, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures,
if any.

{b) The directers have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company as at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company
for that period.

¢) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irreguiarities.

{d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

{e) The directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively and

{f) The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 2l applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effedctively.

The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of One Time
seftlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial institutions
along with the reasons thereof:

There was no instance of onelime setflement with any Bank or Finandia! Institution, and hence, no
disclosure is required under rule 8(5){xii) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

The details of application made or any proceeding pending under the insolvency and
Bankruptey Code, 2016 (31 of 2018) during the year along with their status as at the end of the

financial year:




The Company has not filed any application, nor any proceeding is pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptey Code, 2016 (31 of 2018}, during the year.

53. The names of companies which have become or ceased to be its Subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companies durning the year:
Nit

54, Acknowledgement

The Directors express their sincers gratitude to RBI, Securities and Exchange Board of India, National
Stock Exchange of India Limited, BSE Limited, Ministry of Finanhée, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, National
Company Law Tribunal, Registrar of Companies, other government and regulatory authoriies, lenders,
financial institutions, and the Company's bankers for the engoing suppert extended by them. The Directors
also place on record their sincere appreciation for ihe continued support extended by the Company's
stakeholders and trust reposed by them in the Company. The Directors sincersly appreciate the
commitment disptayed by the employees of the Company and its subsidiaries across all levels, for exhibiting
outstanding performance during the year.

For and on behalf of board of direciors of
Jana Capital Limited

l"#/z/w-»»\c? / '
=T

Rajamani Muthuchamy Abraham Chacko
MD & CEO Independent Direcior
{DIN: 08030992} {DIN: 068769%0)
Place Bangalore Piace: Bangalore

Date: 30/05/2025 Date: 30/05/2025



Form AOC-1

Annexure-1

Siatement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/associate

companies/joint ventures

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule § of Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014)

14 | % of shareholding

Part-A
Sr. Particulars Name of Subsidiary
No (Rupees i thousands)
1 Name of the Subsidiary Company Janz Holdings Limited
2 Reporting period f{or the Subsidiary NA
concemed, if different from the halding
company'’s reporting period
3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on NA
the last date of the relevant FY in case of
| foreign subsidiaries
4 . Share Capital 2,29,099.06
5 Reserves & Surplus 22,71,882.50
6 | Total Assets o 95,60,587.07
7 Total Liatilities 70.59,605.50
8 | Investmenis T 95,28,955.02
{9 | Turnover 2,299.13
[ 10 | Profit/{Loss) befare taxation (18,60,134.53)
11 | Provision for taxafion il
12 | Profit/(Loss) after taxation (18,60,134.53)
13 | Proposed Dividend ]
100%

Notes:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations:- Nil
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year:- Nil

For and on behalf of board of directors of
Jana Capital Limited

.

Rajamani
Muthuchamy

MD & CEO

(DIN: 0B0809S3)
Phce: Bangalore
Date: 30/05/2025

A
-

.j aiaem, ,rfé'“‘ o
g
Abraham Chacko
Independent
Director
(DIN: 066 76990)
Place: Bangalore

Date: 30/05/2025



Part “B™. Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Camparies Act, 2013 refated to Associate Companies and
Joint Ventures

1 | Latest sudited Balance Sheet Date

‘Shares of Associate held by the company
on the year end

Amount of investvient in Associates/doint
Veniure

Extent of Holding %

Description of how there is significant
influence

Reason why the associate is not NOT APPLICABLE
consolidated

Net worth attributable to Shareholding as
per latest audited Balance Sheet

6 | Profit/ Loss for the year

i | Considered in Consclidation

it | Not Considered in Consolidation

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations - NA
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year - NA

For and on behalf of board of directors of
Jana Capital Limited

FW A -";i;;;;‘-:‘f-ﬁf -

Rajamani Muthuchamy Abraham Chacko
MD & CEO independent Director
(DIN: 08080809) (DIN: 068676990}
Place: Bangalore Place: Bangzlore

Date: 30/05/2025 Date: 30/05/2025



Annexure- 2
FORMNG. ADC -2
[Pursuant to clause {h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
{Acecounts) Rules, 2074]

Fom for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangemenis entered inte by the company with related
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain amv's
tength fransaction under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts of arrangements or tfransactions not at Arm’s length basis:

Name (s) of the related parly & nature of refationship

2. Nalure of contracts /arrangements /iransaction

3. Duration of the confracts farrangements Nil
fransaction

4, Salient tenms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, i any

5. Justification for entering inte such contracts or
arrangements or transactions’

6. Date of approval by the Board
7. Amount paid as advances, if any
8. Date on which the special resolution was passed in

General meeting as required under first proviso o
section 188




2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:
Sr. Particulars Details Details
Na.

1 Names(s) of the related Vidya Sridharan & her relative Jana Urban Space
party & nature of Foundation
relationship

2 MNature of contracts Rentirng of property Renting of property
/arrangements ffransaction

3 Duration of the Started from September 15, 2021 | Ongoing.
contracts/arrangements/ and revised from August 16, Since June 16, 2024
transaction 2022 untit June 15, 2024

4 Salient terms of the Rs. 12,500 per month, subjectto | Rs. 5,000 per month plus
centracis or arrangements 5% increase every 11 months. applicable taxes®
or transaction including the
vaiue, if any

5 Date of approval by the Augusl 8, 2022 (for revised rent) | June 15, 2024
Board

6 Amount paid as advances, | 10 months advance rent paid Nil
if any during the year.

Hote:

The Cormpany shifted #s registered office frem 2 Floor, Ho 80, 57 Cross. 4™ Main, Mandhi Extension, Bangalore — 560021 to #1974,
Sair Bagh™ Building to 4 Floor, Cunningharn Road, Vasanth HNagar. Bengaluru, Karnataka- 560052 at a rent of Rs. 10,000 + GST
wefJune 16, 2024 Further, the Company shifting its regmsiered office fo Hosur and designated 4™ Floor, Cunningham Road. Vasanth

Meger, Bangaluru, Kamataka- 560052 at a rent of Ks

Dece

rober 26, 2024.

10,000 + GST as its corporate office at a rent of Rs. 5,000 + GST wet

For and on behalf of board of directors of
Jang Capital Limited

1

W ""(i.w T L _i)« -

Rajamani Muthuchamy Abraham Chacko
MD & CEQ Independent Director
(DIN: 028030999} (DIN: 08876980)
Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalere
Date: 30/05/2025 Date: 30/05/2025



Annexure-3

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

About the Economy

Global growth is projecied at 3.3 percent both in 2025 and 20286, broadly unchanged from the Oclober 2024
World Economic Qutlock (WEQ) forecast. The Interational Monetary Fund {IMF) and the World Bank have
cut India's growth forecasts for FY26 to 6.2% and 6.3%, respectively, from earlier projections of 6.5% and
6.7%. The Reserve Bank of India maintains its projection of 6.5% growth for the FY25. Other oiganisations
such as the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD). and Fitch Ratings have
revised their projections to 6.4%, white S&P estimates 6.5% growth. Moody's Analylics has projected a
more conservalive estimate of 6.1% for CY25. o

The indian economy is estimated to have grown 6.5% in FY24. Despite the potential for the US economy
to slip into recession and China's growth being significantly impacted, India is expecied to remain the
fastest-growing major economy. The Asian Development Bank has revised its projection for India’s growth
to 6.7% for FY25, down from 7%. However, domestic constraints, particularly weak consumer sentiment,
may limit the government's ability io offset the impaci of tarifis, polentially causing growth to slip to 4% or
less this year,

“The global economy has shown some real resilience, with growth remaining steady and inflation moving
downwards. However, some signs of weakness have emerged, driven by heightened policy uncertainty.
The Outiook highlights a range of risks, starting with the concern that further trade fragmentation could

harm global growth prospecis.

The Qulfook also draws atlention W the risk of macroeconomic volatilily. An unexpected dowidurn, policy
change or deviation from the proiscted disinflation path could tdgger market corrections, significant capital
cutflows, and exchange rate fluctuations, parficularly in emerging markels. High public debf levels and
elevaled asset valuations further heighten these risks.

Given these chalfenges, Outlook highlights key policy priorities. Cenfral banks should remain vigilant given
heightened unceriginty and the potential for higher trade costs to push up price pressures. Provided inflation
expectations remain weti anchored, and frade tensions do not intensify further, policy rate reductions should
continye in economies in which underlying inflation is projecied to moderate and aggregate demand growth
is subdued,

Decisivs fiscal actions are needed io ensure debit sustainability, preserve room for reacting to fulure shocks
and generate resources to meet large impending spending pressures. Stronger efforts are needed to
realocate spending towards activilies that suppoit longerterm growth, set within credible medium-term
adjustment paths tailored to country-specific circumstances.

With potential output generally weakening across both advanced and emerging economies since the global
financial ¢risis, ambiticus structural reforms are needed. Governments must enact reforms {o improve

productivity and enhance the adoption of new technologies by boosting market competfion and eliminating
excessive regulatory burdens en firms.

Enhancing education and skills development and reducing constraints in labour and product markets that
impede investment and labour mobility will be key. Artificial Intelligence (Al) presenis a unigue opportunity
to revive productivity.

The outlook for the glebal economy in the financial vear 2024-25 is influenced by a range of factors,
including economic policies, geopdlitical tensions, technclogical advancemenis, and environmental

challenges. Here's a brief overview:




1. US ecenomic exceptionatismy a global growth leader and disruptor:

The US economy will remain the global growih leader in 2025 driven by solid income growth, pro-
cydlical produstivity growth, accommodating fiscal poliey and easing monetary policy. Trade poficy, in
particular, is likely to have an outsized impact on the global economy in fate 2025 and 2028 with tariffs
and other profectionist measures that could push the globai economy info “stagfiation” if pursued to
their fullest extent. US exceptionalism will also bring challenges to giobal markets, as resulling US
doliar strength could exacerbate inflationary pressures worldwide and disrupt capital and investment
flowrs to emerging markets.

2 Trade and geopolitics derdsking in g fragmentad universe:

Governments will continue to blend nationat security priorities with strategic competitive goals using
industrial policy and trade profectionism to support their objectives. The fragmentation of global frade,
exacerbated by tensions between the US and mainland China, and the rise of geosconomic blocs will
continue fo redefine supply chain dynamics. geopolitical hotspots — Ukraine, the Middle East and
Taiwan ~ will remain potentia! disruptors o globat supply chains, given their strategic importance in
energy, technology and trade routes. These goopolitical chailenges underscore the fragility of global
supply networks in an increasingly fragmented and votatile world.

3. Price volatility: easing inflation pressures but supply fragilites:

Inflation will only gradually converge toward central bank targets across regions, with upside risks
stemming from structural supply fragilities, geopolitical tensions and volatile commaodity prices. The five
D's of structurally higher inflation - demographics, debt, de-risking. decarbonization and digitatization.
will remain in place. Aging populations requiring more private and public spending; elevaied levels of
public expenditure on domestic and industrial poiicy; a growing focus on de-risking and building
resilience in a geopalifically fragmented world: the greening of the global economy via greater outlavs
to reduce carbon emissions; and capital investment to develop generative arfificial intelligence (GenAl)
will fikely mean that central banks' inflation targets represent a foor rather than a ceiling in most
economias over the medium term.

4. Monetary policy: reasons to recalibrate but recalibrate with caution:

Generally easing inflation should coniinue to favor monetary policy recalibration in the near term. But
while central banks will find plehty of reasons to pursue their policy easing cycie, they will almost
cenainly recalibrate with caution given the risks from inflation volatility tied to trade, wages, energy and
food cost pressures. As a result, giobal monetary policy will be desynchronized as central bankers
respend to divergent domestic and international condions and may even be forced to tighten policy
amid resurgent inflationary and exchange rale pressures.

5. Laber in flux: talent scarcity, productivity and Al:

The future of global labor markets will be shaped by the intricate interplay of economic pressures,
demographic shifts and rapid technological advancements. Advanced economies, grappling with
cychical headwinds and slower empioyment growth have so far benefited from labor supply rebounds
fueled by immigration. However, mounting populisi opposition to immigration threatens to exaczerbate
talent shortages in aging societies, further straining aiready fragile 1abor markets. In addition, some
economies face the dual challenge of subdued productivity growth and declining competitiveness,
compounded by rigid fabor markets and slower adoption of innovative technologies.



6. Fiscal policy: a delicate balancing act:

Fiscal policy in 2025 is set against a backdrop of high public dett, elevaled inlerest ralgs and competing
poliical and economic priorities. Global public debt is forecast to remain at 91% of GDP, creating an
environment where governments face rising borrowing costs and reduced fiscal fexibility. The high-
interest rale environment compounds the challenge, as debl servicing increasingly absorbs resources
that could otherwise support growth-oriented investments. Rising poputist pressures for social
spending, tax culs and subsidies further complicate fiscal management, particulady in politically
unstable regions where shorl-term appeasement often lakes precedence over structural reforms.

On the upside, looser fiscal policy than necessary and assumed in projections could raise econamic activity
in the short termn, although risking more costly policy adjustment fater. inflation could fall faster than
expected amid further gaing in labor force participation, aliowing central banks to bring easing plans
forward. Arfificial inteligence and stronger structural reforms than anticipated could spur productivity, As
the gtobal economy approaches a sofl landing, the near-term priority for cenwal banks is to ensure that
infiation touches down smoothly, by neither easing policies prematurely nor delaying too long and causing
target undershoots. At the same time, as central banks take a less restrictive stance, a renewed focus on
implementing medium-term fiscal consolidation to rebuild rooms for budgetary maneuver and priority
investments, and to ensure debt sustainability, is in order. Cross-country differences call for tailored policy
responses. intensifying supply-enhancing reforms would facilitate inflation and debt reduction, allowing
economies fo increase growth toward the higher pre-pandemic era average and accelerate convergence
toward higher income levels. Muliilateral cooperation is needed to limit the costs and risks of gececonomic
fragmentation and climaie change, speed the transilion to green energy and facilitate debt restructuring.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

The Company, being a Core Investment Company (CIC) and registered as NBFC wih the RBI, has no
operations of its own except investment in its subsidiary company. The Company does not accept deposits
from the public. However, the performance of e Operating entity, i.e., Jana Small Finance Bank (JSFB)
will impact on the investments made into it by the Company. The microfinance segment of small finance
business has been facing some headwinds and the operatfing entily is expecied to tide over this slowdown
with its pan-India presence and strong technology base with increasing digitalization at the core. The JSFB
was listed on the stock exchanges in 2024,

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Risks to the global outlook are now broadly balanced. On the downside, new price spikes stemming from
geopolitical tensions, including those from the war in Ukraine and the conflict in Gaza and Israel, could,
along with persistent core inflaion where labor markets are still tight, raise interest rale expectations and
reduce asset prices.

A divergence in disinflafion speeds among major economies could alse cause currency movements that
put financial seclors under pressure.

High interest rates could have greater conling effects than envisaged as fixed-rale mortgages reset and
households contend with high debt, causing financial siress.

In China, without a comprehensive response to the tfroubled property sector, growth could faller, huriing
trading partners.

Amid high government debt in many economies, a disruptive turn to tax hikes and spending cuts could
wezken activity, srode confidence and sap support tor reform and spending to reduce risks from climate




change. Geoeconomic fragmentation could intensify, with higher barriers to the flow of goods, capial, and
people implying a supply-side slowdown.

Climate change has begun to play outin the form of rising global temperatures and increased frequency of
extreme weather events like droughts, cycicnes, heat waves, and flooding. According to Cross Dependency
Initiative, which specializes in climate risk anaiytics for companies, banks. and regions, the vast majority
(80%) of 50 provinces facing the highest climate risk to their physical infrastructure by 2050 are in China,
the US, and India. These developments may have implcations for India's food security.

SEGMENT-WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company, being a CIC, has only investments in its wholly owned subsidiary Company and has
classified this as its business segment and accordingly there are no separate repartable segments. Since
the Company does not have any other operations on its own or any product on its own, product-wise
performance is not applicable for the Campany.

OUTLOOK

As mentioned above, the Company, being a CIC, does not have any other operations except holding
investments in Jana Holdings Limited, wholly owned subsidiaty of the Company, which in turn invests in
JSFB. There has been a significantimprovement in the Bank's performance during the Financial Year 2024
25 compared fo the previous years as envisaged in the Audited Financial Statements of JSF2. Your
directors hope that such progressive improvement in the Operating entity will help the Company mainain
its investment value.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

The Company faces some inherent risks which may include, among others, business aspects, equity
rnarketl, bond market, interest rate, market volatility, economic, political, regulatory risks and any
combination of these and other risks.

Risk management implies controlling potential fulure events that may adversely impact business operations
and functioning. it is about adopting & proactive approach instead of being reaciive. Risk management
forms a vital part of your Company's businesses, and the Company is cognizant of the prominent role it
plays in its long-term success. Your Company is often subjected to various risks. Credit risk, market risk,
liquidity risk, fraud risk, cyber risk, operational rigk ete., are some of the ricks that your Company is exposed
to. With this as the backdrop, your Company has in place a Board-approved Risk Management Framework.
The Risk Management Commitlee (RMC) heads and supervises the efficiency of this framework
periodically.  Moreover, your Company has laken cognizance of the newer emerging risks such as
reputational and sustaimabiiify risks.

In Ine with the requirements of scale-based regulations prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India, your
Company has put in place Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Policy {ICAAP) which outiines all the
risks, risk mitigants, and capital requirements for present and-future time periods. Under ICAAR framework,
your Company has developed quatitative and quantitative termplates to measure and manage vanous risks
like Credit, Market, Liquidily, Interest rate, Operational, Compliance, Reputational and Concentration Risk.

Apart from the globa! risk, the Company does not envisage any opportunity or threat now,
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY.

Your Company has an efficient Intemal Contral System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity
of its operations. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Company had appointed external Internal
Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25. The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the
efficacy and adequacy of the internaf control systemin the Company, its compliance with operaling systems,
accounting procedures and policies of the Company. Based on the internal audit report, pProcess owners



undertake corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit
observations and corrective actions, if any, are presenied to the Audit Committee of the Board. The
Company has the right number of resources, having specialized knowledge in their respeclive fields which
helps the Company keep abreast of the developments in the censtantly changing environment,

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The Company’s financial performance and operational performance is dependent upon the performance of
the JSFB. There has been considerable improvement in the performance of the Bank as compared 1o that
of the previous year and JSFB is optimistic about continuing the same in the years to come.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT,
INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED

Your Company has the required number of human resources, having requisite knowledge, skills and
experience for efficiently discharging hisfher duties and responsibiliies. The Company has well-defined
roles and respansibilities for each employee in executing their functions and thus enables the Company fo
maintain effective Corporate Governance.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES (LE., CHANGE OF 25% OR MORE AS COMPARED TO THE
IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR) IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS, ALONG WITH DETAILED
EXPLANATIONS THEREOF.

Sr. No. | Particulars For the vyear | For the wyear|% of change
ended March 31, | ended March 31, | between two
2025 2024 years
4. | Deblors Tumover INA T INA- -
2. Inventory Tumover NA .
3. interest Coverage Ratic N.A INA. N.A.
4. | Curreni Ratio* 1.39 20816.98% -20815.60%
5. | Debt Equity Ratio # {(1.11} {1.32) 0.21
6. Operating Profit Margin N.A, MNLA. NA,
7. Ne! Profit Margin N.A N.A. NA.
8. | Sector Specific Ratios: .
{(a) Capilal Requirement$ | -902.71% -311.67% 590.50%
g, Details of any change in Return | N.A N.A. N.A,
on Net Wonth as compared to
the
immediately previous financial
year along with a detailed
explanation thereof
Noles:-

“increase in currenl rétio due o maturity of debenlures duning the year.

#ecrease in Debt Equity Ratio due to additional NCO borrowing and interest costs being accrued during the financial year
% Increase in Capdat requirement due 10 raising of NCDs and invesiment = equity shares of subsidiary company.

% Mot applicable as the Gompany does not have operations on its own.




Annexure-4

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

[Pursuant to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Requlations, 2015 and
Scaled Based Regulations issued by Reserve Bank of India]

A. Jana Capital Limited (“the Company”) - Philosophy on Corporate Governance

At Jana Capital Limited (*JCL") we believe that corporate governance is a confinuous journey towards
sustainable value creation far all the stakeholders, which is driven by owr values and built on the
foundation of assurance. JCL believes that effective governance is essential for achieving long-term
success and creating value for its sharehoiders and stakeholders. OQur Corporale Governance
principles are a refiection of our culture, ow policies, our relationship with stakcholders and our
commitment to our core values viz.- Pride. [ntegrily, Discipline and Ambition. Our philosophy
encompasses Transparency, Integrity and Ethics, Accountability, Stakeholder Engagement, Board
Effectiveness and Compliance and Risk Management as key elements,

By adhering {o our corporate governance philosophy, we strive to build trust, foster sustainable growth
and create long-lerm value for alt our stakeholders. The Board of Directors ("Board™) helps to ensure
that we have appropriate governance in place, both to support our operations and protect our
stakeholders' interest.

The Board continuously evaluate and refine the governance practices to ensure that they align with
best practices and evolving expectations. The requirements under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obtligations and Disclosure Requiremenis) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing
Regulations”) mandated by the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") have been fully
complied with. Areport on compliance with the SESI Listing Regulations as prescribed by SEB!is given
below

8. Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors plays a crucial role in providing strategic guidance and help build governance
structure to drive the overall success and growth of the Company. Comprising a diverse group of highly
experienced professionals, the Board brings together a wealth of knowledge, expertise, and industry
insights.

Our esteemed Board members are selected based on ther exiensive backgrounds in various seciors
and their ability to provide valuable perspeciives and leadership. They possess a deep understanding
of our industry landscape, market dynamics, and emerging trends, which enables them to make
informed decisions in the best interest of the Company and its stakeholders,

As stewards of corporate governance, the Board ensures that the Company oparates with integrity,
ransparency, and adherence to legal and ethical standards. They oversee the formulation and
impiementation of effective policies, risk management strategies, and long-term strategic plans.
Through their collective wisdom and experience, they provids guidance fo the execulive management
team, offering valuable insights and oversight to steer the organization fowards susiainable growth.

At JCL. teadership, vision, and commitment of the Board of Direclors are instrumental in guiding our
organization towards achieving its goals, driving innovation, and creafing sustainable value for all the

stakeholders.

1. Composition of Board:



The composition of Board is in compliance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act") and Regulaticn 62D of the SEBI Listing Regulations. As on the date of this
Report, the Board consists of 6 {Six) Directors comprising 3 (three) Independent Directors
(inciuding 1{One) Women independent Direclor), 2 {two)} Non-Executive Directors and one
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy (DIN: 08080999} is the
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board consists of eminent
personalities from diverse fields: private sector / public sector, social sector / commercial sector,
banking / non-banking sector. During the year under review, Mr. Nirav Mehta Non-executive
Director of the Company, ceased to be a director of the Company w.e.f January 9, 2025.

A well composed Board of Directors is diverse and brings together individuals with 2 rangs of
expertise, skills and background. The composition of Board of your Company is commensurate
with the. size of the Company, complexity and nature of various underlying businesses, and
represents an oplimal mix of professionalism, knowledge and experience and enables the Board
to discharge its responsibifities and provide effective leadership to the businesses of the Company.

Al the Independent Directors have confirmed fo the Board thal they meet the criteria for
independence in terms of the definition of ‘Independent Director” stipulated under Regulation
16(1){b) of the SEB| Listing Regulations and Section 148(6) of the Act. These confirmations have
been placed before the Board. Further, the Managing Director of the Company is serving as an
independent Director in 1 {One) company. None of the Direciors of the Company are inler-se
relaied to each other. '

Board Procedure:

The Board meets at regular intervals and the Board meetings (including Committee meetings)
serve as a forum for Board/ Committee members {0 come together and deliberate on critical matters
related to the organization's strategy, operations, financial performance, and govethance. These
meetings of the Company as well as its subsidiaries are held at regular intervals.

Howevaer, in case of a special and urgent business need, separate special Board / Commillee
meetings are held or the approval is taken by passing resolution{s) by circulation, as permitted by
faw, which is noted in the subsequent meeling.

The Board members receive detailed agendas inciuding relevant materials, such as reports,
financial statements and oiher necessary documents, in advance of the meelings enabling them fo
review and prepare for discussions.

During the meeting, the board engages in structured discussions, allowing each member {o share
insights, ask questions, and express their viewpoints.

Where #t is nol practicable 1o circulate any documentin advance or if the agenda is of a confidential
nature, the same is placed at the meeting. In special and exceptional circumstances, consideration
of additional of supplemeniary items is taken up with the approval of the Chair and majority of
Directors. Senior management personnel is imvited to the Board / Committee meeting(s) to provide
additional inputs for the items being discussed by the Board / Committee(s). o

Pursuant 1o section 173 of the Act, some of the Board / Committee meetings in Financial Year
2024-25 were held through video conferencing. The credentials for joining the meetings through
vidzo conference were shared with the Directors along with the notice of the meeling. Necessary
infrastructural support was provided to the Directors, to ensure searriess atlendance in all




meetings. The proceedings of the msetings are recorded and stored in accordance with the
requirements of the Acl.

The draft minutes of the proceedings of the meetings of the Board and Board Commitiee(s) are
circutated to all the members of the Board or the Committes for their perusal. within fifteen days
from the date of the conclusion of the meeting. Comments, if any, received from the Directors are
incorporated in the minutes.

Meeting of Independent Directors:

Section 149(8) of the Act read with Schedide IV of the Act and Regulation 82N of SERI Listing
Regulations require the Independent Direciors of the Company to hold at least one meeting as per
regufatory requirements without the altendance of non-independent directors and members of the
management. In view of the aforesaid requirements, the Independent Directors of the Company
met on February 3, 2025,

Meetings and Attendance;

During the financiat year ended March 31, 2025, 9 (Nine) Board meetings were held on May 17,
2024, June 19, 2024, July 26, 2024, October 11, 2024, Oclober 24, 2024, February 3, 2025,
February 26, 2025, March 18, 2025, and March 25, 2025. The meetings of the Board are generally
held through electronic mode {i.e., audio-visual means) or at Hotel Conrad, Level 2, 25/3,
Kensington Road, Halasuru, Someshwarpura, Bengaluru-560008, Karnataka),

The details of aflendance of the members of the Board at the meetings held during the year and at
the last AGM and also the number of other Directorships and Memberships / Chairpersonships of

Committees held by them as on March 31, 2025 are as follows:

Name of thel DiN Director | Nature of Board No. of | Attenda No, of  No of Comrmittee | No. of
Director Since Ditectorshi;, Meeting | Board nee  at | Directorsh : Memberships 1| independe
p s held / | Meetin | lastAGM | ips in : Chairpersonships nt

conduct | gs other {including in Company) ¥*! | Directorsh
ed attend companie ips
during ed g it (including
the - in
terture Member Chairperss! Company)
of n (ki3
Director
fyear &

Mr G01632 | 260320 | MEG-C 9 o Yes [ 4 o [

Ranresh 76 15

Ramanaha

3

b QO3237 | 2240520 | ID g 9 Yes 5 3 1 1

Saxslespur | 99 14

Visweswar

alya

Ranganuth

W, 66789 140220 ;1D b b} fes el 2 1 ¥

Abraharn G 20

Chacks

Bdrs 164213 | 260326 © D 4 g Yes 1 i 2 g

Rajainkshm | 07 24

LAmbady ]

& 080206 | 14/0220 ¢ MDD &1 9 ] Yes 4 3 Q 1

Raamarni a9 20 CEd

M dhicham

Mr Purset | 001439 1 10000720 | NED 4 2 Mo 0 o O i

Bhatia 73 16

T Thirav | 075048 | 100630 | RET 5 2 No HA MA A HA

Vired 45 16

Metta




C - Chairperson NED ~ Non-Executive Director 1D ~ independent Director MD & CEO - WNanagng Swector & Chel
Executive Officer

Netes:

(1) Excludes Direciorship in foreign company and Section - B company
(2} Menber ships include Chairmanships. Only memberships of Audit Comimittee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee are considered.

This includes memberships in deemed public company and excludas memberships n high value det listed entilies
{3) Only eguity Isted companies are considered
{#) Mr. Nirav Vinod Mehta ceased o be a Direclor we T January 8, 2025

The details pertaining to the directorships held by a Director in listed companies other than the
Company as on March 31, 2025 is as follows:

Name of the Director Name of the listed entity” HNature of Directorship
Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan Jana Smali binance Bank Mon-executive Director
Mr. Bakalespur Visweswarsiya | Nif il
Ranganath
Mr. Abraham Chacko huthoot Finance Limied Independent Director
Ms. Rajalakshmi Ambady Rl Fil
Mr. Puneet Bhastia Havalts india Limiled Diractos
Mr. Rajamani Muthucharny Zinka Logistics Solufions Limited | Independent Direclor

*Qnly equty listed companies are considered.

The details regarding the change in composition of the Board during the current and previous
financial vear is as follows:

31, No. Mame of Director Capacity Nature of | Effective Reason for
e i s e e 1 Change ] Date ...l change |
1 i Mr. Nrav  Vinod | Non-executive Restgnation January 9 | Pre-accupsaiton

| Mehta Director 2025
2 Ms.  Rajalakshny | Independent Direstor | Appointment | 25/03/2024 -

Ambady

The details regarding the change in the senior management during the current and previous
financial year is as follows:.

Sr. Name of Personnel Capacity Nature of | Eftective Date | Reason for
No. Change change
k Mas. Vidya Sridharan Company Resignation July 26, 2024 Carser  growliy
Secretary and and
Compliance advancement
Officer
2 Ms. Krishi Jain Company Re-designation August 1, 2024 | -
Secretary  and | from Chief
Compliance Compliance
Officer Officer to
Campany
Secrelary  and
Compliance
Offwer
3 Mr. S. Gopalkrishnan | Chiel  Fnandial | Resignaton July 4, 2024 Personal
Officer commitraorts
and age factor
4 M. Srinfvas NR Chief Finandal | Appointment July 4, 2024 -
Officer
5 Ms. Leela KS Chief Appomiment October 18, |-
Compliance 2024
Officer




5. [Information to the Board:
The Board of Directors has aceess to the information within the Company, which infer alia includes:

« Quarterly resulis of the Company;
» Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors and Cammitiees of the Board:
» Non-compliance of any regulatory, stalutory nature or listing requirements

6. Post-meeting Internal communication system:
The imporiant decisions taken at the Board! Commities meetings are communicated to the
departments concerned promiptly to enable timely zetion, ifrequired. Necessary action taken report
is also placed at the meeting(s).

7. Board-skills f expertise / competencies:

The core skills / experiise / competencies identified by the Board pursuant to Schedule V of the
SEBI Listing Regulations and available with the Board.

HName of | Designati Expertise
the Director aon Leaders | fndustry’ Experien. Understandi] Corporate | Financial Risk Global Informati
Hip knowled ceand | ng of Gavernane] expertise | Managemen, Experience/ o
qualities; pgeand . exposur! relevant e t Intemational Technolo
experian.  ein | laws, rules, | Exposure oy
ce ! policy | regulation |
- shaping  and policy
foand
industry:
advocac|
Mr RHamesh | MED-C | ¥ ¥ Ty ¥ N N v [ Y
Hamanaha :
0 ;
X D y N ~ kS ¥ X 8 I i
Satalespur :
Visweswars
iya
Renaanath
Mr o 5 ¥ Ly vV N - N R N
Abraham :
Chacke :
s, o) X ¥ ¥ 5 ¥ ¥ N C ¥
Rajalakshm ;
i Ambady
Mr o Punset | NED ¥ < D HIE ¥ \' N [ ¥
Bhatia s » :
Wi M a |V NN Y B ¥ ¥ - v
Rajamant CEO ! .
Mighucham

v :
{1} b Birav Rehta ceased o be a Director we { January 8, 2025
8. Performance Evaluation:
The NRC has approved a policy for evaluation of the Board, its Committees and Directors and the

‘same has been approved by the Board of the Company. The process for the aforesaid evaluation
as required under the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations and is given in the Board's Report.

9. Succession Planning:

To ensure the long-term sustainability and confinued success of your Company, the Company has
a mechanism in place for ensuring orderly succession for appointments to the Board and to Senior
Management by identification of talent and further development process, to build a pipefine of talent




to meet future eadership needs. The NRC is responsible for overseeing the succession planning
for the Board and Senior Management Personne! as per the NRC policy ofthe Company.

40. Familiarization Programme:

Your Company has designed a famifiarization program to introduce/ induct all new Independent
Directors. This pregram plays a vital role in enabling the Board Members to understand the
organization, its operations, cuiture, governance practices and also their roles, responsibilities, and
expectations, thereby facilitating their effective contribution te the Board’s work.

Your Company provides its directors with training opportunities keeping in mi_ﬁd the requirement of
the Company, both during the induction process and pericdically (including during Board Meetings).

The Board mambers hold mestings fo exchange perspectives and insights, enabling the
management to benefit from the Directors’ experience and enhance your Company's operations.

Systems and resources are made available to the members of the Board.

The details relating to the familiarization programme are available on the website of the Company
at https.//www.janacapital.co.in/polcies!

11. Confirmation of Independent Directors:

in the opinion of the Board, independent Directors fulfill the conditions required for independent
directors as per the provisions of tha Act, the SEBI Listing Reguiations and all other applicable laws

and are independent of the management.

Board Committees

Board level committees are essential for effective governance and efficient decision making within a
Company, Board level committees provide a stuctured approach to address specific areas of
operations, governance, allowing Board Members to focus on other issues in more depth. By delegating
certain responsibilities fo committees, the Board can leverage the expertise and specialized knowledge
of commiltee members, leading to better informed decisions. Establishing Board level commiltees also
ensures a checks and balances systern within the Company, with committees independently reviewing
and evaluating key aspecls of operations and decision making. Overali, Board level committees
enhance govemnance practices, strengthen board effectiveness, and contribute fo the long-term
success of the Company. The Board is regularly briefed about the deliberations, ineluding summary of
discussions and minutes of the comnittee meetings. The business transacted by the committees of the
Board is placed before the Board for noting / recommendation / approval as applicable.

The Board has currently constiluted the foliowing Committees including pursuant to the provisions of
the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations and Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") regulations:

»  Audit Commillee;

« Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
« Sfakeholders Relationship Committes;

« AssetLiability Management Commitiee;

+ Risk Management Commitiee,

« [T Strategy Commiliee,

« Qutsourging Commitiee;

»  Group Risk Management Commiitee




1.

Audit Committee {“AC”)

Terms of Reference:

The role of the AC includes the following:

a & = s @

Recommendation for appeintment, remuneraton and terms of appointment of auditors of the
Company,

Review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;

Examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company, if any, with related
parties;

Audit Commitiee may rake omnibus approvat for related party transactions proposed to be
entefed into by the company subject to such congitions as provided.

In case of transaction, other than transactions referred to in section 188, and where Audit
Commiitee does not approve the fransaction, it shall make its recommendations to the
Board.

In case any transaction involving any amount not exceeding one crore tupees is entered into
by a director or officer of the company without obtaining the approval of the Audit Committee
and il is not ratified by {he Audit Committee within ibree months from the date of the
transaction, such transaction shall be voidable at the option of the Audit Committee and i the
transaction is with the related parly to any director or is authorised by any other director, the
director concemed shall indemnify the company against any loss incurred by . However, it
shall not apply to a transaction, other than a transaction referred ta in section 188, between g
holding company and its wholly-owned subsidiary company.

Scrutiny of inter-corporate foans and investments. if any;

Valuation of undertakings or assels of the company, wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internai financial controfs and risk management sysiems;

Monitoring the end use of funds, if raised through putlic offers and related matters.

Perform such other act, including the acts and functions stipulated by the Board of Directors,
the Companies Act, the Reserve Bank of India and any other regulatery authority as
prescribed from time fo time.

Compesition as on March 31, 2025;

Name of the Memberr | Designation in the Nature of Member of No. of
Committee Directorship Committee shares
since held inthe
— i Company
Ir. Sekatespur | Chairpersan iD February 4, 2020 il
Viswoswaralya
Ranganaih
Mr. Abraham Chacko Member o February 14, 2020 (&1}
Ms. Raatakshmi fdember 12} Kay 17. 2025 [
Ambady
Mr. Ramesh ember NED and Charman Februvary 14 2620 1
Ramanathan of the Board
WMr Rajamani Member MD & CEO February 14, 2028 1
Muthuchamy




Meetings and Attendance during FY25:

The AC met 5 (Five) times during the financial year on May 17, 2024, June 18, 2024, July 26,
2024, October 24, 2024 and February 3, 2025, The details of atlendance of the Members ai the

meetings are as follows:

Name of the Member Ho. of Mestings held f conducted Ho. of Meetings atiended
during the tenure of the Member/
year

I, Sakalespur Visweswaraiya 5 5

Ranganath

Mr. Abraham Chacko 5 5

Mr. Remesh Remanathan 5 [E

Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy [ s

Ms. Rajalakshmi Ambady 4 4

All the members of the AC are financially fterate and have

‘management expertise. The Company Secrelary is the Secretary to the Comnmittee.

2. Nomination & Remuneration Committee {“NRC"}

Terms of Reference:

The role of the NRC includes the following:

accounting or related financial

+ Idenlify persons who are gualified lo became Directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their

appointment and removal.

s 1 ay down crileria for determining gualifications, positive atiributes and independence of a
director and recommend o the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.

s To ensure '{it and proper” stalus and credentials of proposed/existing directors.

s Perform such other act, including the acts and functions stipulated by the Board of Directors,
Companies Act, the Reserve Bank of India and any other regulatory authority. as prescribed

from time o time.

Composition as on March 31, 2025:

Meetings and Atiendance during FY25:

Name of the Member | Designation in the Nature of Member of No. of shares
Committee Directorship Committee since held in the

— e A Company

At Sakalespur Chairperson 0 February 14, 2020 Il

ViSWRsWaralys

Ranganath

Mr. Abraham Chocko Fember 8 February 4, 2020 R

ir. Ramesh Idember NED-C February 14, 2020 1

Ramanathan

The NRC met 4 (four) imes during the financial year on May 17, 2024, June 19, 2024, July 26,
2024 and October 24, 2024. The details of altendance of the Members at the meetings are as

follows:




Name of the Member Ne. of Meetings held [ No. of Mestings attended -
canducted during the tenure of

the Member f year
I Sakalespur Visweswaraiya 4 4
_Ranganath
Mr. Abraham Chacko 4
Fr. Ramesh Ramarathan 4

Remuneration Palicy:

The remuneration of the Board members is based on the Company’s size, its economic and
financiat position, industriat trends and compensation paid by peer companies. The compensation
reflects each Board member's responsibility and performance. While the Company pays
remunerafion to Executive Direclor{s) by way of salary, perquisites, retirernént benefits (fixed
components), the Non-Executive Directors ("NEDs”) are paid remuneration by way of sitting fees.
The remuneration to NEDs is based on the recommendations of the NRC and approval of the
Board, fo the extent required as per regulatory requirements.

None of the NEDs have any pecuniary relationship with the Company,

As required under Schedufe V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the criteria for payment to NEDs
is available on the website of the Company at itips Awww Janscapital co palaiess,

Details of remuneration paid to Directors for the financial year ended March 31, 2025:
a2} Remuneration to Executive Director(s)

The details of remuneration paid to Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy (DIN: 68080998), Managing
Director and CEO are as follows:

! 8r.No. | Name of the Director | Salary and | Variable Total

; Perquisites Remuneration'"

1 R, Rajamen | Rs 12,00.964 Rs. 1,080,782 Ps 1310166
: Muthuchamy

. 1. Based on pulicy furmitated by the NRC and epproved by the Board.
« Motice period for ®ermination of apponiment of Managing Ditector and CEQis 7 (wo Jon either side
= Husevelzree pay is payable o lerrinastion of appointment,

The Company follows a transparent process for determining the remuneration of NEDs.

The Company pays sitting fees of Rs. 75,000 (Rupees Seventy Five Thousand only) for the
meefings of the Board.

The details of remuneration to the NEDs are as follows:

"Nama of the Direclor Sitting Fees for Board | Sitting feag for | Total
and Commitiee | Committee Meetings
Meetings {in Re.}
Mr Sskalespur  Visweswaralya | 6,50,000 - 6,50,000
Ranganath
M Abrabem Chacke 650000 - 88000
15, Rajalakshmi Ambady 6,50 000 - 6 50,000

Details of shares / convertible instruments, if any, held by the NEDs as on March 31, 2025
are as follows:

Name of the Director No, of Equity Shares

W Sakalespur Visweswaraiya Ranganath i

Mr Abraham Chacko L) ]
By Puneet Bhalia Rt




Ms . Rajalak shmi Ambady

i

. Rameash Rerngndlan

3. Stakeholders Relationship Commitiee ("SRC”)

Terms of Reference:

The role of the SRC inciudes looking into various aspects of inferest of shareholders, debenture
holders and other security holders,

Composition as on March 31, 2025:

Name of the Member Designationin Nature of : Member of No. of shates
the Committee Directorship ! Committes since held in the
: Company
Rajaiakshmi Ambady Chairman D | May 17,2024 Hit
#r. Remesh Ramanathan 1 iiember NED-C i August 12, 2023 1 T
t4r Sekalespur Member i8] ~ Mugust 12, 2023 R
Visweswaraiye Ranganath :
Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy Member MD &CEQ o August 12, 2023 i

Meetings and Attendance during FY25:

The SRC met 1{one) time during the financial year on Oclober 24, 2024. The details of attendance

of the Members at the meelings are as follows!

Name of the Member

HNo. of Meetings held /
conducted during the
tenure of the Member / year

No. of Meetings attended

Rajalakshmi Ambady

1

#r. Ramesh Ramanathan

1

Wr. Sakalespur Visweswatarys
Ranganah

3

Wi, Rajamani Muthuchamy

1

Details of Shareholders’ requests / complaints:

The Company resolves investor grievances expeditiously. The Company / its Registrar and
Share Transter Agents received the following complaints from SEBI / Stock Exchanges and
queries from the shareholders, which were resolved within the time frame laid down by SEBL:

Particulars Opening Received Resolved Pending
Complainis: 0 b} 0 0
SEBI / Stock Q 1] 8} G
Exchanges
Others 0 o 0 0
Total G 1} 0 0

Mrs. Krishi Jain, Company Secrelary, is the Compliance Officer / Investor Relations Ofiicer, who
deals with matters pertaining to Shareholders’ grievances.




4. Asset Liability Management Committee (“ALCO")

Terms of Reference:

The role of the ALCO includes the following:

overseeing the Asset and Liability Management function;
reviewing the asset-lability profile of the Company;
performing such other act, including the acts and functions stipulated by the Board of
Directors, the Companies Act, the Reserve Bank of India and any other regulatory authority,
as prescribed from time to time.

Composition as on March 31, 2025:

Name of the Member

Designationin the

Nature of

Member of

No. of shares

Committee Directorship Committee since heid in the
Company

Mr. Rejament Chailrman WD & CEO Febryary 14, 2020 1
Muthuchamy
My, Sakalespur ! Member i February 14, 2020 &1
Visweswaraiva
Rangana®™ e b
Mr. Abrghamn Chacke | Member iD February 14, 2020 T
Mr. Srinivas MR ¢ Member Chief Financial September 10, 2024 I

Officer

Meetings details during FY25:

The ALCO met 4 (Four) times during the financial year on May 17, 2024, July 28, 2024, October
24 2024 and February 3, 2025:

The details of attendance of the Members at the meetings are as follows:

Name of the Mermber Ho. of Meellings hietd / No. of Meetings attended
conducted during the
tenure of the Member /
year
Mr. Rgjamani Muthuchamy 4
Mr. Sakalespur Visweswaraiys 4 4
Renganath
W Abtahan: Chacks 4 4
W Sonivas MR 2 2
#Ar. S, Gopalakrishnan © 2 2
(1) Ceasedtobaa membar wef September 10, 2025
Risk Manhagement Committee (“RMC™)
Terms of Reference:
The role of the RMC includes the foliowing:
Overseeing the risk management function including identification,

*

measurernent of the risk profile of the Company;
Identifving the element of risk;

Overseeing its integrated risk measurement system;

monitoring  and

Performing such other act, including the acts and functions stipulated by the Board of
Directors, the Companies Act, the Reserve Bank of India and any other regulatory authority,
as prescribed from time to fims.



Compaosition as on March 31, 2025:

Name of the Member Designation in Nature of Member of No. of shares
the Committes Birectorship Commiitee since held in the

e . . R e s e+ e e < b CONPATYY
hr. Rajamani Muthuchamy Chairman WD & CEO Februaty 14, 2020 1
Mr, Abrabam Chacko Member D February 14, 2020 Wil
Ir. Sakalespur Visweswaraiya | Member [8] February 14, 2020 il
Ranganath
Mr. Stinivas N R Member CFO September 10, 2024 il

Meetings details during FY 2024-2025:

The RMC met 4 (Four) fimes during the financial year on May 17, 2024, July 26, 2024, October
24 2024 and February 3, 2025.

The details of attendance of the Members at the meelings are as follows;

Name of the Member No. of Meetings held/ No. of Meetings atterwied
conductad during the
tenure of the Member / year

Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy 4 4
Mr. Abraham Chacke 4

M. Sakalespur Visweswaraiya 4 4
Ranganah

b Snnivas MR 2 7

BAr. Mirav Mehta ¢!
Mr. S. Gopalakrishi
{1} Crascd w be a member wef Septomber 10, 2026
{2} Ceased o be a memberw.efJanuary B, 2025

IT strategy Committee
Terms of Reference.

The role ¢f the IT Strategy Comimitiee is to oversee and review T refaied issues and T related
policies and gives its inpufs.

Composition as on March 31, 2025:

Name of the Member | Designation in the Nature of Member of No. of shares
Commitfes Directorship Committee since held in the
Company

Ir. Abraham Chacke Chaiman D June 29, 2022 Fdil

hr. Rajamani Member MD & CEQ fday 12, 2020 1

hMuthuchamy

Mr. Srinivas NR Member Chief Financial September 10, 2024 | i

S N .4 Officer BN S

Mr. Babu Thomas Member 1T-in Charge Kay 12, 2020 N

Meetings details during FY 2024-2025;

The {T Strategy Committee met Three (one) ime during the financial year on June 19, 2024,
September 24, 2026 and March 3, 2025. The details of atlendance of the Membess at the
msetings are as follows:




Name of the Member No. of Meetings held [ No. of Meetings
conducted during the attended
tenure of the Member/
) . year

hr Abraham Chacko 3 3

Mr. Rajamant Muthuchamy 3 3

Mr. Srnivas FHR 2 2

Mr. Gopalakristinan 3. ¢ 4 1

(1) Ceasediobea member wefSeptember 10, 2025,

7. Outsourcing Committee
Terms of Reference:
The role of the Outsourcing Committee includes the following:

s Evaleating the risks associated with the existing and prospective outsourcing of fnancial
activities.

¢ Deciding on the financial activities of material nature that require outsourcing, and approving
such arrangements,

¢ Undertaking regutar review of outsourcing sirategies and arrangements for thelr continued
relevance, and safety and soundness.

s Evalualing capability of the service providers.

+ Monitoring of outsourced activifes and ensuring that contingency pians based on realistic
and probable disruptive scenarics are in place and tested.

¢ Undertaking periodic review of oquisourcing arrangements fo identify new material
outsourcing risks as they arise,

Composition as on March 31, 2025:

Name of the Member Designation in the Nature of Member of No. of shares |
Committes Directorship Committee since held & the ,

Company |

Mr. Rejarnani Chairparson MD & CEQ May 12, 2020 ‘
wuthuchamy i
F Srnivas MR § Member Chief Financial Seplembar 10, 2025 Hil t
Officer '

Meetings details during FY2024-2025:

The Qutseurcing Committes met once during the financial year on March 21, 2025. The detaiis
of attendance of the Members at the meetings are as follows:

Name of the Member “No. of Meelings heid/ No. of Meetings attended
conducted during the tenure
of the Member ! year
Mr Rajamant Mathuchamy 4 4

Mr. Gopalakrishnan, 8 1 1

8. Group Risk Management Committee
Terms of Reference:

The role of the Group Risk Managernent Committze includes the following:



s Analyse the material risks to which the group, its businesses and subsidiaries are exposed.
H must discuss all risk strategies both at an aggregated level and by type of risk and make
recommendations fo the Board in accordance with the group’s overall risk appetite.

Identify potential intra-group conflicts of interast.
Assess whether there are effective systems in place to facilifate exchange of information for
effective risk oversight of the group.

s Assess whether the corporate governance framework addresses risk management across
the group.

Conduct periodic independent formal review of the group struciure and intemal contiols.
Atticulate the leverage of the Group and monitor the same.,

Based on the analyses and recommendations of the GRMC, CICs shall intiate corredive
action, where necessary. Chief Risk Officers (CROs), appeointed in CiCs as per Para 4.4
below, shall initiate such corrective actien. Since the Coempany is not required to appoint a
CRO, the MD and CEOQ and/or CFG of the Company be authorised to initiate the carrective
action where necessary.

Composition as on March 31, 2025:

Name of the Member Designation in the Nature of Member of No. of shares
' Comimittee Directorship Commitiee since held in the
N U F OO JJcompany
Mr. Sakalespur Chairperson 1D September 26, Hil
Visweswarah/a 2022
Ranganah
Me.-Abraham Chacko IMember 1D Seplember 26, Hil
2022

Mr. Rejamant Mernter — MD & CCO Seplember 26, 1
Muthuchamy Representative of 2022

Jana Holdings

) Limited

Mr. K S Raman — Member — - September 26, Hif
Member Representalive of 2022

Jana Small Finange

Bank
Mr Ramesh Mermber ~ NED-C Seplember 26, 1
Ramanathan Representative of 2072

Jana Urban

Foundation

Meetings details during FY2024-20255:

Tha Group Risk Management Committee met 4 (Four) times during the financial year on May 5,
2024, September 24, 2024, December 17, 2024 and March 20, 2025.

The details of attendance of the Members at the meetings are as follows:

Name of the Member Mo, of Meetings held / No. of Meetings attended
conducted during the tenure
of the Member / year

B Sakalespur Visweswaraiys 4 3
Ranganath
Wr Abraham Chacke

Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy
Mr K S Raman
ir. Ramesh Ramanathan

Bob B R
L7V B R BN . Y

9. Committee for Monitoring and Follow-up of Fraud Cases (“FRMC”):

Terms of Reference:




The role of the Group Risk Management Committee includes the following:

« The Committee shall oversee the effectiveness of the fraud risk management.

¢ The Committee shall review and moniter cases of frauds, including root cause analysis,
and suggest miligating measures for strengthening the internal controls, risk management
framework and minimizing the incidence of frauds. The coverage (coverage may inciude,
among others, categeriesArends of frauds, industry/sectoralf gecgraphical concentration of
frauds, delay in detection/classification of frauds and delay in examination/conclusion of
staff accountability) and periodicity of such reviews shall be decided by the Board.

Meetings details during FY2024-20255:

The FRMC met once during the financial vear on March 20, 2025.

The details of attendance of the Members at the mestings are as follows:

Name of the Member No. of Meetings hald / No. of Meetings atiended

conducted during the tenura
of the Member / year

| Regamant Muthucharny 1 1
Mr. Srimvas MR 1 1

IMs. Leala K& 1 bi

D. Diréctors on Board of Material Subsidiaries

Name of the Director Designation

Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan Nen-executive Director — Chalrperson
Mr. Abraham Chacke Independent Director

Mr. Sakalespur Visweswaraiya Ranganath Independent Director

Ms. Rajalakshmi Ambady Independent Director

Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy | Managing Director and CEC

E. Other Information
1. Training of Directors:

All Directors of the Company are aware and are also updated as and when required, of their roles,
responsibilties and liahilities.

2. Information to Directors:

The Directors have access to the information within the Company, which inter alia, includes items
as mentioned in point no. BS of the Corporate Governance Report. Presentations are made
regularly to the Board and its Committees, where Directors get an opportunity to interact with the
management. Discussions are held with the Management on a regular basis. independent
Diractors have the freedom to interact with the Company’s management.

3. Statutory Auditors:
Rao and Emmar, Statulory Auditors of the Cornpany has signed the Audit Report for FY2024-2025.

4. Code of Conduct:



The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct for all the Board members including Independent
Directers and senior management personnel, The Code of Conduct is available on the website of
the Company at hitps:iwww janacapital co.infpolcies/. The declaration of Managing Director and
CEQ is given below:;

To the Members of Jana Capital Limited
Sub: Compliance with Code of Conduct

| hereby declare that all the Board members and senior
management personnel have affirmed compliance with
the Code of Conduct of the Company as adopted by the
Board of Directors. '

Raiamani Muthuchamy
(DIN: 0B080YLY)
Managing Director and CEO

Date: May 19, 2025
Place: Bangalore

Vigil Mechanism Framework / Whistie Blower Mechanism:

The Company has formulated a vigil mechanism framework for Directors, employees and service
providers (agency, vendor, coniracior or any outsourced parner) (‘collectively known as
stakeholders™) to report their concerns. The objective of the framework is (o establish a redressal
forum, which addresses all concerns raised on questionable practices and through which the
stakeholders can raise actual or suspected violations. The Vigil Mechanism Policy empowers all
levels of employees including top management and service providers to raise voice against aclual
{ suspected violations. The implementation of the framework is monitored through the Audit
Committee which meels on a regular basis and all cases are discussed in detail. If addresses all
cohcerns raised on questionable practices. The framework ensures protection 1o the Whistle-
blower to avoid any sort of unfair or prejudicial employment practices.

The delails of establishment of such mechanism have been disclosed on the website of the
Company at https:fiwww janacapital. co.in/polcies/

During FY2024-2025, the Company received ne complaints under the Vigil Mechanism Framework.
During the year, no person has been declined access to the Audit Commitiee, wherever desired.

General Body Meetings:

The details of AGM of the Company for the previous three years are as under:

Year Date Time Venue [ Mede of Special Resolution Passed
conducting the
-meeting
2023-24 July §, 2024 11.30 AM-1145 | Video Conferencing 1} Re-appointment of Mr. Rajamani
AM tMuthuchamy, MO and CEC for a

penod of 3 years

2) Approval of anhual perfoarmance
increment o K. Rejaman
Muthuchamy, MD and CEQ

3)  Approval for the re-appoiniment of
Mr  Abraham Chacko as  an




independent  Dieclor  of  the
Company for the second temm of
five conseculive years

4)  Appointment of Mrs. Rajalakshmi
Ambady as  an  independsn!
[irector of the Company

202223 | July 132023 1130 TAMOT 45 | Vidés Conferencig 5) Revision of Remuneration % Mr
ARA Rejamant Muthuchamy, MD znd
(M

6)  Altzration of Articles of Association
of the Company

2021-22 Sepismber 21, | 11.32 X Vider Conferencing 1)  Approval for reappointment of Mo

2022 1153 AM 5.V Renganath as an independsant
Ditector of the Company for secend
tenn Of § yoars

2)  Ralification for modification of the
exsting refaled party transaction

Postal Ballot:

The Company had not passed any resolution through Postal Bafiot during FY 2024-25. Further,
currently, there is no proposal which is envisaged to be passed through Postal Ballot. If 5 Resalution
is passed by way of Postal Ballot, the Company will follow the process as per regulatory
requirements.

Other Disclosures:

The Company being a high value debt listed entity, Regulation 16 to Regulation 27 of SEBI
Listing Regulations are applicable tu the Company on a ‘somply or explain® basis untt March
31, 2025. However, in accordance with Regulation 15 (2) of Listing Regutations the paid up
equity share capital of the Company does not exceeding Rs. 10 crore and net worth does nat
exceed Rs. 25 crore, as on March 31, 2024, the Company is exempt from complying with the
provisions of Regulation 17-27 and clauses (b) to (1) and (1) of sub-regulation {2} of rogulation
46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V. During the year, the Company has not entered into
any material related party fransaction.

Chapter VA of Securifies and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requiremsnis) (Amendment) Regulations, 2025 are applicable from to the Company and the
Company will ensure compliance with the same.

During the vyear, there were no fransactions of material nature with the Direclors,
management, their relatives or the subsidiaries, which had potential conflict with the interests
of the Company.

Details of alf related party transactions form a part of the Financial Statements as required
under Ind AS-24 and the same forms part of the Annual Report.

The Comipany has fellowed all refevant Accounting Standards nefified by the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amendsad from time to fime whife preparing the
Financial Statements,

Except as stated below, there were no instances of non-compfiance on any matter relating to
capital markets, during the last three years nor any penalties, strictures imposed on tho
Company by the Stock Exchange(s) or SEB{ or any Statutory Authorily:

Sr. Particulars Amount of Status | Date of Date of
No. Fine i Fine Payment
1 Reg €0 of SEBIIRs. 11800 Paid . April 30, | May 07,
Listing Regutations - | {inclusive  of i 2025 2025
} 18% GST) ‘




Sr. Particufars Amount of Status - Date of Date of
No. Fine Fine Payment
delay in record dale
intimation

s The Company is exempt from compliance of Corporale Govemance requirements specified
in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) fo (i) of Regulaiion 46(2) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations for the financial year 2024-25, however, the Company has voluntarily complied
with regulations as/or reguired.

« The provisions of Chapter VA of SEBI Listing Regulations are applicable to the Compeny since
the outstanding value of listed NCDs as on March 31, 2025 is Rs. 1,44847 crores. The
Company will ensure compliance with the provisions within 6 months from the dale of trigger.

o The web link with respect 1o the policy for determining ‘material subsidiaries’ and policy on
dealing with related party transactions are mentioned in the Board’s Report.

Commodity price risks ahd commodity hedging activities-Not applicable.
The Campany has also substantially complied with the discrelionary requirements stipulated
under Regulation 27 and 62 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

+ Provisions of Regulation 32(7A) of the SEB! Listing Regulations are not applicable to the
Company.

s AsonMarch 31, 2025, there were no funds unutilized requiring disclosure as specified under
SEBI Listing Regulations.

+« NagendarD Rao, Praclicing Company Secretary has certified that none of the Directors of the
Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as a Director
of the Company by SEBI or Ministry of Cerporate Affairs or any other statutory autherity. The
said certificate forms part of this report.

¢ During FY2024-2025, the total consolidated fees of Rs. 4,80,000 was paid io the Stalulory
Auditors of the Company.

« There were no complaints of sexual harassment of women at workplace received by the
Company during FY2024-2025.

o The Board of Directors confirm that during the vear, it has accepted all mandatory
recommendations received from its committees.

« For disclosure pertaining 1o credit ratings, please refer the Board's Report.

« There were no loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms / companies in which
directors are interested in.

¢ Breach of covenants — Nil

Means of Communication:

¢ Quarlerly Resulls are communicated through Newspaper Advertisements in prominent
natiena!l daily like Business Standard.

« The financial results, official news releases and presentations are also displayed on the
website of the Company at hitps:/iwww.janacapital.ce.in/.

e The Annual Report is circulated to all the Members, Statutory Auditors, Secreterial Audiior,
Debenture Trustee, Directors and such other persons who are entitled to receive the Annuai
Report.

¢ Management Discussion and Analysis forms a part of the Annual Report is sent {o the
Members of the Company.

General Shareholders’ information:

Annuai General Meeting Tuesday, August 19, 2025 at 12.00 Noon




Financia! Year " April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2025

f Book Closure -

Payment Nil
Listing on Slack Exchanges (Equity | Nif
Shares}
Listing of Preference Shares Ni
Listing of Non Convertible Dehentures | Unsecured, Redeemable, Non
{"NCDs") Convertible Debentures issued by the

Company on private placement basis il
date are listed on BSE Limited.

Stock Code (Equity) Nil

Stock Code (Preference) Nil

Stock Code (NCDs) As on March 31, 2025, the Company has
3 active 1SINs listed on Stock Exchanges
INE0Z28L08032
INEQ28UO8040
INEQ28UQOB057

CIN UB7100TZ2015PLC033424

In case the securilies are suspended from | Not Applicabie
trading, the Board's Report shall explain
the reason thereof

Registrar and Share Transfer | KFin Technologies Private Limited
Agent{"RTA"} Address: Selenium Tower B, Piot 31-32,
Gachibowli,

Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Hyderabad — 5G0 032

Coniact person: Chakka Jagannadh

Tel No: 8642222087

Email: jagannadh.chakka@kfintech .com
Website: httpiiAwww kfintech.com

Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2025:
Mot Applicable

Categories of the Sharehoiders as an March 31, 2025:

Calegory MNo. of Shares Yo

Promaters 1187747 ' 43007615

" Financial Insttutions - -

Foreign instiutional
Investors, Foreign Portfolio
Investors & Altemale
Investment Funds

Mufual Funds :

Foreign Comorate Bodies i 13,156,804 48 695113
Directors & Relatives L25Er ' TOZ5308
Rosidant Individuais & 172033 G 38174122
Others :

Banks P- -

Mon-Resident Indians L -

TOTAL . 27,04,181 100




Demateriatization of Shares:

The Company’s shares are not listed and traded on any stock exchange. However, the Company's
equity share capital are dematerialized as on March 31, 2025 except the shares held by individual
nominee shareholders. Under the Depository System, the International Securities Identification
Number (ISIN) allotted fo the Company’s Equity shares is INEGZ8UD1011,

Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading:

The Company has framed the Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and Fair
Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Informafion in line with the requirements of SEBI
(Prohibition of Ir_is'xcfer Trading) Regulations, 2015. The objective of the Code is to prevent
purchase and/or sale oflisted securities of the Company by an Insider on the basis of unpublished
price sensitive information. Under this Code, Designated Persons are prohibited from dealing in
the listed securities of the Company during the closure of Trading Window. Further, SEBI has
mandated every listed entily to mainiain a Structured Digital Database {SDD) containing details of
persons with whom any Unpublished Price Sensifive Information (UPSY) is shared. As per the
SEBI (PIT) Regulations 2015, this database must be secured through adequate intemal controls
such as time stamping and audit trails so as lo prevent any kind of tampeting.

The above mandate was primarily infroduced with a view to maintain a trail of informalion and aid
SEBI in investigations pertaining {o insider trading by establishing a link bebfween insiders and
persons who communicate and frade on the basis of such UPSI. Thus, the Company has availed
TRACK IN Software from Link Intime so as to comply with the said requirement.

Secretarial Audit:

The Board of Direclors of the Company at its meeting held on May 8, 2025 had appointed
Nagendar D Rap, Practicing Company Secretary as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for
FY25.

Bebenture Trustee:
The Debsenture Trustee of the Company is:

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

Address: 901, 9% Flocr, Tower B, Peninsula Business Park,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (W), Mumbai- 400013.
Contact person: Deesha Srikkanth

Tet No: +91 {22) 4922 0555

Email: ComplianceCTL-Mumbai@ctitrustee.com

For Jana Capifal Limited

Fid B -
N p— {,w 1
T

Abr.ah;m Chacko Rajamani Muthuchamy
Non-executive Director Managing Director and CEO
DIN: 06676990 DIN: 08080998

Date: 30.05.2025 Date: 30.05.2025




Annexure-§

' Nagendra D. Rao, s.com., 1B, rCs.
Practising Company Secretary

To,

The Members of Jana Capital Limited,

3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./25B1,
Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East,
Krishnagiri, Hosur - 635109,

Tamil Nadu.

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter,

Management's Respensibility

It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise
proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and
to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.

Auditor's Responsibility

I. My responsibility is fo express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures
followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

2. I believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company's management is
adequate and appropriate for me to provide a basis for my opinion.

3. Wherever required, 1 have obtained the management's representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

Disclaimer
The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

/ﬁfﬁgendra D. Rao
Practising Company Secretary

Membership No. FCS ~ 5853

Certificate of Practice - 7731

Pecr Reviewed Unit

Place : Bengaluru Peer Review Certificate No.: 672/2020
Date  : May 30, 2025 UDIN: FOD5553G000517284

Fagdewi”, 543/4, Tth Main, 3vd Cross, 8.1, Bhyrappa Road, Hanumantha Nagar, Bengalury - 560 019
Telephona: 080-2650 8034, Mobile: 92451 75787, E-mall - nagendradrao@amail.com
GETING: 29ADAPROZETMIZZ  MSME Heg. No. - UDVAMKR.O3-0262388



Nagendra . Rao, 8.Com, LLB,F.CS.
Practising Company Secretary

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2025

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuoneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014]

To

The Members of Jana Capital Limited,

3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy, No./25B1,
Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East,
Krishnagiri, Hosur - 635109,

Tamil Nadu.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of the applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Jana Capital Limited (hereinafter called the
company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in the manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of the secretarial audit, [ hereby report
that in my apinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
31 March, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject 1o the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minuie books, forms and retums filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31* March, 2025 according to the

provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder.

{(1i) The Securities Contracts {Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder.

(iti) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings.

{v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 {(*SEBI Act’): -
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(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 [Not Applicable];

(b) The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015:

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 [Not Applicable];

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India {Share Based Employce Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021 {Not Apphicable);

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with clients [Not
Applicable].

(g} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021.
[Not Applicable}; and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018
[Not Applicable].

(iy The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [Qaly Chapter I and V are applicable to the
Company]

(vi) The Laws as are applicable specifically to the Company are as under:

a) The Reserve Bank of India (RBF) Act 1934,

b) The Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential
Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007,

¢) Prevention of Money-Laundering Act (PMLA), 2002 and The Prevention of Money-
Laundering (Maintenance of Records, etc.j Rules, 2005.

d) RBI Master Direction on Non-Banking Tinancial Company - Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016.

e) Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs {Reserve Bank) Directions 2016 and

f} The Credit Information Companies (Regulation) Act, 2005

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

{1) Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1} and General
Meetings {5S5-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and made
effective Tst July, 2015),




During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., mentioned above.

[ further report that,
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There were changes in the

composition of the Board of directors that took place during the period under review.

Changes taken place in the Composition of Board of Directors of the Company during the year
under review:

SL. Name of the Designation Date of Appointment/
 No Director Appointment/ Resignation/ ;
: Resignation/ Change in |
- Change in Designation :
" Designation
1. ! Rajamani Managing Director 14-02-2025 Reappointment at
Muthuchamy & CEO j AGM dated July
09, 2024
2 | Mr. Abraham Independent 14-02-2025 Reappointment at
Chacko Director : AGM dated July
: : 09, 2024
3 | Mrs. Rajalakshmi | Independent - 25-03-2024 Appointment by
Ambady Director Board of Directors |
: through Circulation
ON March 25, ‘
) 2024
4 Mrs. Rajalakshmi | Independent - 25-03-2024 Reappointment at
Ambady Director AGM dated July
j 09, 2024 |
5 ¢ Mr. Nirav Mehta | Non-Executive and ¢ 09-01-2025 Resignation ;
Non-Independent | ?
Director

The Board meetings held on 17% May, 2024, 19" June, 2024, 26" July, 2024 and 11" October,
2024 were convened by shorter notice. A system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

As per the Minutes of the Board of Directors duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the
decisions were unanimous, and no dissenting views have been recorded.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rufes, regulations and guidelines.




I further report that during the Audit period under review:

1. During the period under review, The Company has complied with the RBI Master Direction on
Non-Banking Finance Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and
Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016 with the exception that the Leverage
ratic as at March 31, 2025 was 82.82 times as against the requirement of 2.5 times.

! further report that during the period under review the company has allotted —

IR

[

[PS]

Altotment of 6,500 (Six Thousand Five Hundred) rated, Histed, redeemable, non-convertible
debentures each having face value of Rs. 1.00,000/- {Rupees One Lakh) for an aggregate
nominal value of Rs. 65,00,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty-Five Crores) on a private placement basis
to TP Asia VI India Markets PTE Lid.

. Allotment of 3,147 (Five Thousand One Hundred Forty-Seven) unsecured, rated, listed,

redeemable, non-convertible debentures each having face value of Rs. 1,00,000/- (rupees one
fakh) for an aggregate nominal value of Rs. 51,47,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty-One Crores Farty-
Seven Lakh) on a private placement basis to TPG Asia VI India Markets PTE Ltd.

. The Reserve Bank of India vide their letter dated July 29, 2024 has granted in principle

approval for the Merger of Jana Holdings Limited (Transferor Company) with Holding
Company i.e., Jana Capital Limited (Transferee Company). The Company has received No
Objection letter from BSE Limited with respect to the ahove proposed merger on May 22,
2025.

I further report that during the audit period the company has, in compliance with the Act, passed
the below special resolutions at its:

a}. Annual General Meeting held on July (9, 2024:

T

4.

b

Re-appointment of Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy, MD, and CEO for a period of 3 vears
Approval of annual performance increment to Mr, Rajamani Muthuchamy. MD. and CEO.
Approval for re-appointment of Mr. Abraham Chacko as an Independent Director for the
second term of five consecutive years and

Appointment of Mrs. Rajalakshmi Ambady as an Independent Director of the Company.

). Extraordinary General Meeting held on 7" November 2024:

I. Approval for shifting of the Registered office of the Company from the State of Karnataka

to the State of Tamitnadu.



¢). Extraordinary General Meeting held on 05" March 2025:

1. Approval for the issuance of non-convertible debentures/bonds by the company on  a
private placement basis up to Rs. 150 crores.

Nagendra D). Rao

Practising Company Secretary

Membership No. FCS — 5553

Certificate of Practice — 7731

Peer Reviewed Unit

Place :Bengaluru Peer Review Certificate No.: 672/2020
Date  : May 30, 2025 UDIN: FO05553G000517284




Nagendra . Rao, s.com, 118105
Practising Company Secrefary

Secretarial Compliance Report of Jana Capital Limited having Corporate identification
Number U67100TZ2015PCLO33424 (‘the listed entity’) for the financial vear ended 31
March, 2025.

| have examined.

(a) all the documents and records made available to me and explanation provided by Jana
Capital Limited ("the listed entity™),

(b) the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,
(¢) website of the listed entity,

(d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant. which has been relied upon to make this
report, for the year ended 31%' March, 2025 {"Review Period”) in respect of compliance with
the provisions of:

(a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act’) and the Regulations,
circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and

(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1958 ("SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the
Regutations, circutars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (“SEBI");

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder,
have been examined, include: -

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015; {Only Chapter Il and V are applicable to the Company]

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 [Not Applicable]

(¢) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011 [Not Applicabie];

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 [Not
Applicable];

(e} Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021; [Not Applicabie]

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021;

{g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading} Regulations, 2015;

and circulars and guideifines issued thereunder. (R
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and based on the above examination, | hereby report that, during the Review Period:

(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circutars/
guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below:

Sr. |, Compliance | Regu- | Deviali = Action Taken | Type of | Details | Fine I Obger- | Man- | Re-
No | Requirement | lation/ ons i by Aclion Col Amount | vations/ | age- marks
' (Regu- Circular 5 {Advisory | Viofation Remark | ment
i lations/ No. f s of the | Re- :
| circulars/ Clarificali : Practici | sponse
guidelines on/ ng g
including ; Fine/Sho Compa
specific w ny ?
clause) ‘ Cause Secreta
Notice ¢ ry
Marning. (PCSy !
etc)
J— - |
Nil |

(b) The Listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the cbservations made in previous repors,

Sr. | Gbservations/ : Observations | Compliance [ Details of | Remedial | Comments |

No. | Remarks of the | made in the  Requirement | violation ¢ actions, if | of the PCS
| Practicing ! secrelarial | (Regulations/ | deviations and . any, taken | on the !
: Company | compliance ! circutars! | actions taken / by the | actions :
i Secretary in the | report for the ! guidelines . penally . listed taken by the
* previous year ended | including ! imposed, if : entity listed entity

¢ reporis) (PCS) March 31, 2024 | specific clause} | any, on the |
| ! fisted entity

~ Asper Annexure - |

! hereby report that, during the Review Pericd the compliance status of the listed edtity is appended as below:

| B Particulars Compliance | Observations [Remarks by PCS*
No. | Status
E (Yes/Nol NA)

1 | Secretarial Standards:

The compliances of the listed entity are in Yes -
accordance with the applicable Secretarial
Standards {8S) issued by the Instiiute of
© Company Secretaries of india (ICS!).

2 | Adoption and timely updation of the
Paolicies:

« All applicable policies under SEBI Yes
Regulations are adopted with the approval
of board of directors of the lisied entilies

s All the policies are in conformity with Yes
‘ BEBI Regulations and have been reviewed
‘& wupdated on tme, as per the
- reguiations/circulars/guidelines issued by
| SEBI




| Maintenance and  disclosures

. Website:
o The Listed entity
! functional website

is maintaining a

« Timely dissemination of the documents/
- infermation under a separate section on the
- website

"« Web-links provided in annual corporate
- governance reports under Regulation 27(2)
i are accurate and specific which re- directs
} to the refevant document{s)/ section of the
Website.

an

4 1 Disqualiﬁcéﬁéh d'fmlji”r"éé‘tor(s}:

| None of the Director(s) ¢f the Company
isfare disqualified under Section 164 of
' Companies Act, 2013 as confirmed by the
. listed entity.

Yes

Yes

NA

Yes

 Details related to Subsidiaries of lsted

. entities have been examined w.rt.:

(a) Identification of material subsidiary
| companies

{b) Disclosure requirement of material as

well as other subsidiaries

Yes

L crores  on

Jana Holdings Limited is a Wholly |
owned subsidiary of the fisted:
entity. :

Ag per regulation 15{2} as the paid-
up share capital of the listed entity
is fess than Rs. 10 crores and Net
worth does not exceed Rs. 26
the last day of the
previous year, therefore Regulation !
16 is not applicable to the listed :
entity.

The

. Preservation of Documents:

. listed entity fs preserving and
- maintaining records as prescribed under

. SEBI Regulations and disposal of records
| as per Policy of Preservation of Documents
- and Archival policy prescribed under SEBI

! LODR Regulations, 2015.

‘Performance Evaluation:

The listed entity has conducted
performance evaluation of the Board,
Independent Directors and the Committees
at the start of every financial year/during

 the financial year as prescribed in SEB}

! Reguiations.

Yes

NA

Related Party Transactions:

{m) The listed entity has obtained prior
approvat of Audit Committee for all related

. party transactions, or

Yes




{b) The listed entity has provided detailed
reasons along with confirmation whether
the transactions were  subsequently
approvediratified/rejected by the Audit

Commitiee.

Disclosure of events or information:

The listed entity has provided ail the
required disclosure(s} under Regulation 30
along with Schedule il of SEBI LODR
Regulations, 2015 within the time limits
prescribed thereunder

10

Prohibition of insider Trading:

The listed entity is in compliance with
Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) SEB! {Prohibition of
Insider Trading)} Regulations, 2015.

11

Actions taken by SEBI or Stock |

Exchange(s), if any:

No action(s} has been taken against the
isted entity/ is promoters/ directors/
subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock
Exchanges {including under the Standard
Operating Procedures issued by S5SEBI
through wvarious circulars) under SEBI
Regulations and circulars/  guidelines
issued thereunder {or) the action taken
against the listed entity/its
promotersidirectors/subsidiaries either by
SEBI! or by Stock Exchanges are specified

i in the last column.

12

Resignation of statutory auditors from
the listed entity or its material

! subsidiaries:

In case of resignation of statutory auditor
from the listed entity or any of ifs material
subsidiaries during the financial year, the
listed entity and / or #s matenal
subsigiary{ies) has / have complied with
paragraph 6.1 and 6.2 of section V-D of
chapter V of the Master Circular on

' compliance with the provisions of the

LODR Regulations by fisted entities.

NA -
N.A Not Applicable
The listed entity being a High Value
Debt Listed Company, Regulation .
30 is not applicable to the listed
entity.
However, Part B of Schedule lil s
applicable to the listed entity,
Yes -
Yes §No Actions taken by SEBWStock
i exchanges during the period under
- review.
N.A. -




|

13 Additional Non-compliances, if any:

" No additional non-compliance chserved for Yes -
- any SEBI regulation/circular/quidance note
* etc. except as reperted above

.

I further, report that disclosure requirements of Employee Benefits Scheme Documents in terms of
regulation 46 (2) (za) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to the Company.

Assumptions & Limitation of scope and Review:

1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and information
furnished. are the responsibilities of the management of the listed entity

2. Our responsibifity is to report based upen our examination of relevant documents and information.
This is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion.

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial Records and Books of Accounts
of the listed entity.

4 This Repaort is solely for the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation 24A (2) of the
SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and is neither an assurance
as to the future viability of the listed entity nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the listed entity. s

Nagendra D Rac

Practising Company Secretary

Membership No. FCS ~ 5553

Certificate of Practice - 7731

S Peer Reviewed Unit

Place: Bengaluru Peer Review Certificate No,: 672/2020
Date : May 24, 205 UDIN: FOO5553G000429493
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Nagendra D. Rao, s.com LB 505

Practising Company Secrefary

Certificate pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i} of the SEBT
(Lixting Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015

Toa.

The Members.

Jana Capital Limited,

3 Floor, Sri Krishna Towers Sy, No./25R1,
Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East,
Krishnagiri. Hosur - 635109, Tamil Nadu .

I have examined the relevant registers. records. forms and retumns filed, notices and disclosures
received from the Directors, minutes books. other books and papers of Jana Capital Limited having
CIN: U6T100TZ2915PLC033424 and having its present registered office at 3" Floor, Sri Krishna
Towers Sy. No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Krishnagiri, Hosur - 635109,
Famil Nadu.(hereinafter referred 10 as ‘the Company”), produced before me by the Company for the
purpose of issuing this Certificate. in accordance with Reguiation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C
Sub clause 101} of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requiremenis) Regulations. 2015 (fereinafter referred to as ‘the LODR’). as amended from time to
time.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications {inciuding DIN
status at the partal www.mea.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the
Company. its officers. I herchy certify that none of the Directors who were on the Board of the
Company as on 31 March, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as Directors of the Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any other Statutory Authority.

Ensuring the eligibility of every Director on the Board is the respoasibility of the management of the
Company. My responsibility is 10 express an opinicn on these hased on my verification.

[ have conducted necessary verification as much as is appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the cligibility or disqualification of the Directors on the Board of the Company.

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Nagendra D Rao
Practising Company Secretary
Membership No. FCS - 35533
Certificate of Practice ~ 7731
Peer Reviewed Unit

Place : Bengaluru Peer Review Certificate No.: 67272020
Date :May 30% 2023 LIDIN: FOOS553G000517273

Vagdevi®, H43/A, 7th Main, 3rd Cross. 5 L Bhyrappa Roead, Hanumantha Nagar, Bengaluru - 580 1%,
Telephone: U80-2600 2004 Mobile: 99451 7R787. Eomail | nagendradraoigmail com
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- janA JANA CAPITAL LIMITED

CAPITAL CIN: U67100TZ2015PLC033424

Corp Oftice: 71974, Salr Bogh™" Boilding, 4 * Floor, Cormingiean Rosd, Vesnth Nagar, DroAnhodion Yoodn

Buengatuny, Kornataka- 560001

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

In accordance with Regulation 62D({14) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To

The Board of Directors
Jana Capital Limited
Tamil Nadu - 635109

Sub: Compliance Certificate under Regulation 62D(14) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosures Requirements} Regulations, 2015

A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31,
2025 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:
i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading.
ii. these statements fogether present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable iaws and reguilations.
B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company
during the year which are fraudutent, illegal or violative of the listed entity's code of conduct.

C. We accept respensibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and
we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal controt sysiems of the listed entity periaining to
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Audilors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the
design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have
taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee,

i.  Significant changes in internal contro! over financial reporting during the year.
ii. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements; and
iii. instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involverment therein, if
any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the listed entity’s internal

control system over financial reporting.

Rajamani Muthuchamy Srinivas NR

MD & CEQ Chief Financial Officer
{DIN: 08080999)

Place: Bangalore Place:Bangalore
Date: 30/05/2025 Date: 30/05/2025

Reg, Officw: ¥ Floon, Sri Krishea Towers, Sy, No/25B1, Koshoagioi Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosor
Krishnagars - 035109, Varas) Nada
Faail: infofzjeanacapitaleon; web: htiprifanacapitaleodin: Phe +91 95453 65593




No. 204 and 205, 2nd Floor, “Ramanashree Arcads”
Near Trinity Cirde, M.G. Road, Bengalusu - 360 06071,
e-mell | irfo@irecemmarcom | Ph Mo, BOSLL 75818

HRAO & EMMAR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDIA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of JANA CAPITAL LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit
and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act”), read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 , as amended
(“Ind AS™}, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), changes in equity, and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Referring to the Note No. 35 on Capital Management to the Standalone Financial
Statements, the Company is a Non-Barnking Financial Institution - Non-Deposit taking -
Systemically Important Core Investment Company as at March 31, 2025.

a. The Adjusted Net Worth of the Company is 1.21% of its aggregate risk weighted
assets which is less than the limit of minimum 30% specified as per Section Il of
Master Direction DoR (NBFC). PD.003/03.10.119/2016-17 (“The Directions”) dated
August 25, 2016 and subsequently updated as at August 29, 2023; and

b. The outside liabilities of the Company as at March 31, 2025, are 85,22 (the debt-
equity ratio being 82.82) times its adjusted net worth, against the limit of 2.5 times
specified in the Directions.

2. We draw attention to the Company’s investment (Net of Impairment) amounting to Rs.
25,00,978.25 thousand as at March 31, 2025, represented by its investment in its wholly
owned subsidiary, Jana Holding Limited. The Subsidiary Company, Jana Holding
Limited, acts as the Non-Operating Financial Holding Company for Jana Small Finance
Bank Limited (JSFB or the Bank). As per the terms and conditions of the banking license
granted under Section 22 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the NOFHC is required
to comply with paragraph 2(H)(i} of the RBI's Guidelines for Licensing of New Banks in
the Private Seclor dated February 22, 2013. This provision mandates that the NOFHC
mainiain the prescribed regulatory leverage ratio on a standalone basis.

Offices: Bergalury, Defin, Muvbal Emakulany Hyderabad Puttur (DK, Pune, Durg, Kothapur, Shimoga, Indore
Fordaim (Gea), Guashall, Rapw Swal, Bhopal, Rudiapur, Imphal, daipur, Lucknos, Sambalour, Jamshedpur & Ahmedabad.
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For the year ended March 31, 2025, the NOFHC reported a leverage ratio of 2.82 times
as reported by the Independent Auditors of the Subsidiary, which exceeds the regulatory
threshold of 1.25 times. Since the NOFHC is a wholly owned subsidiary, any adverse
consequences arising from this non-compliance at the subsidiary level could directly
impact the Company’s investment in the said Subsidiary. However, the consequential
impact of such non-compliances on the Standalone Financial Statements is
unascertainable, as at the date of reporting.

3. We draw attention to Note 9 to the Standalone Financial Statements, which discloses
the settlement terms of the Non-Convertible Debentures issued by Jana Capital Limited.
Initially, these NCDs were accounted for at amortized cost. However, as per the
communication received from the Debenture Trustee regarding the arrangement of the
debenture terms, that the repayment of these NCDs is contingent upon the realizable
value of the underlying investments, after deducting operational expenses, statutory
liabilities, taxes, and other dues.

Based on the Debenture Trustee's communication and in accordance with Ind AS 109 -
Financial Instruments, the Company has derecognized the carrying amount of the
original financial lability and recognized a new financial liability at the fair value of the
underlying investments. This new liability has been designated as Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss. The resulting difference between the carrying amount of the original
liability and the fair value of the new liability has been recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss as a gain on extinguishment of financial liability, reported as an
exceptional item. The fotal gain recognized from this extinguishment during the current
period amounts to Rs. 22,626,366.10 thousand.

Our audit procedures and the information and explanations obtained indicate that the
Company has based this accounting treatment solely on direct confirmations received
from the Debenture Trustee. However, the Company has not made any changes to the
contractual terms.

In this context, since there have been no changes made to the contractual terms and
the accounting treatment being purely based on the Trustee's confirmation, we are
unable to ascertain the full impact of this accounting treatment on the Company's
financial position. This limitation has led us to qualify our audit opinion.

Had this accounting treatment not been carried out, the Company would have reported
a netloss after tax of Rs. 86,38,753.82 thousand for the year ended March 31, 2025 and
a negative net worth of Rs. 2,25,96,169.22 thousand.

4. The Company has not assessed the impact of deferred tax arising from the temporary
differences related to the gain on extinguishment of the original liability. Since the new
financial liability is designated at fair value through profit or loss and its value changes
in line with the underlying investments, the Company has not yet evaluated the deferred
tax charges or gains in accordance with Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes.

Accordingly, we are unable to evaluate the impact of these adjustments and its subsequent
effects on the Standalone Financial Statements due to the breach of regulatory covenants (refer
to Point 1 & 2 in the Basis for Qualified Opinion), as well as the changes not being made to the
contractual terms {refer to Point 3 in the Basis for Qualified Cpinion).
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We conducted our Audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAF) with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financiat Statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 31 to the Standalone Financial Statements regarding the Going
Concern Basis of Accounting. Further reference is made to Point No. 3 in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph of our Auditor's Report on the Standalone Financial Statements. Additionally,
the Company is in breach of certain regulatory financial parameters as of March 31, 2025, as
detalled in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph. These conditions indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

However, the Company has been raising additional funds as necessary to support its operations
and continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Standalone Financial Statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Emphasis of Matter

1. We draw attention to Note No. 1.1 of the Standalone Financial Statements, which
describes the merger of the Company with its wholly owned Subsidiary, Jana Holdings
Limited.

2. We draw attention to Note No. 30 to the Standalone Financial Statements, wherein it
describes that the Company has issued NCDs on private placement basis to raise
money mainly for redemption of debentures that were falfing due. The said NCDs were
subscribed by the existing investors at an investor IRR of 49% to be accrued annually
as agreed fo in the Debenture trust deed signed between the Company and the
Debenture Trustee. Further, as per the information and expianation provided to us,
under the circumstances existing then, the Company had no option but to agree fo the
said investor IRR of 48% for fulfilling its obligation to redeem NCDs that were falling due
in order to avoid default due to non-repayment. The said investor IRR agreed to is an
outlier and the same is not to be found among the market rates which help discover the
fair value for accounting purposes.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matters.

Gifices: Bengalury, Delly, Mundai Fraahulur, Hyderabad, Pultur (DK Punis. Dure, Kedhanwr, Shimoga, Indore,
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated

in our repori.

Key Audif Matter

Auditor’s Response

Impairment Assessment of Investment in
Equity Shares in the Subsidiary

The investment in the subsidiary is recorded
at cost and is subject to an annual impairment
assessment. As of March 31, 2025, the gross
carrying amount before impairment of the
investment stands at Rs. 23,717,908.08
thousand (Rs. 23,717,908.08 thousand as of
March 31, 2024). Against this, a {otal
impairment allowance of Rs. 21,216,929.83
thousand (Rs. 19,356,795.30 thousand as of
March 31, 2024) has been recognized. The
Investment value, net of impairment is at Rs.
25,00,978.25 thousand as at March 31, 2025
(Rs. 43,61,112.77 thousand as at March 31,
2024).

Basis for Measurement:

The Company’s investments represent shares
held in Jana Holdings Limited (“the
Subsidiary”). The Subsidiary, in turn, has
invested in Jana Small Finance Bank Limited
(“the Associate”). Following the successful
Initial Public Offering (iPO) of the Associate’s
equity shares, which were listed on stock
exchanges effective February 14, 2024, the
Subsidiary’s investments are now valued at
fair market value in accordance with Ind AS in
the Subsidiary’s books. This revaluation has
resulted in an impairment loss recognized in
the Subsidiary’s Standaione Financial results,
which has a consequential impact on the
carrying value of the investment in the
Subsidiary reported by the Company.

The annual impairment testing of the
investment in the Subsidiary is considered a
key audit matter due o the materiality of the
investment to the Company’s financial results.

Cur audit procedures in respect of this Key
Audit Matter included, but were not limited to,
the following:

« Verification of the design,
implementation, and  operating
effectiveness of key internal controls
over the approval, recording, and
monitoring  of  impairment  in
investments.

+« Examination of documentation and
evidence supporting management's
impairment assessment,

» Review and evaluation of the
reasonableness of judgments and
assumptions applied by management
in determining the recoverable
amount of the investment.

+ |dentification and assessment of
impairment indicators in accordance
with applicable accounting standards.

» Assessment of the methodology and
models used by management to
estimate  recoverable  amounts,
including sensitivity analyses on key
assumptions.

+ Testing the accuracy and
completeness of data inputs used in
impairment calcutations.

» Evaluation of the appropriateness of
the impairment loss recognized in the
standalone financial statements.
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Furthermore, the process and methodology * Review of the adequacy and
used to assess and determine the recoverable completeness of disclosures related
amount involve significant management to impairment in accordance with the
judgment and prudence, particularty in applicable accounting framework.
identifying  impairment  indicators  and
estimating recoverable values based on
various assumptions.

Other Information

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors is responsible for the other information.
The Other information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report, but does not
include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conciude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
(including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Offices: Bengalury, Delfy. Tumbai, Ernalalam, Hydaabad, Putur (D0, Pune, Durg, Kethapur, Shiroga, ndore
Potvarim (Goa) Guwahatl, Rapur, Surat, Brhopal, Rudrapur, lrphal, Joipur Lucknow Savhalpur, Jamehedrar & dhimedabad




Mo, 204 and 208, 2nd Flomr, "Ramanashiess Aroade’

RAO & EMMAR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

r Trinity Circle, M.G. Road, Bengalun - 560 007

e aemmancem P Mo, 3

in preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, the management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic altemative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financiat
Statemenis as a whole are free from material misstaterment, whether due fo fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exits,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.
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¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial
Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider
guantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (it) to evaluate the eftect of any identified misstatements
in the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of
the current period and are therefore, the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matier should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reascnably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Audiior's Report) Order, 2020 {"the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
we give in Annexure 'A’; a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and except for the effects of the matters described in Basis for
Qualified Section above, obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our epinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

Offices: Bengalury, Delly, Munha, Brmakulany, Hyderabad, Puttur (0K Pune, Durg, Kolhapur, Shimaga, indors,
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Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion
section here in above, in our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial
Statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act.

The matter described in Basis of Qualified Opinion section here in above and the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section of our report, in our
opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as at
March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Beoard of Directors, none of the Directors
are disqualified as at March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a Director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B". Qur
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the
Standalene Financial Statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Ruies, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position as at March 31, 2025.

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

{a) The Management has represented to us that, {o the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or foaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign enfities (‘Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Offics

Forvorim {(Goal,
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(b} The Management has represented fo us, that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief no funds have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the fike on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii} of Rule 11(e), as provided under {a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared any dividend during the Year.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has
a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance
of audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention,

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given fo us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

For RAO & EMMAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 0030845

B J Praveen

Partner

Membership Number: 215713
UDIN: 252157 13BMJHKT 1040

Bengaluru
30 May 2025.
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"ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading, “Report on Other legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report on even date:

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of
audit, we state that:

i. According to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment
or Intangible Assets. Therefore, the provisions stated under paragraph 3(i) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

ii. a  The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company - Non-Deposit taking,
Systematically Important, Core Investment Company and it does not hold any
physical inventories. Therefore, the provisions stated under clause 3(ii) of the order
are not applicable.

h. As per the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not taken
any working capital lcan by way of providing security on current assets. Accordingly,
the provisions stated under clause 3(iii}b) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

iii. The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to its
directors, firms, companies, or other parties covered under Section 189 of the Companies
Act, 2013, during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated under Paragraph 3(iii) of
the Order, 2020 are not applicable.

iv. The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to
parties covered under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, the
reporting requirements under paragraph 3(iv} of the order is not applicable.

v. The provisions of Sections 73 to 76 and any other relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 {as amended), are
not applicable to the Company being a Non-Banking Financial Company. Further, the
Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor does it hold any amount
considered as deemed deposit within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(v) of the order are not applicable to the
Company.

vi. The Company is not required to maintain cost records under Section 148({1) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3({vi) of the order are not
applicable to the Company.

vii. a. According o the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amcunts deducted/ accrued in the
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, Income-Tax, Service Tax, Cess and any other material statutory dues
have generally been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the
appropriate authorities.
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According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of statutory dues referred in sub clause (a) above were in arrears
as at March 31, 2025, for a period of more than six months from the date they
hecame payable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory

dues referred in sub clause (a) above as at March 31, 2025, which have not been
deposited by the Company on account of disputes except for the following:

Amount in Rs. Thousands

Name of Name of the Amount Amount Period to Forum where
the dues paid under which the the dispute is

Statute Protest amount pending

income Dividend 2,369.61* - AY 2017-18 Income Tax

Tax Act, Distribution Department
1961 ~ Tax

* The original demand order, as referenced above, was received from the Income Tax
Department vide their order dated December 20, 2019, amounting to Rs. 677.03
thousand. Further, the department issued a corrigendum dated January 16, 2025,
wherein the demand amount was revised to Rs. 2,369.61 thousand.

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and records examined by us,
there are no transactions which were not recorded in the books of account and have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the income Tax Act, 1961.

ix. a. Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has borrowings by way of debentures, and there have
been no defaults in repayment of principal or interest to the debenture holders during
the year. However, the debentures falling due for redemption during the year were
repaid by raising additional debentures and not out of the Company's internal
accruals or operational cash flows.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, and in our opinion, the
Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank, financial
institution, or other lender.

c. The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no
outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under
clause 3{ix}(c) of the Order is not applicable.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, we report that the Company has raised working capital facilities
amounting to Rs. 5,50,311 thousand for general corporate purposes. However,
during the year, the said funds were utilized for repayment of debentures which had
become due during the year.

Offices: Bengaiuru, Delly, Murhas, Emadulam, Hedarabad, Puthur (DK, Pune, Durg, Kolhapr, Shimoga, Indore,
Foreonm (Goay, Guwahal, Reapw, Sural, Bhope!, Rudrapur, mphel, Jaipur, Lucknow, Sambalpur, Jemshedpur & Abevedabad




Mo, 204 and 205, 2ad Flows, "Ramanashres Arcads”
Wear Trinity Cirde. MG, Read, Bengalung - 380

HAO & FEMMAR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS .

- ) 1 3 P y o s
INDI ;S\ . e~ L infefy rasemmar om | PR Mo, 80500 TRRE

It is noted that these debentures were originally raised for the purpose of making
investments in the subsidiary, and hence, such utilization is considered as for capital
purposes. However, the same was repaid as at March 31, 2025.

e. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that, during the
year, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of
or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

f.  According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed
by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge
of securities held in its subsidiaries or associate company.

x. a. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause x(a} of the Order are not applicable. However, it is noted that the Company
has issued Non-Convertible Debentures during the year to meet the obligations for
redemption of debentures that were falling due during the year.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
made any preferential aliotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly,
provisions stated under clause x(b) of the order are not applicable.

xi. a. Based upon the audit procedures performed by us and according to the information
and explanation provided to us by the Management, no fraud by the Company or no
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported to us during the year.

b. According to information and explanation provided fo us and based on our
examination of records, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during
the year and up to the date of this report.

c. According to information and explanation provided to us and based on our audit
procedures and enguiry with the vigil mechanism committee, there were no
complaints received during the year.

xii, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting on clause 3 (xii) (a), (b} & {(c) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with related parties are in
compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the details
of transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as
required by Ind AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ to the extent applicable to
Government companies. Refer Note 23 to the Standalone Financial Statements.
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Xiv.

Xv.

xvi.

xvii.

a. According to the information and explanations given to vs and in our opinion, the
Company has an internat audit system commensurate with the size and nature of ils
business.

b. We have considered, the Internal Audit reports, issued to the Company during the
year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures.

According fo the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with them during the year.
Accordingly, reporting on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

a. The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 and has obtained registration as a non-deposit taking
Systematically tmportant Core Investment Company (NBFC-ND-SI-CIC) from the
Reserve Bank of India.

b. The Company has not carried out any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities during the year without obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration from the
Reserve Bank of India.

c. The Company continues to fulfill the criteria of a Core Investment Company as
prescribed under the Reserve Bank of India regulations and maintains its registration
as a Systematically Important Core Investment Company except for the breach of
regulatory requirements as reported by us under the Basis for Qualified Opinion Para
of independent Auditor's Report.

d. Based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Group has only one
Core Investment Company as part of the Group.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year. However, in the
immediately preceding financial year, the Company incurred cash losses amounting to
Rs. 575.30 crores. We note that interest accrued on debentures during the previous year
forms part of the cash losses for that year and is due and payable at the time of
redemption of such debentures. Further, reference is drawn to Point No. 3 in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion paragraph of our report, wherein we have qualified the Company’s
accounting treatment of debentures and the consequent net loss and a negative net
worth,

xviit. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,

XiX,

reporting on clause 3 {xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the financial ratios, ageing schedules, expected realization of financial
assets, payment of financial liabilities, and other relevant information, nothing has come
to our attention that causes us to believe that the Company will be unable to meet its
liabilities as and when they fail due within one year from the balance sheet date.

Offices: Bengalury, Delke, Murbai Emaladars, Hederabad, Puttur (DK, Pune, Durg, Kothapur, Shimoga, Indore,
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We draw attention to Note 31 to the Standalone Financial Statements regarding the Going
Concern Basis of Accounting. Further reference is made to Point No. 3 in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion paragraph of our Auditor's Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements.

Additionally, the Company is in breach of certain regulatory financial parameters as of
March 31, 2025, as detailed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

These matters indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. However, the Company
has been raising additional funds as necessary to support its operations and continue
as a going concern. Accordingly, the Standalone Financial Statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

XX. The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Corporate Social
Responsibility are not applicable to the Company for the year under audit.
Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(xx) of the Order are not applicable.

For RAO & EMMAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 0030843

B J Praveen

Partner

Membership Number: 215713
UDIN: 25215713BMJHKT1040

Bengaluru
30 May 2025
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"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 2 (g) under the heading, “Report on Other legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report on even date:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”).

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial
Statements of JANA CAPITAL LIMITED (‘the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction
with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that

date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence o Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference o the Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Coentrols Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
ptan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone
Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controis with
reference to the Standalone Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal controls
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained by us, in terms of their reports, is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements.

Offices: Bengalury, Delhi. Mumbay, Emakulam, Hyderabad, Putte (0K, Pune, Durg, Kolhapur, Shimoga, indore,
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Meaning of Internal Financial controls with reference fo the Standalone Financial
Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to the Standalene Financial Statements is
a process designed o provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference
to the Standalone Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) Pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) Provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary {0 permit preparation of Standalone Financial
Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations’ of
Management and directors of the Company; and (3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Staterments.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Standalone
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone
Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper Management override of
conirols, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone
Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controis
with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures ay
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internai financial controls with
reference to the Standalone Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to the Standalone Financial Statements were operating efectively as at March 31,
2025, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls QOver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.
For RAO & EMMAR

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 0030845

B J Praveen

Partner

Membership Number: 215713
UDIN: 25215713BMJHKT1040

Bengaluru
30 May 2025
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JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U67100TZ2015PLC033424
Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, $ri Krishna Towers, Sy. Na,/25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109,
Tamil Nadu
(All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
{Rs. In thousands)

particul Mote As at As at
articutaes 31-March-2025  31-March-2024
ASSETS
{1) Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash eguivalent 3(i) 1,00,552.65 12,975.64
(b) Bank Balance other than (a) above 3(ii) 7.44 7.44
{c} Investments 4 25,00,578.25 43,61,112.77
(dy Other financial assets 5 1,755.47 1,711.64
{2} Nen- Financial Assets
(a}) Current Tax Assets ] 231.34 1,15,184.48
{b) Other Non Financial Assets 7 177.00 196.40
Total Assets 26,03,702.15 44,91,188.37
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1} Financial Liabitities
(2) Trade Payables
{i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises -
(i} total outstanding dues of creditors other
thar micro enterprises and smail enterprises 8 - .
(b)Y Debt securities 9 25,00,978.15 1,84,47,9B7.13
{c) Other financial lizbilities 10 330.00 330.00
{2) Nen-Financial Liabilities
(a} Other non-financial liabilities 11 72,197.02 286.63
{3) EQUNY .
(a) Equity share capital 12 27,041.81 27,041.81
(b} Other equity 13 3,1556.07 (1,39,84,457.20}
Total Liabilities and Equity 26,03,702.15 44,91,188,37
Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 1-49
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For RAQ & EMMAR Jana Capital Limited

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 0030845
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B.J PRAVEEN Rajamani Muthuchamy Ramesh Ramanathan
Partner Managing Director and CEC Chairman
Membership No: 215713 DIN:080509%% CIN:00163276
Piace: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaturu
Date: 30-May-2025 Date: 30-May-2025 Date: 30-May-2025
@ WA e 2
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Srinivas NR Krishi Jain

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: 30-may-2025 Date: 30G-May-2025




JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U67100TZ2015PLC033424
Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, $ri Krishna Towers, 5y, No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109,

Famil Nadu
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

{Rs. In thousands)

: For the year ended For the year ended

St No. |Particulars Note 31-March-2025 11.March-2024

Revenue from Operations
(i} Interest Income 14 11,352.00
(i Gain from purchase of securities - 98,98,214.75
[} Total Revenue from Operations - 99,09,566.75
[(1)] Other Income 15 6,271.52 150.93
(1 Total income {1+11} 4,271,52 99,09,717.48

Expenses
{i) Finance costs 1& 67,58,626.34 46,91,156.51

impairment Loss / (fmpairment Loss Reversal} on
(i1} finzncial instrumen(ts ’ } 17 18,60,134.52 8,17,829.18
{ili} Employee benefits expense 18 5,421.61 5,941.47
(iv) Depreciation and amaortization - -
{v}) CSR expenditure 19 - -
{vi) Gthers expenses 20 10,842 .87 1,09,65,716.82
(V) Total Expenses {IV) 86,45,025 34 2,04,80,638.96
vy Profit / {Loss) before exceptional items and tax {lii -IV) (86,38,753.82) (1,05,70,921.29)
¥ Exceptional ftems 9 2,26,26,366.10 -
{Vil}  Profit / {Loss} after exceptional items and before tax (V -VI) 1,39,87,612.27 {1,0%,70,921.29)
(Vi) Tax Expense:

1) Current Tax -

(2) Deferred Tax -
{ix) Profit 7 {Loss) for the year {V-VI) 1,39,87,612.27 (1,05,70,921.29)
*X) Other Comprehensive Income

(A) (i} ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -

Subtotal (A) R

(B) i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or {oss

{ii) Income tax relating to items that wilt be

reclassified to profit or loss . .

Subtotal (B) -

Other Comprehensive Income (A + B) -
{Xl}  Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the period 1,39,87,612.27 {1,05,70,921.29)

¢

(VH+VIE)

Earnings per equity share
Basic (Rs.)

Diluted (Rs.}

Summary of significant accounting policies

21

5,172.59
5,172.59

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Tinancial statements

As per our report of even date

For RAD & EMMAR
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Ko.: 003084S

.\ ; -

B.J PRAVEER

Partner

Membership No: 215713
Place: Bengaluru

Date; 30-May-2025

(3,909.19)
{3,909.10)

1-49

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Jana Capital Limited

Maprs  Fibs

Rajamani Muthuchamy
Managing Director and CEQ
DIN:0B0809%9

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 30-May-2025

Ramesh Ramanathan
Chairman
DIN:00163276

Place; Bengaluru
Date: 30-May-2025

WA

Krishi Jain
Company Secretary
Ptace: Bengaturu
Date: 30-May-2025

Srinivas NR

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bengaluru
Date: 30-May-2025



JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U67100TZ2015PLCO33424

Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109, Tamil

Nadu

(All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Rs. In thousands)

Particulars

Year ended
31-March-2025

Year ended
31-March-2024

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit / {Loss) for the year
Adjustments for:

Impairment loss on financial instruments (net of reversals)

Exceptional ftems

Interest payable on debentures

Loan processsing fees

Short term loan interest

Interest Income from Fixed Deposits

Income from purchase of securities

Income from NCD Holdings

Interest Income on IT Refund

Operating Loss before working capital changes and adjustments

Changes in working capital

(Decrease} / Increase in other financial liabilities
{Decrease} / Increase in other non-financial liabilities
Decrease/ (increase) in other financial assets
Decrease/ (increase) in Current Tax assets

Decrease/ (increase) in other Non financial assets
Cash used in operations before adjustments

Taxes paid

Interest Income on IT Refund

Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities (A)

Cash flow fram Investing activities

Investment in subsidiary

Creation of Fixed Deposits

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B}

Cash flow from Financing activities
tnterest on short term borrowings

Loan processing fees paid

Income received from purchase of securities
Net Proceeds from Debt securities issued
NCD Capitalised on new issue

Interest on debentures paid

Redemption of NCD's due {Principal armount}
Interest Received from Fixed Deposits

Net cash flow from financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+8+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Balances with banks

On current accounts
Total cash and bank balances at end of the year

1,39,87,612.27

18,60,134.52
(2,26,26,366.10)
67,49,431.14
8,850.00

345.21
(2,455.88)

{3,815.64)

{1,05,70,921.29}

48,17,824.16
45,87,628.26
89,794.00
13,734.35
(146.50)
(98,98,214.75)
(1%,352.00)
{4.43)

(26,264.47)

(1,09,71,658.29)

- (180.00)
71,910.40 215.75
(43.83) (1,335.53)
1,14,953.14 {1,15,184.48)
19.40 30.96
1,60,574.63 (1,10,88,111.59)
R (1,92,705.88)
3,815.64 4.43

1,64,390.27

(1,12,80,813.03)

(91,67,584.93)

(91,67,584.93)

(345.21)
(8,850.00)

11,64,700.00

(13,734.25)

(89,794.00)
98,98,214.75
1,32,57,450.85

(420.99) -
(3,01,079.95) (2,56,672.22)
{2,33,272.99) (23,35,327.78)

2,455.88 149.01
(76,813.25) 7,04,60,286.37
87,577.01 11,888.40
12,975.64 1,087.24
1,00,552.65 12,975.64
1,00,552.65 12,975.64
1,00,552.65 12,975.64




JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U67100TZ2015PLLO33424

Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109, Tamil
Nadu

(All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Statement of Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Rs. In thousands)

Year ended Year ended

Particulars
31-March-2025 31-March-2024

Continued...
Susamary of significant accounting poticies

Mote 1: During the year, debentures worth Rs. 22,62,63,66,100 were reduced based on the confirmation received from the debenture
trustee that the redemption of the debentures woutd be payable only to the extent of the realizable value of the investments heid by
the Company. However, since this is a non-cash item, it shall not have any impact on the Cash Flow Statement and is disclosed
separately in this note.

Mote: 2. The total interest expense of the Company during the year is added back in the adjustment section cf the Cash Flow
Statement; however, the interest and principal amounts paid are separately disclosed in the financing activities section.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fipancial statements 1-49

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Jana Capital Limited

For RAG & EMMAR

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No.: 0030845 W %

\ . Rajamani Muthuchamy Ramesh Ramanathan
Managing Director and CEQ Chairman

DIN:G8080999 DIN:O0163276
B.J PRAVEEN Ptace: Bengaluru Flace: Bengaluru
Partner Date: 30-May-2025 Date: 30-May-2025

Membership No: 215713
Place: Bengaluru

©

. LA -~
Date: 30-May-2025 @ e .
Foe N
Srinivas NR Krishi Jain
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: 30-May-2025 Date: 30-May-2025



JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U67100TZ2013PLL033424

Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, 5ri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur,
Tamil Nadu

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity fer the year ended 31 March 2025
A) Equity Share Capital

Krishnagiri- 635109,

(Rs. In thousands)

Particuiars Amount
Balance as at 01 April 2023 27,041.81
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors -
Balance as at 01 April 2023 27,041.81
Changes in equity share capital during the current year -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 27,041.81
Balance as at 01 April 2024 27.,041.81
Changes in eguity share capital due to prior period errors .
Balance as at 01 April 2024 27,041.81
Changes in equity share capital during the current pericd -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 27,041.81
B) Other Eouity
Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Sequrities Premivum ;Statutory Reserve Retal.ned Total
Earnings
Balance as at 01 Aprit 2023 1,22,54,702.28 8,940.77 {1,56,77,178.96) (34,13,535.92)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period .
errors
Restated balance as at 01 April 2023 1,22,54,702.28 8,940.77 (1,56,77,178.96) (14,13,535.92)
Tota_ﬁ Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the B . (4.05,70,921.29) (1,05,70,921.29)
previous year
Dividends
Transfer to retained earnings - . - .
Balance at at 31 March 2024 1,22,54,702.28 8,940.77 (2,62,48,100.25) (1,39,84,457.20)
Balance as at 01 April 2024 1,22,54,702.28 8,940,77 (2,62,48,100.25) (1,39,84,457.20}
Changes in accounting policy or prior period ;
errors
Restated balance as at 01 April 2024 1,221,54,702.28 8,940.77 {Z,62,48,100.25) (1,39,84,457.20)
Is:?éniogziehens1ve Income / (Loss) for the i i 1,39.87.612.27 1,39,87,612.27
Dividends - .
Fransfer from/to statutory reserves 27,97,522.45 {27,97,522.45)
Transfer to retained earnings - . -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 1,22,54,702.28 28,06,463.22 (1,50,58,010.43) 3,155.07
Summary of significant accounting pelicies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 1-49
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Notes to the standalene financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
Company Qverview
1.1 Reporting Entity

The Company was incorporated on March 26, 2015 to carry on the business of an lnvestment Company and to invest, buy, sell,
transfer, deal in and dispose of any shares, stocks, debentures, whether perpetual or redeemable debentures, stocks,
securities of any Government, Local, Authority, Bonds and Certificates. The Company received a certificate of registration
dated 24 March 2017 from the Reserve Bank of India as a Non-Banking Financial Institution - Non-Deposit taking - Systemically

Important Core Investment Company ("NBFC-CIC-ND-SI") under section 451A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

The company holds 100% investments in its wholly owned subsidiary company - Jana Holdings Limited {the {ompany). The

wholly owned subsidiary company holds 22.54% of Equity shares in Jana Smali Finance Bank being the Associate company.

The Board at fts meeting held on October 21, 2019, and December 09, 2019, approved fast-track method for merging Jana
Holdings Limited (JHL}, being the whally owned Non-Operating Finantial Holding Company {NOFHC), with its Holding as well as
Core Investment Company, Jana Capital Limited, after receiving the In-principle approval from the RRI on 10th August 2020, As
per the existing guidelines, the requiremnent of having a NOFHC has been dispensed with by the RBI for setting up small finance
Banks and Universzal Banks. Further, such a merger of the wholly owned subsidiary with the Holding Company will simplify the
compliances reported to various Regulatory Authorities, besides resulting in lower operating costs. After the receipt of the in-
principle approval from the RBL, the Board of Directors of the transferor and the Transferee Companies met on 24th August
2070 and approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of Jana Holdings Limited (Wholly Owned subsidlary) with Jana capital

Limited (Holding Company).

Jana Capital limited, transferee Company, submitted necessary application to the Regional Director, South-East Region,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Hyderabad, on 6th November 2020 for obtaining approval of Amalgamation under Section 233 of

the Companies Act, 2013. Regional Director, Ministry of Company Affairs, Hyderabad, vide letter dated 26th March 2021

reiected the application filed on 6th November 2020 for the merger of JHL with JCL, since JHL had obtained consent from the
creditors to the extent of 82.78% in value as against the minimum threshold of consent from 90% of the creditors in value as
required under Section 233 of the Companies Act, 2013 and, as such, the provisions of Section 233{1){d} could not be fully
complied with. The Board of Directors considered the aforesaid rejection order and resolved to file fresh merger application
subject to the approval of the Scheme by the Board of Directors, Shareholders, Creditors, and such other authorities as may be
required. Accordingly, the Board of directors of both Jana Holdings timited and Jana Capital Limited on November 14, 2072,
have once again appreved the scheme of amalgamation and resolved to apply afresh for the merger of the company with Jana
Capital Limited, the Holding Company. In line with the decision of the Board of Directors, the company has taken steps to

obtain affidavit in the prescribed Formats from the creditors and shareholders for the merger.

However, the Company, in the meanwhile, received a request from Jana Small Finance Bank Limited (JSFBJ regarding the

merger and, due to certain commercial considerations, the Company has decided to put the merger on bold till the listing

The Company received the In-principle approval afresh from RBI on July 29, 2024, Further, in order to mitigate the stamp duty
implications associated with the approval of the merger scheme by the NCLT, the Campany shifted its registered office from
the State of Karnataka to the State of Tamil Nadu w.e.f. January 24, 2025, basis the approval of the Regional Director South
East Region, Hyderabad, Ministry of Corporate Affair and other regulatory approvats and consequently the Clause it of the

Memorandum of Association of the Company was altered to that extent,

The Beard re-approved the draft scheme of amalgamation on February 3, 2025, as the previous approval was dated. The
Company has obtained the consent from all the shareholders and debenture holders in the prescribed format. The Company

received the No-objection letter from BSE on May 22, 2025. The application to NCLT will be submitted in due course.

1.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015, as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2016, notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act™}, other relevant provisions of the Act, guidelines issued

by the Reserve Bank of india as applicable to a CICs and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly tssued Ind AS is initially adopted or a revision to an
existing Ind AS required a change in the accounting poticy hitherto in use. The standalone financial statements for the year

ended March 31, 2025 were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors (BOD} on 30-May-2025.

1.3 Presentation of Standalone Financial Statements
The Standalone Batance Sheet, Statement of Standalone Profit and Loss and Statement of Standalone Changes in Equity are
prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division Il of Schedute I of the Companies Act, 2013 {the ‘Act’). The

Statement of Standalone Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS.

A summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information is in accordance with the Companies
(Indiar Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as specified under Section 132 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) including

applicable Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) and accounting principles generally accepted in India.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported
net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being

contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settie on a net basis.
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1.4 Functionat and Presentation currency

1,

These Ind AS Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees in thousands (Rs.}, which is also the Company’s functienal
currency. Al amounts are rounded off to the nearest thousznds, unless atherwise indicated.

5 Basis of measurement
The nen financial items of the financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, however the financial items
of the financial statements have been prepared on a fair vailuation basis in line with IND AS 109 (read with IND AS 113).

1,6 Significant areas of estimation, critical judgments and assumptions in applyirg accounting poficies

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and iiabilities, and the accorrpanying disclosures,
as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. The Company’s management belfeves that the estimates used in preparation
of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of the
changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Any changes in the accounting estimates are reflected in the period in
which such change in circumstances are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financiat

statements.

The key estimates and assumptions used in preparation of financial statements are;
Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments fs the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions
{i.e., an exit price) regardtess of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active
markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation technigues that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to items,

Significant accounting pelicies

The Company has applied the fellowing accounting policies to all periods presented in these financial statements.
Revenue recognition

Dividend is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Financiaf assets and liabitities
Financial assets

Initial recogniticn and measurement
Except for items at fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL), all financial assets are recognized initially at fair value pius or
minus transaction costs that are directly attributable and incremental to the origination/acquisition of the financiat asset.

Non-derivative financial instruments

Financiat assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to coliect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest outstanding on the principal amount outstanding {SPPJ),
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Amaortized
cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR
and reported as part of interest income in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The losses, if any, arising from impairment are
recognized in the Statement of Profit or (oss,

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is measured at FYOC| only if # meets both of the fellowing conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
- the asset is held within a business model whose abjective s achieved by both coliecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI,
The loss allowance is recognized in other comprehensive income and does not reduce the carrying value of the financial asset.
When the financial asset is derecognized the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVYPL)

Any financiat instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified to
be measured at FVTPL,

In addition, the Company may also elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is done only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch').

Debt instruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in profit or loss.

Classification and subsequent measurement
The Company classifies its financial assets as subseguently measured at either amortized cost or fair value based on the
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Except for items at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL), all financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus or
iminus transaction costs that are divectly attributable and incremental to the issue of the financial Habilities.

Subsequent measurement

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost except for financial tiabilities at FYTPL. Such liabilities
inctuding derivatives that are Habitities are subsequently measured at fair value,

De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized when

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation te pay the received
cash flows in full without materiat delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantiaily atl the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred controt of the asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset {or the carrying amount
allocated to the portion of the asset derecognized) and the consideration received {inctuding any new asset obtained less any
new liahility assumed) shall be recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

The Company derecognizes a financial liabiiity when its contractual cbligations are discharged or cancelled, or expired.
Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

financial assets

if the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the madified asset are
substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows frem the original
financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognized and a new financial asset
is recegnized at fair value adjusted for any eligible transaction costs.

H the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the modification does not
result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset and recognizes the amount arising from adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in Statement
of profit or loss.

Financial tiabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are
substantially different. In this case, a new firancial tability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with medified
terms is recognized in statement of profif or lgss.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the statement af financial position when
the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends to settle on net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
{iability simultaneousty.

Fair value measurement

‘Fair value” is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the
Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When one is available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for
that instrament. A market is regarded as 'active’ if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency
and volume to provide pricing information on an ongeing basis,

i there is no guoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant
observabte tnputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chasen valuation technigue incorporates ali of the factors
that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction,
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Provisions and contingencies refated to claims, fitigation, etc.
A provisicn is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation {legal er constructive) that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisians are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used 1o determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due o the passage of time is recognised as finance cost.

Onergus contracts
A contract is considered as onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company from the contract are
lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is
measured at the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the
cantract. Before & provision is established, the Company recognizes any impairment {oss on the assets associated with that
contract.

Contingencies related to claims, litigation, etc,
Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc., are recognised when
it s probable that a liability has been incurred, and the amount can be estimated reliably. Provisions are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources
would be required to settie the obligation, the provision is reversed.
Income taxes

income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the
extent that it retates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in other comarehensive income.

Current tax:
Current tax is measured al the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income for the year in accordance with the
Income Tax Act, 1961, Current tax comprises the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year and any adjustment
to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. i is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

a) has a legally enforceable right 1o set off the recognized amounts; and

b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simuitaneously,

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and its tax base.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and, based on management’s judgment, are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of
future taxable profits impreves.
Unrecognized deferred tax assels are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will be availabie against which they can be used.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company

expects, at the balance sheet date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
The effect of changes in the tax rates on deferred tax assets and Habilities is recognised as income or expense in the periog
that includes the enactment or substantive enactment date.

Geferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

a) the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

b} the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

Earnings per share
The Company presents basic and dituted earning per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss that is attributable to erdinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted-average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss that is attributable te ordinary shareholders and the
weighted-average number of ordinary shares cutstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, except
where the results are anti-dilutive,
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include balance with banks and fixed deposits with an original maturity of three months or tess.
Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the balance sheet.
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vii. Statement of cash fiows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect methad, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of
non-cash transactions, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of expenses
asscciated with investing or financing cash flaws, The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated. For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, Cash and cash equivalents include

hank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

vili. Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises impairment aliowances for £xpected Credit Loss {(ECL} on all the financial assets that are not

measured at FVTPL:

ECL are probabitity weighted estimate of future credit losses based on the staging of the financial asset to reflect its credit

risk, They are measured as follows:

= Financial assets that are not credit impaired - as the present values of all cash shortfalls that are possible within 12 months

after the reporting date.

« Financial assets with significant increase in credit risk but not credit impaired - as the present values of all cash shortfalls

that resuit from all possible default events over the expected life of the financiat asset.

» Financial assets that are credit impaired - as the difference between the gross carrying amount and the present vaiue of

estimated cash flows

Financial assets are fully provided for or written off (either partially or in full} when there is no reasonalle expectation of

recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof,

The Company accounts for investments in subsidiary at cost and tests for impairment at each reporting date. At each reporting
date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are impaired. The financial assets are tested
for impairment and impatrment losses are incurred #, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
ar more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the net investment (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event {or events)

has an impact on the estimated future cash flows from the net investment that can be reliably estimated.

Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses whose results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s chief operating decision maker (CCDM) to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial

informaticn is available.

Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items that are directly attributable to a segment as well as those that

can be allocated on 2 reasonabte basis.

Change in registered office address

The company has changed its registered office address during the year after filing necessary forms with the ROC from former
address "2nd Floor, No. 8G, 5th Cross, 4th Main, Maruthi Extension Bangaiore 560021" to the current address "3rd Floor, Sri

Krishna Towers, Sy. No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109, Tamit Nadu.”
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{Rs. In thousands)

3 Cash and Cash Equivalents As at As at
31-March-2025 31-March-2024
Cash on hand - .
Balances with banks in current accounts 10,492.54 2,973.11
Fixed Deposits with bank 90,060.190 10,002.53
Total ()] 1,00,552.65 12,975.64

Bank Balance cther than cash and cash equivalent

Other bank balances 7.44 7.44
Total other bank balances ) 7.44 7.44
Total Cash and bank balances (1+11) 1,00,560.09 12,983,.08

Cash and cash equivalents and Bank balance

The Company holds cask and cash equivalents and bank balance of Rs.1,00,552.65 thousands as at 31 March 2025 (31 March
2024; Rs. 12,975.64 thousands). The cash and cash eguivalents are held with bank and financial institutions counterparties with
acceptable credit ratings and includes interest receivable on fixed deposits,

Other bank balances represents amount held towards Debenture subscription account amounting to Rs. 7.44 thousands as at 31
March 2025 (31 March 2024: Rs. 7.44 thousands).

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following;

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

On current accounts 10,492.54 2,573.11

Pepeosits placed with bank 90,060.10 10,002.53
Cash on hand - -
Sub Totat 1,00,552.65 12,975.64
Less: Bank overdrafts - -
Total 1,00,552.65 12,975.64

The Company has not taken bark overdraft, therefore the cash and cash equivatent for statement of cash flow is same as cash
and cash equivalent given above.
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(Rs.

In thousands)

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars

At Fair Value

Through Other

At Fair Value

Through Other

At Cost Comprehensiv Through At Cost Comprehensiv Through
P Profit or Loss P Profit or Loss
e Income e Income
1 2 3 4 5 4

Equity instruments

Jana Holdings Limited (Subsidiary)*
Unqueted {fully paid-up of Rs. 10/-
each)

2,37,17,908.08

1,45,38,971.14

Add : Investments during the year

91,78,936.93

Totat - Gross (A}

2,37,17,908.08

2,37,17,908.08

{i} investments outside India

(i} Investments in India

2,37,17,908.08

2,37,17,908.08

Total (B)

2,37,17,908.08

2.37,17,908.08

Less: Allowance for Net
Impairment loss (C )

2,12,16,929.83

1,93,56,795.30

Total - Net €= (A)-{C)

25,00,978.25

43,61,4112.77

* Management of the company has elected the to avail the exemption as per Ind AS 101 and measures the investment at Deemed cost i.e
previous IGAAP carrying amount as on the Ing AS transition date i.e. April 01, 2017,
# Based on the para 12 of Ind AS 36, there is an objective evidence of Impairment based on the observable data with respect to investment
made by the company in Jana Holdings Limited (JHL) based on the below mentioned factors:

i.The Company has invested in Jana Holdings Limited (JHL) [Wholly owned subsidiary] which is registered as Non Banking Financial Company -
Mon Operating Financial Holding Company (NOFHC") and JHL hetds investments only in Jana Smatl Finance Bank (JSFB} {"the Bank”).

The Entity had performed the Impairment test for its investments in wholly owned subsidiary entity - Jana Holdings Limited as on March 31,
2025 and accordingly impairment loss has been recognised for the year ended March 31, 2025 amounting to INR 18,60,134.52 thousands.

ii. JHL has reported a Net Loss of INR 18,60,134.52 thousands during the year April-2024 to March-2025.
iti. The value per share of JHL shares for the year ended 31 March 2025 has been determined as INR 109.17 per share post recognition of
reversal of impairment loss by the company for the year ended March 31, 2025,

(Rs. In thousands)
Number of shares Value per Share Amount
As at As at As at As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2025 2024 2025 2025 2025 2025
Investments in Eguity Instruments 2,29,09,906 2,29,09,906 109.17 190.36| 25,00,978.25| 43,61,112.77

Jana Holdings Limited {(Wholly
gwned subsidiary)* Unquoted (fully
paid-up of Rs. 10/- each)
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Other financial assets
Security Deposits
Other Receivables
Total

Current Tax Assets
TDS receivable

Other Non-financial assets
Prepaid Expenses

(Rs. Ir thousands)

As at As at
31-March-2025 31-March-2024
1,755.47 1,704.00

- 7.64

1,755,47 1,711.64

As at As at
31-March-2025 31-March-2024
231.34 1,15,184.48
231.34 1,15,184.48
As at As at
31-March-~2025 31-March-2024
177.00 196.40

177.00 196.40
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{Rs. In thousands)
8 Trade Payables As at As at
31-March-2025  31-March-2024

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(b} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and smalf
enterprises

Based on the information available with the Company, there are no cutstanding dues and payments made to any supplier of
goods and services beyond the specified period under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 [MSMED
Act]. There is no interest payable or paid to any suppliers under the said Act.

Ageing schedule of trade payables (Rs. In thousands)

Qutstanding from the due date of payment Total
As at 31 March 2025 Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
year

Micro, small and medium enterprises

Others - - -

Disputed dues — MSME - - R

Disputed dues — Others - - - B .

Outstanding from the due date of payment Totat
As at 31 March 2024 Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
year

Micro, small and medium enterprises

Others . . - - R

Disputed dues — MSME - - . B B
Disputed dues — Others - - - . R
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JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U67100TZ2015PLLC0I3424

Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, 5ri Krishna Towers, Sy. Na./Z5B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109, Tamil Madu

(All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
MNotes to the standafone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

12 Equity Share capital

Authorized *

As at
31-March-2025

(Rs. In thousands}

As at
31-March-2024

Equity Share Capital {As at 31 March 2025-Rs,3,00,00,000 (33,080,000 £quity 30,000.00 30,000,530

shares at par value of Rs.10 each}, As at 31 March 2024 : Rs.3,00,00,000

{30,00,000 Equity shares at par vatue of Rs. 10 each)”

Total 30,000.00 30,000.00

Essued, subscribed ang paid up

Equity Share Capital (As at 31 March 2025-Rs.2,70,41,840 (27,04,181 Equity 27.041.81 27,041.81

shares at par value of Rs.40 eachj, (As at 31 March 2024 : Rs.2,70,41 810

{27,04,181 Equity shares at par value of Rs.10 each)”

Total 17,041.81 27,041.81
(a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning As at 31-March-2025 As at 31-March-2024

and at the end of the year Number of Amount Number of shares Amaount

shares

Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 27,04,181 27,041.81 27.04,181 27,041.81

Add: tssued during the year - - - -

CGutstanding at the end of the year 27,04 181 27,041.81 27,004,181 27,041.81

{b)

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of T 10/- each. Each hotder of equity share is entitled to one vote per
share.

The Company declares and pays dividend on equity shares in Indian rupees. The dividend propesed by the Board of Directors is subject to
the approvat of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. The company has not declared
any dividend during the current FY 2024-25.

in the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the assets of the Company. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the equity shareholders.

{c) Details of shares held by shareholders hotding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
As at 3t-March-2025 As at 31-March-2024
Name of the shareholder Number of | % of holding Number of shares % of holding in the
shares in the class class
Equity Shares

Jana Urban Foundation 11,87, 746 43,92% 11,87,746 43.92%

TPG Asia VI SF Pte Ltd 5,40,574 19.99% 5,40,574 19.99%

Caladium Investment Pte. Ltd 5,40,574 19.99% 5,40,574 19.99%

Merth Haven Private Equity Asia Platinum Pte Ltd 2,35,656 8.71% 2,359,656 8.71%

QRG Investments and Holdings Limited 1,72,02% 6.36% 1,72,025 6.36%

Shares allotted as fully paid-up without payment being received in cash / by way of bonus shares:
The Company has not issued bonus shares or shares for consideration other than cash during the five year period immediately preceding the
reporting date.

Name of promoter* As at 31-March-2025

Ko. of shares
at the end of
the year

No. of shares at
the beginning of
the year

Changes during
the year

% change during the
year

% of Total shares

Jana Urban Foundation 11,87,746 - 11,87,746 43.92% 0.00%

Ramesh Ramanathan 1 - 1 0.00% C.00%




JANA CAPITAL LIMITED

CIN: U67100TZ2015PLC0O33424

Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109, Tamil Nadu

(a)

{b)

(c)

(a}

®)

(c}

)

(All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

{Rs. In thousands)

Name of promoter*

As at 31-March-2024

No. of sha t .
shares a Changes during

No. of shares

% change during the

the beginning of| at the end of |% of Total shares
the year year
the year the year
Jana Urban Foundation 11,87,686 - 11,87,746 43.92% C.00%
Ramesh Ramanathan 1.00 - 1 0.00% 0.00%
As at As at

Other Equity

Securities Premium Account

Opening balance

Add : Securities premium credited on share issue
Less . Premium utilized for various reasons
Closing balance

Statutory Reserve

Opening balance

Add: Transferred during the year

Less: Utilization on account of transfer
Closing balance

Retained Earning and Surplus/{deficit} in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance
Add: Net Profit / (Loss) for the current year
Less: Proposed dividends
Interim dividends
Transfer to Statutory Reserve
Closing balance
Total Reserves and surplus

Nature and purpose of reserves
Securities Premium reserve

31-March-2025

31-March-2024

1,22,54,702.18

1,22,54,702.28

1,22,54,702.28

1,22,54,702.28

8,940.77 8.940.77
27,97,521.45 -
28,06,463.22 B,940.77

(2,62,48,100.25)
1,39,87,612.27

(27,97,522.45)

(1,56,77,178.96)
1,05,70,521.2%)

(1,50,58,010.43)

(2,62,48,100.25)

3,155.07

(1,39,84,457.20)

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utitised only for limited purposes such as
issitance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Statutory Reserve

In terms of Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, NBFCs are required to create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not less than twenty per
cent of its net profit every year. The above reguirement is to give intrinsic strength to the balance sheets of the NFBCs. This reserve could
be used for purposes as stipulated by the Reserve Bank of India from time to time,

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits/ {lesses) that the Company bas earned to date, fess any dividends or other distributions paid to

shareholders.

Contingent Liabilities and commitments
Contingent Liabilities

Claims against the NBFC not acknowledged as debt

Guarantees excluding finangial guarantees

Other money for which the NBFC is contingently Liable (Note-1)
Totat

As at
31-March-2025

As at
31-March-2024

5,24,438.24




JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN; U67100TZ2015PLC033424
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iii

(All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Rs. in thousands)
Note-1

QOther money for which the entity is contingently liable represents the difference between Cap Rate and Fleor rate for each series of non
convertible debentures issued by the entity as agreed upon in the Debenture Trust Deed with the debenture holders detailed as under:

Diff :

Series Floor Rate Cap Rate R‘at:m“ce n 31-March-2025 31-March-2024
B1 16.50% 49.00% 32.50% . 351,639.98
Bz 16 50% 19.00% 37.50% : 1,72,798 26
Yatal - 5,44,438.24

Commitments - Note-1
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for;

Uncalled tiability on shares and other investments partly paid; -
GCther commitments (specify nature). .
Total

*Note-1
The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. As at the period end,
the Company does not have any long term contracts {inctuding derivative contracts) for which there were material foreseeable {osses.

The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender,

As per the information available , the Company 1s not having any relationship with struck off Companies during the year.

The Company does not have any undisclosed income that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961

During the year, the Company has not traded or invested in Crypte Currency or in Virtual Currency.

Penalties imposed by RB{

There has been no penalties imposed by RB! for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Previous Year: Nil).




JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U67100TZ2015PLC033424

Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./25B1, Krishnagiti Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109, Tamii

14

(All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the standalene financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Revenue from QOperations

Particulars

For the year ended
31-March-2025

For the year ended
31-march-2024

Interest income (NCD's Holdings)

11,352.00

Income From Purchase and Sale of NCDs

98,98,214.75

Total

99,09,566.75

Other income

(Rs. In thousands)

Far the year ended

For the year ended

riicul
Particulars 31-March- 2025 31-March-2024
Interest income from FDs 2,455.88 146.50
Interest income from IT Refund 3,815.64 4,43
Interest income on loan advanced * - -
Total 6,271.52 150.93

16 Finance Cost
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31-March-2025 31-March-2024
Interest on debt securities 67,49,431.14 45,87,628.26
Interest on Short Term borrowings 345.21 13,734,25
Qther Finance Cost 8,850.00 89,794,.00
Total 67,58,626.34 46,91,156.51
17 impajrment on Financial Instruments
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31-March-2025 31-March-2024
fmpairment loss / {Impairment Reversal) of Investments in Equity Shares of Wholly 18,60,134,52 48,17,824.16
Owned Subsidiary
Total 18,60,134.52 48,17,824.16
18 Employee Benefit Expenses

Particulars

For the year ended
31-Marck-2025

For the year ended
31-March-2024

Salaries and wages 5,421.61 5,5941.47
Total 5,421.61 5,941.47
Note:i

The Company has a Leave policy defined as per which employees are entitled to 21 workings days of privilege/earned leave during
a financial year. The leave shall be edited at the beginning of the financial year for existing employees as at 01st April and for

employees joined during the year the leave shall be edited on a proportionate basis.

As per the Company policy only 10 days of privilege leave from the current financial year can be carried forward to the next
financial year: unused privilege leaves will be lapsed. Encashment of privilege ieave will be possible at the time of separation on a

pro rata basis.

During the reporting period, the Company did not make any contributions towards Provident Fung or Gratuity. This is due to the
fact that the relevant statutory provisions were not applicable, as the Company did not have more than ten employees at any point
during the year. However, the Company continues to comply with other applicable statutory requirements, including reguiar

payment of Professional Tax.




JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U6710CTZ2015PLCO3424
Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./25B1, Krisknagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109, Tamil
Nadu
(All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
19 (SR Expenditure

20

Particuiars

For the year ended
31-March-2025

For the year ended
3t-March-2024

Expenses towards CSR

Total

Other Expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

Farticulars 31-March-2025 31-March-2024

Rent, taxes and maintenance 301.73 1660.94
Advertisement Expenses 261.56 147.96
Director's fees, allowances and expenses 2,301.00 2,065.00
Auditor’s fees and expenses {Refer below note} 601.80 787.6¢
Legal and Professional charges ** 16,801.34 23,948.87
Bad Debts - Loss on Waiver of Loan (Principat + Interest} to JHL 1,09,38,114.71
Subscription Fees 2.10 -

Insurance 284.90 125.9¢6
Bank Charges 136.75 1.24
Filing Fee " 23.80 55.3¢
Internal Audit 35.40 70.80
Qther expenditure 82.49 18.38
Total 20,842.87 1,09,65,716.82

Note : The fotlowing is the break-up of Auditors remunecration (exclusive of Goods and service tax)

Feor the year ended
31-March-2015

For the year ended
31-March-2024

Particulars

As auditor:

- for Audit 354.00 586.00
- for Limited review 212,40 201.68
- for Other services 35.40 -
Total 601.80 787.60
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(All amounts are rupees in thousands, uniess otherwise stated)

Notes to the standaione financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

1) Capital Management

The Company is a Core Investment Cempany CIC and its entire investment is in Jana Holdings Limited {JHL) and has no operaticn of its
own. In accordance with Section 45-iA of the RBl Act 1934, and Master Direction DoR {NBFC).PD.003/03.10.119/2016-17 dated August 25,
2014, the Company is required to adhere to the prescribed Capital Requirements according to which the Adjusted Net Worth of a CIC shall
at no puint of time be less than 30% of its aggregate risk weighted assets on balance sheet and risk adjusted value of off balance sheet
items. The Company has breached the prescribed minimum requirement which is at 1.21% as at March 31, 2025. {Refer Note-1 for the

computation).

The Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, further stipulate that the outside liabilities of a CIC-ND-5I shall at no
point in time exceed 2.5 times its Adjusted Net Worth as on date of the last audited balance as at the end of the financial year. During
the year ended March 31, 2025 the ratio stands at 85.22 times thereby exceeding the prescribed limits. (Refer Note-2 for the

computation).

Note-1:

A)

B)

€}

Note-2:

A}

B}

Computation of Capital Adequacy Ratio

{CAR)

Particulars

31-March-2025

31-March-2024

Adjusted Net Worth (A)
Risk Weighted Assets {B}
Capital Adeguacy Ratio (C) = A/B

30,196.88
25,03,142.06
1.21%

(1,39,57,415.39}
44,78,205.29
-311.67%

Computation of Adjusted Net Worth

Particulars

31-March-2025

31-March-2024

Paid Up Equity Capital
Other Equity
Adjusted Net Worth

37,041,861
3,155.07
30,196.88

77,041,861
{1,39,84,457.20)
(1,39,57,415.39)

Computation of Risk Weighted Assets

Particulars

Risk Weight

31-March-2025

31-March-2024

Asset Yalue

Risk Asset Value

Asset Value

Risk Asset Value

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Bank balance (other than (a) above)
Investments

Other assets

0%
0%
100%
100%

1,00,552.65
7.44
25,00,978.25
2,163.81

25,00,978.25
2,163.81

12,975.64
7.44
43,61,112.77
1,17,092.52

43,61,112.77
1,17,092.52

Total

26,03,702.15

25,03,142.06

44,91,188.37

44,78,205.29

Outside Liabilities

Particulars

31-March-2025

31-March-2024

Other Payables
Debt Securities
Other financial liabilities

72,197.03
25,00,978.25
330.00

286.63
1,84,47,987.13
330.00

Total Outside Liabifities

25,73,505.27

1,84,48,603.76

Qutside Liabilities to Adjusted Net Wo

rth

Particulars

31-March-2025

31-March-2024

Outside Liabilities
Adjusted Net Worth
Ratio of Qutside Liabilities to Adjusted

25,73,505.27
30,196.88

Net Worth

85.22

1,64,48,603.76
(1,39,57,415.3%)

-1.32

11} Asset Size Management

The Asset size of the company is less than Rs. 500 crores.

1) Disclosure of CIC Ratio's

Particulars 31-March-2025 31-March-2024

% of Investment in group companies

out of total assets 96.03% 97.10%
% of Investment in equity and CCD out

of total net assets 96.05% 97.10%




JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U67100TZ2015PLCO33424
Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./Z5B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109, Tamil Nadu
{All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Nates to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

36 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities (Based on RB! guidelines)

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities anatysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 months Total
Assets months months months
Financial assets
{a} [Cash and cash equivalents 1,00,552.65 - 1,00,552.65 12,975.64 12,975.64
{b) [Bank balance other than cash
and cash equivalents 7.44 7,44 - 7.44 7.44
{c} {Investments 25,00,978.26 25,00,978.25 - 43,61,112.77 43,61,112.77
(d) [Dther financial assets - 1,755.47 1,755.47 7.64 1,704.00 1,711.64
Total Financial assets 1,00,552.65 | 15,02,741.16 | 26,03,293.81 12,983.28 43,62,824.21 43,75,807,49
Non-Financial assets
{a) {Current tax Assets 231.34 - 231.34 1,15,184 .48 1,15,184.48
(b} {Other non-financial assets 177.00 - 177.00 196.40 196.40
Total Non-financial assets 408.34 - 408.34 | 1,15,380.88 . 1,15,380.88
Total Assets 1,00,960.99 | 25,02,741.,16 | 26,03,702.15 | 1,28,364.16 43,62,824.21 44,91,188,37
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
{a) [Payables
Trade payables
{1} total outstanding dues of - -
micro enterprises and small
enterprises
{b) {Debt Securities . 25,00,978.125 25,00,978.25 - 1,84,47,987.13 1,84,47,987.13
(¢) |Other financial liabilities 330.00 - 330.00 330.00 - 330.00
Tota! Financial Habilities 330.00 | 25,00,978.25{ 25,01,308.25 330.00 1,84,47,987.13 1,84,48,317.13
Non-Financial liabilities
(a) {Other non-financial liabilities 72,197.02 72,197.02 286.563 286.63
Totat Non-financial liabitities 72,197.02 - 72,197.02 186.63 . 186.63
Equity
{a) |Equity share capital 27,041.81 27,041.81 37,041 .81 27,041.81
{b) {Other equity 3,155.07 3,155.07 (1,39,84,457.20}|  (1,39,84,457.20)
Totat Equity - 30,196.88 30,196.68 - (1,39,57,415.39)| (1,39,57,415.39)
Total Liabilities and Equity 72,527.02 | 25,31,175.13 | 26,03,702.15 616.63 44,90,571.74 44,91,188.37




JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN; U67100TZ2015PLC0O33424

Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, 5ri Krishna Towers, Sy, No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109, Tamil

Nadu

(All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

37 Schedule to the Balance Sheet of the non-deposit taking Core Investment Non-Banking Financial Company

{Amounts included herein are based on current and previous year financials as per ind AS}

a) Exposures

(i) Exposure to Real Estate Sector

{Rs. In thousands)

Category

31-March-2025 31-March-2024

Direct Exposure

U]

(i)

(iii}

Residential Mortgages -

Lending fuily secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will
be occupied by the borrower or that is rented

Commercial Reat Estate -

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office
buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family

.. residential buildings, multi-tenanted cormmercial premises, industrial or

warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction,
etc.). Exposure weuld also include non-fund based limits

Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities(MBS) and cther securitised
exposures

a. Residentiat

b. Commerciat Real Estate

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector

{ii) Exposure to Capital Market

Particulars

31-March-2025 31-March-2024

(i

(i)

{iii}

(iv)

v

{vi)

{vii)

(vii)

Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible
debentures and unrits of eguity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which
is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;

Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on
clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including [PQs /
ESGPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-

. oriented mutual funds;

Advances for any cther purposes where shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken
as primary security;

Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured

by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds ¢r convertible
debentures or units of equity criented mutual funds i.e. where the
primary security other than shares / convertible bends / convertible
debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds does not fully cover
the advances;

Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on
behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;

Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds /
debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter’s
contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising
resources;

Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues;
All exposures to Venture Capital Funds {both registered and unregistered)}

Total Exposure to Capital Market




JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U67100TZ2015PLC0O33424
teg. Office: 3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./2581, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109, Tarni! Nach
{All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Netes to the standalone financiai statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

38 Disclosure of details as required by RBI/DNBR/2016-17/39 f.e Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 dated August 25, 2016 (Updated as on June 97, 2018}

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of the non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financiat Cornpany
(Rs. In thousands)

Particulars 31-March-2025 31-March-2024
Liabilities side Amousnt Amount Amount Amount
outstanding averdue outstanding overdue

(1) [Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial
company inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid :

{a) Non Convertible Debentures: - -
Secured . - . .
Unsecured* 25,00,978.25 - 1,84,47,987.13 -

(b} Deferred Credits - .

(<) Term Loans - - . R

d} Inter-corporate loans and borrowing . . . -

{e) Commercial Paper -

(f) Public Deposits

() Other Loans (specify nature} - -

(2) |Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive
of interest accrued thereon but not paid) ;

{a) in the form of Unsecured debentures - -
(b} in the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures . -
wherethere is a shortfall in the value of security

€} Other public depasits - -
*The amount comprises of face value of Non Covertibie Debentures, redemption premium and interest accrued as on date, after reducing
the calue of debentures so arrived in excess of the value of the investments held by the company as on the reporting date {refer Note -
9.

Assets side 31-March-20251 31-March-2024
{3} |Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivabies
[other than those included in (4} below]

{a) Secured -
(b} Unsecured -

{4) [Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets
counting towards asset firancing activities

{1) Lease assels including lease rentals under sundry debtors

(a) Financial lease

{b) Operating lease
(i1} Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors

(a) Assets on hire

(k) Repossessed Assels R N
{iif) Other loans counting towards assel financing activities

(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed

(b} Loans other than (a) above

(5) |Break-up of investments
Current Investments

1 Quoted
6] Shares
fa) Equity - -
{b} Preference - -
(i) Debentures and Bonds - -
(i) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv} Government Securities - -

(¥) Others {ptease specify)




leg. Office: 3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hasur, Krishnagiri- 635109, Tamil Nad

JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: Us7100TZ2015PLLC033424

(All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

2 Unquoted

{i) Shares

{a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

{iii} Units of mutual funds

{iv) Government Securities

(v} Others (Bank Deposits)

Long Term investments

1 Queted

(i} Share

{a) Equity

(b} Preference

{ii) Debentures and Bonds

{ifi} Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others (please specify)

2 Unguoted

{1) Shares

{a) Equity

25,00,978.25

43,61,112.77

{b) Preference

(i) Debentures and Bonds

{iil) Units of mutual funds

{iv) Government Securities

(v} Others Bank deposits

7.44

7.44

securities (both quoted and ungquoted) ;

{6) |Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and {4} abave :
Category Amount net of provisions
Secured Unsecured Total
1 Related Parties **
(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the - -
same group
{c) Other related parties - -
2 Other than related parties - -
Total
{7y {investor group-wise classification of all investments {current and long term} in shares and

Category Market Book Value
Vaiue / Break (Net of
up or fair vaiue Provisions)
1 Related Parties **
Subsidiaries 25,00,5978.25 25,00,978.25

@)

{b) Companies in the same group
(c) Other related parties -
2 Other than related parties -
Total
{8) |Other information
Particulars 31-March-2025 $31-March-2024

{i) Gross Non-Performing Assets

(a) Related parties

(b)

Other than related parties -

{H) Net Non-Performing Assels

(a} Related parties

b

Other than related parties -

(iit)

Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt -
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40 Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year
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(All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 202%

Investments

(Rs. In thousands)

Particulars

31-March-2025

31-March-2024

(1) Yalue of Investments

i) Gross value of investments

- In India

2,37,17,908.08

2,37,17,908.08

- Qutside India

{11} Provisions for depreciation on investments

- in India

2,12,16,929.83

1,93,56,795.30

- Outside India

(iii) Met value of investments

- in India

25,00,978.25

43,61,112,77

- Qutside India

2) Movement of provisions heid towards depreciation on investments

i} Opening balance

1,93,56,795.30

1,45,38,971.14

i) Add: Provision made during the year

18,60,134.52

48,17,824.16

iii) Less: Write-off /write back of excess provision during the year

iv) Closing balance

2,12,16,929.83

1,93,56,795.30

instrument Name of Rating Agency Date of Rating

Rating

Previous Rating

Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures

India Ratings and Research

Put Ltd 11-Mar-15

IND BB/Stable

IND BB-/Stable

Disclosure of frauds as per Master Direction -

RBI/DNBS/2016-17/49 Master Direction DNBS. PPD.01/66.15.001/2016-17 dated 29 September 2016

There were no instances of reportable fraud for the year ended 31 March 2025,

Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. circular no.
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42 |Interest Rate Sensitivity

S.No|Heads of Accounts Rate Sensitivity of Time
Bucket

LIABILITIES

1 |Capital, Reserves & Surplus Non-sensitive

2 |Gifts, grants & benefactions Non-sensitive

3 |Notes, bonds & debentures

a) {Floating rate Nat applicable

by |Fixed rate (plain vanilla) including zero coupons Not sensitive

c) |instruments with embedded options Not applicable

4 |Deposits

a) [Deposits/Borrowings Not applicable

i) [Fixed Rate Not applicabte

ii) [Floating Rate Not applicable

b) [ICDs Not applicable

5 iBorrowings

a) [Term-money borrowing Not applicable

b) [Borrowings from others Non-sensitive

i) [Fixed rate Non-sensitive

i) |Floating rate Not applicable

6 Current Liabilities and Provisions

a. Sundry creditors
b. Expenses payable
c. Swap adjustment a/c. .

. . . ) Non-sensitive
d. Advance income received/receipts from borrowers pending adjustment
€. Interest payable on bonds/depasits
f

. Provisions
7 |Repos/ bills rediscounted/forex swaps (Seli / Buy) Non-sensitive
ASSETS
1+ |Cash Non-sensftive
2 |Remittance in transit Not applicable
3 |Balances with banks in India
a) jln current a/c. Non-sensitive
by iIn deposit accounts, Morey at call and short notice and other placements Non-sensitive

4 |Investments

Fixed income securities (e.g. govt. securities, zero coupon bonds, bonds, debentures,

a) |oumulative, non-cumutative, redeemabie preference shares, etc.} Not applicable

b) {Floating rate securities Not applicable
Equity shares, convertibie preference shares, shares of subsidiaries/joint ventures, venture

¢} |capitat units, Non-sensitive

5 |Advances {performing)

a) [Bills of exchange, promissory notes discounted & rediscounted Not applicable

b) [Term loans/corporate loans / Short Term Loans (rupee loans only)

iy {Fixed Rate Not applicable

i) |Floating Rate Not applicable

Non-performing loans:
6 |[(net of provisions, interest suspense and claims received from ECGC)

a. Sub-standard)

b. Doubtful and loss) Not applicable
7 1(Assets on lease Mot applicable
B |[Fixed assets (excluding assets on lease) Not applicable
6 |Other assets
a) |intangible assets and items not representing cash flows. Non-sensitive
by {Other items (e.g. accrued income, other receivables, staff loans, etc.) Non-sensitive
10 iReverse Repos/Swaps {Buy /Sell} and Bills rediscounted (DUPN) Not applicable
11 |Other finterest rate} products
a} |Interest rate swaps Not applicable

b) |Other Derivatives Not applicabie
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Notes to the stangaione financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Compenents of ANW and other related information

{Rs. in thousands)

Particulars

31-March-2025

31-March-2024

(i) ANW as a % of Risk Weighted Assets

(11) unrealized appreciation in the book value of quoted investments
(it} diminution in the aggregate book value of quoted investments
(iv} Leverage Ratio

1.21%

82.82

(311,67%)

£1.323

44

Off Balance sheet Exposure

Particulars

31-March-2024

Off Balance sheet Exposure

Financial Guarantee as a % of Off Balance sheet Exposure
Non-Financial Guarantee as a % of Off Balance Sheet Exposure
Off Balance sheet exposure to Qverseas Susidiaries

Letter of comfort issued to any subsidiary

31-March-2025

5,24,438.24

4

o

Business Ratios

Particulars

3t-March-2025%

31-March-2024

Return on £quity
Return on Assets
Net profit per employee

(200.87%)
(3.32)
MA

121.90%
{2.35)
HA

46

Provisions and Contigencies

Break up of ‘Provisons and contigencies shown under the profit and loss account

31-March-2025

31-March-2624

Provision for depreciation on investment (net of reversals)
Brovision made towards Income tax

Cther provisions and contigencies( with details)

Provision for standard assets

18,60,134.57

48.17,624.16

47

The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
As per the information available with us, the Company is net having any relationship with struck off Companies during the year.

The Company does not have any undisciosed income that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments

under the Income Tax Act, 1961

During the year, the Company has net traded or invested in Crypto Currency or in Virtual Currency.

A) Concentration of NPA

Particutars

Amount in Rs. Crore

Exposure as a % of total assets

Total exposure to top Five NPA Accounts

B) Concentration of Advances and Deposits

Particulars

Amount in Rs. Crore

Exposure as a ¥ of total assets

Total expesure of Advances
Total exposure of Depaosits

g.18

0.00%
0.07%

48

Gverseas Assets {for those with Joint ventures and subsidiaries abroad)

Name ef the joint venture/ Susbsidiary Other Partner in the JV

Country

Total asset

49

Prior year comparatives

Previous years figures have been re-grouped/re-classified wherever necessary to correspond with the current peried classification/disclosures.

As per our report of even date

For RAQ & EMMAR
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Jana Capital Limited
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HRAO & EMMAR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Jana Capital Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Jana Capital Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™/“the Company”} and its subsidiary Jana
Holdings Limited (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group™},
and its associate Jana Smatll Finance Bank Limited, which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consclidated
Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements”™).

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given {o us, except for the
effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Acl, 2013 (“the Act"} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and ather accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its
associate as at March 31, 2025, and their consolidated profit, consolidated changes in equity,
and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Referring io the Note No.40 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Holding
Company is a Non-Banking Finangcial Institution - Non-Deposit taking - Systemically
Important Core Investment Company as on March 31, 2025,

a. The Adjusted Net Worth on a standalone basis of the Holding Company is 1.21%
of its aggregate risk weighted assets which is less than the limit of minimum 30%
specified as per Section Il of Master Direction DoR (NBFC).
PD.003/03.10.119/2016-17 (“The Directions™) dated August 25, 2016 and
subsequently updated as at August 29, 2023; and

b. The outside liabilities of the Holding Company on a standalone basis as at March
31, 2025, stood at 85.22 times its adjusted net worth, {resuiting in a debt-equity
ratio of 82.82), against the limit of 2.5 times prescribed in the applicable Directions.

Uffices: Bengaiury, Deltn, Mumbad Ernakulam, Hydarabad, Puttur (DR, Pune, Durg, Folliapur, Shimoga, indare,
Poreorine {Goal, Guwahall, Rapwr, Surdl, Bhopd . Rudragur, imphal, Jaipur, Lucknow, Sambabour, Jamshedpur & Ahmedabad
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2. We draw attention to the Group’s investment (Net of Impairment) amounting to Rs.
72,08,471.44 thousand as at March 31, 2025, represented by its investment in the
Jana Small Finance Bank. The Subsidiary Company, Jana Holding Limited, acts as the
Non- Operating Financial Holding Company (NOFHC) for Jana Small Finance Bank
Limited (JSFB or the Bank). As per the terms and conditions of the banking license
granted under Section 22 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the NOFHC is required
to comply with paragraph 2(H)(i) of the RBI's Guidelines for Licensing of New Banks
in the Private Sector dated February 22, 2013. This provision mandates that the
NOFHC maintain the prescribed regulatory leverage ratic on a standalone basis.

Forthe year ended March 31, 2025, the NOFHC reported a leverage ratio of 2.82 times
as reported by the Independent Auditors of the Subsidiary, which exceeds the
regulatory thresheld of 1.25 times. The consequential impact of such non-compliances
on the Consolidated financial results is presently unascertainable.

3. We draw attention to Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which
discloses the settlement terms of the Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) issued by
Jana Capital Limited. Initially, these NCDs were accounted for at amortized cost.
However, as per the communication received from the Debenture Trustee concemning
the arrangement of the debenture terms, the repayment of these NCDs is contingent
upon the realizable value of the underlying investments, after deducting operational
expenses, statutory liabilities, taxes, and other dues.

Based on the Debenture Trustee’s communication and in accordance with ind AS 109
~ Financial instruments, the Holding Company has derecognized the carrying amount
of the original financial liability and recognized a new financial liability at the fair value
of the underlying investments. This new liability has been designated as Fair Value
Through Profit or L.oss (FVTPL). The resulting difference between the carrying amount
of the original liability and the fair value of the new liability has been recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as a gain on extinguishment of financial liability, reported
as an exceptional item. The total gain recognized from this extinguishment during the
current period amounts to Rs. 22,626,366.10 thousand.

Our audit procedures and the information and explanations obtained indicate that the
Holding Company has based this accounting treatment solely on direct confirmations
received from the Debenture Trustee. However, the Holding Company has not made
any changes to the contractual terms.

in this context, since there have been no changes made to the contractual terms and
the accounting treatment being purely based on the Trustee’s confirmation, we are
unable to ascertain the full impact of this accounting treatment on the Group's
Consolidated financial position. This limitation has led us to qualify our audit opinion.

Had this accounting treatment not been carried out, the Consalidated financial results
would have reported a Consolidated net loss after tax of Rs. 84, 39,576.43 thousand
for the year ended March 31, 2025 and a negative net worth of Rs. 2,48,98,664.57
thousand.
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4. The impact of deferred tax arising from the temporary differences related to the gain
on extinguishment of the original liability is not assessed. Since the new financial
liability is designated at fair value through profit or loss and its value changes in line
with the underlying investments, the Consequent impact has hot been made inh the
Consolidated financial results.

5. The Holding Company has initially recognized goodwill on acquisition of the Subsidiary
amounting to Rs. 17,885 thousand, whose net worth has eroded and has an
accumulated losses amounting to Rs. 2,12,29,280.27 thousand as at March 31, 2025.
Further the Holding Company has not performed any test of Impairment of Goodwill.
Accordingly in view of the current financial position of the Subsidiary and in the
absence of sufficient and appropriate audit evidence, we are unable to comment on
the carrying value of the Goodwill.

6. The terms and conditions of the Certificate of registration issued to the Subsidiary
Company by the RB! vide letter no. N-02.00275 dated 27 January 2017, requires fo
comply with prescribed Net Owned Fund requirement in accordance with Section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and RBl's Master Direction DNBR.
PD.008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated 1st September 2016. In Our Opinion, The Net
Owned Funds of the Subsidiary Company on a standalone basis as on 31 March 2025,
is in a Deficit of Rs. 67,778.75 Lakhs, which is below the regulatory minimum of Rs.
200 Lakhs. The consequential impact of such non-compliance on the Consolidated
financial results is presently unascertainable.

Accordingly, we are unable to evaluate the impact of these qualifications on the
consolidated financial results due to the breach of regulatory covenants, as well as the
changes not being made 1o in the contractual terms.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note No. 41 to the Consolidated Financial Statements and the fact
that the Group has accumulated losses amounting to Rs. 1,45,78,073.38 thousand and
has a negative Net worth amounting to Rs. 22,72,298.47 thousand, as of March 31, 2025.
Further, the Group is in breach of certain regulatory financial parameters as of March 31,
2025 as stated here in above, in the Basis of Qualified Opinion section.

Further reference is made to Point No. 3 in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph of
our Auditor's Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast doubt on Groups
ability to continue as a going concern. However, the Group has been raising additional
funds as necessary to operate as a going concern. Accordingly, the Consolidated Financial
Statements have been prepared under going concern assumption.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Officas: Bengalury, Dethi, Mumhal, Emakutam:, Hyderabad, Puttur (OK), Fune Durg, Kolhapur, Shimoga indore,

Poraonin (Goal, Guwahet, Rapwr, Surdl, Bhopd, Rudrapur, Irghal, Japur, Lucknoy, Sambabur, Jamshedour & Alwmedabad
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Emphasis of Matter

1. We draw attention to Note No. 1.1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which
describes the merger of the Company with the Subsidiary.

2. We draw attention to Note No. 38 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, wherein
the Holding and the Subsidiary Companies have issued NCDs on private placement
basis to raise money mainly for redemption of debentures that were falling due. The
said NCDs were subscribed by the existing investors at an investor IRR of 49% to be
accrued annually as agreed to in the Debenture trust deed signed between the
Company and the Debenture Trustee. Further, as per the information and explanation
provided to us, under the circumstances existing then, the Holding and the Subsidiary
Company had no option but to agree to the said investor IRR of 49% for fulfilling its
obligation to redeem NCDs that were falling due in order to avoid default due to non-
repayment. The said investor IRR agreed to is an outlier and the same is not to be
found among the market rates which help discover the fair value for accounting
purposes.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion section we have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Impairment Assessment of Investment in Equity Shares in the Associate

Refer Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements with respect to the disclosures of
Investment in the Associate.

The Investment in the Associate is recorded at cost and is tested for Impairment annually
along with the share of Profit/Loss from the Associate. On March 31, 2025, Investment in
the Associate amounts to Rs. 72,08,471 thousand, considering the results of JSFB for the
financial year 2024- 25 as per Ind AS. The Net worth of JSFB being computed as on March
31, 2025 per Ind AS amounts to Rs. 3,23,46,742 thousand and accordingly the share of
associate being at 22.285% pertaining to JHL amounts to Rs. 72,08,471 thousand.

7 aLw E}ci ¥, wm Erna;« sam “uthar (DR Pune, iﬁ'}uru Kollmpur, Shiraga, ndars,
3
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The annual Impairment testing of value of Invesiment in the Associate is considered to be
a key audit matter due to the materiality of Investment for the Company and the fact that
process and methodology for assessing and determining the recoverable amount of
Invesiment are based on certain assumptions, that by their nature imply the use of the
management's judgment and prudence, in particular with reference to identification of
Impairment.

Our audit procedures in respect of this area include but are not limited to:

i. The verification of the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls over approval, recording and monitoring of impairment in
investments.

ii. The Review of the management's impairment assessment and assessed the
reasonableness of judgements and assumptions used in such Impairment
assessment.

Hi. The Assessment of the accuracy of the Impairment loss and evaluated the
adequacy of the disciosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsibie for the other information. The
Other information comprises the informaticn included in the Annual Report, but does not
include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon. The
Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.
Our opinion on the Consclidated Financial Statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Staternents, our responsibility is
to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are reguired to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Officas: Bergalury, Dethi, Mumbad, Bmakulam, Hyderabad, Puttur (DK, Pune, Durg, Kolhapur, Shirnoga, indore,
Forvorim (Goa), Gueahati Raipr, Sural, Bhopal, Rudrapur fmohal Jaipur, Lucknow, Sarvbalpur, Jamshedpor & Ahimedabad.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of
the Consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group and its Associate in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group and its
Assaciate are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and designing, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of
the Company's included in the Group and of its Associate are responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability and of its Associate to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its
Associate are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and
its Associate.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated
Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and {0 issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

Offices: Bengal umbal, Emaruiam, Hydermbad, Puliue (0K Puns, Durg, Kolrapir, Shi

Pordonim (on), Guwahall Raipw, Swat Bhops Rudrapue Imphal, Jaipur, Lucknos, Sambalpur, Ja




No. 204 and 205, 2nd Floor, “Ramanashiee Arcade”
Mear Trinity Circle, M.G. Road, Bengaluru - 380 001
e-mall © infofreoemmar.com | Pho No 86500 78818

RAO & EMMAR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufiicient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
mistepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group
and the Associate has internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability and of its Associate to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exits, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up {o the date of our audifor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its Associate to
cease {o continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated
Financial Statements represent the underlying fransactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group and its Associates to express an
opinicn on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Financial Statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the resuits of our work; and {ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the current period and are therefore, the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or reguiation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
s0 would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication,

Other Matters

We did not audit the Financial Statements/ Financial information of the Subsidiary and the
Associate whose financial Statements/ Financial information incorporated in the
Consolidated Financial Statements reflects total assets of Rs. 95,60,587.07 thousand as
at March 31, 2025, total consclidated revenue of Rs. 2,293.13 thousand for the year ended
March 31, 2025, Net loss of Rs. 18,60,134.53 thousand and the share of profit in its
associate amounting to Rs. 1,71,098.06 thousand.

Our opinicn is not modified in respect of the above matter.
Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

a. We have sought and, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion above, obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of
our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements.

b. Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section above, in our Opinion, proper Books of Account as required by Law relating
te preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements.

c¢. The matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion and Material Uncertainty
Related to Going Concern section of our report, in our Opinion, may have an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.
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d. Except for the matters described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph
specified above, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consoclidated Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Cash Flows dealt with by this Report, are in agreement with the
books of account.

e. Except for the matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion section here in
above, in our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply
with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

f.  On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors of the
Company as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Company and the reports of the Subsidiary and the Associate, none of the
Directors are disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a Director
in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act.

g. With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group and its Associate and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Appendix
A

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and {o the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

i.  There were no pending litigations which would impact the Consolidated
financial position as at 31 March 2025.

i. The Group and its Associated did not have any long-term confracts
including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeabie
losses.

fi. There were no amounts which were required 1o be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Group.

a. The respective Managements of the Holding company and its
subsidiary has represented 10 us that to the best of their knowledge and
belief that no funds (which are material either individually or in
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity{ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend ar invest in other persons or entities identified
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in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Based on reasonable audit procedures
adopted by us, nothing has come to our notice that such representation
contains any material misstatement.

b. The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary has
represented to us that to the best of their knowledge and belief that no
funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been
received by the Group from any person{s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or the
Subsidiary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiaries.

c. Based on reasonable audit procedures adopted by us, nothing has
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause {a) and (b} of Rule 11(e), as provided
under {a) and (b) above, contains any material misstatement.

v.  The Group and its Associate has not declared any dividend during the Year.
Accordingly, disclosure under this clause is not applicable.

vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Group has used
an accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trait (edit
log} facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our
audit so far it relates to audit trail in respect of transactions, we and
respective auditor of the above referred subsidiary company did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally,
the audit trail has been preserved by the Parent Company and above
referred subsidiary companies incorporated in India as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

vii.  With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the
Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the "CARO") in terms of Section
143(11} of the Act, to be included in the Auditor's report, according to the
information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports
issued by us for the Holding Company and based on our consideration of
CARO reports issued by the respective auditor of the Subsidiary Company,
we report that following adverse remarks have been made. Further,
according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on
the reports issued by the respective auditors of the Associate Company
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incorporated in India, we report that, the respective auditor is of the opinion
that CARQ reporting is not applicable to such Associate Company.

5. | Name of the | CIN: Holding/ Clause
No | Company Subsidiary/ Number of
Associate/ the report
Joint Venture | which is
Company qualified or
adverse.
1 Jana Capital Limited | U67100KA2015PLC0O79488 | Holding (vii}{b),
Company {ix){d), {xvit)
2 Jana Holdings U74Q00KAZ016PLC08B6838 | Subsidiary {xvii)
Limited Company

2. In our opinion and the information and explanations given to us the remuneration paid
during the current year by the Group to its Directors is in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V of the Act;

For RAO & EMMAR
Chartered Accountants

B J Praveen

Partner

Membership Number: 215713
UDIN: 25215713BMJHKS2111

Bengaluru
30 May 2025.
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UNDIA

APPENDIX ‘A’ — THE REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER
CLAUSE (I} OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE
ACT”) TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF M/S. JANA CAPITAL LIMITED

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements of Jana Capital Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with
our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internaf Financial Controls

The Respective Management of the Companies included in the Group and its Associate are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal Financial Controls based on the internal
controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements criteria established by the
respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the Guidance
Note) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internaf financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to respective Companies’ and policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's and the Associate’s internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by ICA}
and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Guidance Note to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to oblain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements includes obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

A Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements includes those policies and
procedures that pertain to (1) the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Group and its Associate are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Group and its
Associate; and (3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’'s assets that could have a
material effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements, including the possibility of coliusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periads are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, the Group, in alt material respects, an adequate internal financial control with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements criteria established by the Group considering the essential
components of Internal Financial Controls stated in the Guidance Note issued by the institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(1) of the Act on the adeguacies and operative
effectiveness of the iInternal Financial Control System with reference to the consolidated
financial statements in so far as it relates to the Subsidiary, which are companies incorporated
in India, is based on the Corresponding Reports of Auditors of such subsidiaries and
associates incorporated in India.

For RAO & EMMAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 0030845

L

B J Praveen

Partner

Membership Number: 215713
UDIN: 25215713BMJHKS2111

Bengaluru
30 May 2025
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JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CiIN: U67100TZ2015PLC0O33424
Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy, No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur,
Krishnagiti- 635109, Tamil Nadu,
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

(Rs. In thousands)

: As at As at
Particulars Note  4: March-2025 31-March-2024
ASSETS
(1} Financial Assets
(@) Cash and cash equivatent 3{1) 1,29,906.26 67,841.67
{b} Bank Balance other than (a) above 3{2) 7.44 7.44
{c) Investments 4 72,08,471.44 -
{d} Other financial assets 5 3,451.97 3,422.%0
(2} Non- Financial Assets .
(a) Current Tax Assets 6 483.93 1,15,228.65
(b} Property, plant and equipment 7 32%.35 329.53
(c) Goodwiil on Consolidation 17,985.00 17,985.00
(d} Other intangible assets B - -
{e} Other Mon Financial Assets 9 177.00 196.40

Total Assets 73,60,812,39 2,05,011.59

LIABILITIES AND EQUATY

LIABILITIES
(1) Financial Liabilities
{a) Trade Payables

(i) total outstanding dues of MSME
{ii) total outstanding dues of editors other than MSME G - -

{b) Debt securities 1" 95,58,409.22 2,37,29,168.11
{c) Other financial liabilities 12 605.00 605.00
{2) Non-Financial Liabilities
{a) Provisions 13 1,093.01 1,393.83
(k) Other non-financial liabilities 14 73,003.63 69,915.38
(3) EQUITY
{a) Equity share capital 15 27,041.81 27,041.81
{b} Other equity 16 22,99,340.28) {2,36,23,112.54)

Total Liabilittes and Equity 73,60,812.39 2,05,011.5¢

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the
censolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date

For RAD & EMMAR

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No.: 0030845

N

B.J PRAVEEN

Partner

Membership No: 215713
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 30-May-2025
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Jana Capital Limited

W""e‘;

Rajamani Muthuchamy
Managing Director and CEO
DIN:08080999
Place: Bengaluru
Date: 30-May-2025

£

Ramesh Ramanathan
Chairman
DIN:G0163276

Place: Bengaiuru
Date: 30-May-2025
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Srinivas NR Krisi wam

Company Secretary
Ptace: Bengaluru
Date: 30-May-2025

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bengaluru
Date: 30-May-2025




JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U67100TZ2045PLCO33424

Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, $ri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109, Tamil

Nadu,

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

{Rs. In thousands)

. For the year ended For the year ended

$UNo. Particulars Note }-March-2025 31-March-2024

Revenue from Operations
(i} interest Income 7 - 11,352.00
(i} Gain from purchase of securities - 98,98,214.75
)] Total Revenue from Operations - $9,09,566.75
(n Other tncome 8 8,564.65 645.07
{Il)  Tota! income (f+11) B,564.65 99,10,211.82

Expenses
(1} Finance costs 19 85,52,876.34 74,87,088.32
il !mpairment Loss / {Impairment Loss Reversal) on financial 30 A 50,08,347.61

instryments
(ith  Empleyee benefits expense 21 25,794.94 24,664.20
(iv)  Depreciation and amortization 22 135.41 66.93
(¥} CSR expenditure 23 - -
(vi}  Gthers expenses 4 40,432.47 78,998.87
(v}  Total Expenses {IV) 86,19,239,14 1,25,99,665.93
(V} Profit / ({.oss} before exceptional items and tax {IIt -[V} (86,10,674.49) (26,8%,454.12)
(vl}  Excepticnal Items 11 2,26,26,366.10

Profit / (Loss} after exceptional items and before tax share of
(vily associate {V Vi) 1,40,15,691.60 (26,89,454.12)
(VlIIl} Share of Profit/(loss) of the associate accounted for using equity method 1,71,098.06 25,06,276.87
(iX)  Tax Expense:

(1) Current Tax -

(2) Deferred Tax . .
X3 Profit / (Loss) for the year (V-V1) 1,41,86,789.66 i1,83,177.24)
(Xl) Gther Comprehensive income

{A) (1) Hftems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -

Subtotal {A) -

(B) (i} Items that will be reclassified to profit or toss - -

{ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified

to profit or loss i i

Subtotal (B) -

QOther Comprehensive Income (A + B) -
(xiny Total Comprehensive Income / {Loss) for the period 1,41,86,789.66 (1,83,177.24)

VIV
{(XIl) Earnings per equity share 25

Basic (Rs.) 5,246.24 (67.74)

Diluted (Rs.) 5,246.24 (67.74)

Summary of significant accounting poticies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial staternents

As per our report of even date

For RAD & EMMAR

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 0030845
N\

B.J PRAVEEN

Partner

Membership No; 215713

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 30-May-2025
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Jana Capital Limited

Rajamani Muthuchamy
Managing Director and CEG
DIN: 08080999

Place: Bengalury

Date; 30-May-2025

Srinivas NR
Chief Financial Officer
Pace: Bengaluru
Date: 30-May-2025
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Ramesh Ramanathan
Chairman

DIN: 00163276
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Krishi Jain
Company Secretary
Place: Bengalury
Date: 30-May-202%



JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U67100TZ2015PLCO33424

Reg. Office: 3rd Floer, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur,
Krishnagiri- 635109, Tamil Nadu,

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025

A} Equity Share Capital

(Rs. In thousands)

Particulars Amount

Balance as at 01 April 2023 27,041.81
Changes in equity share capital due ta prior period errors .
Balance as at 01 April 2023 27,041.81
Changes in equity share capital during the current year -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 27,041.81
Balance as at 01 April 2024 27,041.81
Changes in eguity share capital due to prior period errors -
Balance as at 01 April 2024 27,041,811
Changes in equity share capital during the current period -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 27,041.81

B} Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus

Other items of
Parti - N Other
articulars Securities Statutory Retained . Total
Premium Reserve Earnings Compreherasv?'e
income (specify
nature}

Balance as at 01 April 2023 1,22,54,702.28 39,279.92 ] (3,58,57,993.57) {2,38,410.45)} (2,38,02,421,8B2)
Changes in accounting policy or prior
period errors i
Restated balance as at 01 April 2023 1,22,54,702.28 39,279.92 | (3,58,57,993.57)| (2,38,410.45) (2,38,02,421.82)
Total Comprehensive Income / (Lass} for 1,41,86,789.66 | 1,79,309.28 |  1,43,66,098.95
the previous year
Changes in Accounting Policy / Estimate * 70,93,130.53 - 70,93,130.53
Transfer to retained earnings - - - - -
Balance at at 31 March 2024 1,22,54,702.28 39,279,92 | {1,45,78,073.38) (59,101.16} (23,43,192.35)
Balance as at 01 April 2024 1,22,54,702,28 319,279.92 | (1,45,78,073.38) (59,101.16) [23,43,192.35)
Changes in acceunting policy or prior
period errors )
Restated balance as at 01 April 2024 1,22,54,702.28 39,279.92 | (1,45,78,073.38) {59,101.16) 123,43,192.35)
Total Comprehensive Income / {Loss) for ) 43.852.07 43,852.07
the current year
Dividends - - -
Transfer from/to Statutory Reserves 27,97,522.45 (27,97,522.45)
Transfer to retained earnings - . - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 1,22,54,702.28 | 28,36,802.38; {1,73,75,595.684} {15,24%.10) {22,99,340_28)

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an intearal part of these consolidated financial state

As per cur report of even date

For RAD & EMMAR
Chartered Accountants
1CAl Firm Registration No.: 0030845

N

B.J PRAVEEN

Partner

Membership No: 215713
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 30-May-2025
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Jana Capital Limited

Rajamani Muthuchamy
Managing Director and CEQ
DIN:0B0B0S%9

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 30-May-2025

Srinivas N~

Chief Financial Officer
Place; Bengaluru
Date: 30-May-2025

Fr

Ramesh Ramanathan
Chairman
DIN:00163276

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 30-May-2025

©

Krishi Jain
Company Secretary
Place: Bengalury
Date: 30-May-2025




JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: LI67100T72015PLCO33424

Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Yowers, Sy, No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109, Tamil
Nadu,

(Alt amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Statement of Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 3% March 2025

{Rs. In thousands)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31-March-2025 31-March-2024
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit / {Loss) for the year 1,41,86,789.66 {1,83,177.24)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 135.41 66.93
Other non cash items on sale of investment £93.51 .
Exceptional ttems {2,26,26,366.10) -
Loss on Sale of Investments -
Loss on Sale of Furniture {Miscellaneous) 46.74 .
Impairment {oss on financial instruments (net of reversals) . 50,08,847.61
Share of Profit/(toss} of the associate accounted for using equity
method {1,71,098.06) [25,06,276 87}
Interest expense 85,43,681.13 73,71,178.04
Lean processing fees paid 8,850.00 1,02,176.03
Interest on short term borrowings 345_71 13,734.25
Interest Income from Fixed Deposits (4,747 .69) (604.28}
Income from purchase of securities - {98,98,214.75}
Income from NCD Holdings - (11,352.00)
Interest Income on {T Refund (3,816,96) (40.79;
Operating Loss before working capital changes and adjustments (65,487 _44) €1,03,663.07)
Changes in working capital
{Decrease) / Increase in other financial liabilities - (240.00)
{Decrease} / Increase in other non-financial liabilities 2,787.44 65,894.27
Decrease/ (Increase) in other financial assets (29.07) {(1,077.78}
Decrease/ (increase} in Current Tax assets 1,14,744.72 .
Decrease/ (Increase} in other Non financial assets 19.40 30.96
Cash used in operations before adjustments 52,034.85 (39,055.62)
Taxes paid - {1,14,350.33)
Interest Income on §T Refund 3,816.96 40,79
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities {A) 55,851,81 {1,53,405.95)
Cash flow from Investing activities
Investment in subsidiary - .
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment {185.98) (337.51)
eation of Fixed Deposits -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4.50 -
Proceeds from sale of investments 98,915.71 -
Interest on Fixed Deposits 4,747 .69 604.28
Net cash flow from / {used in) investing activities (B) 1,03,48%.92 266.77
Cash flow from Financing activities
Interest on short term borrowings {345.21} (13,734.25)
Loan processing fees paid (8,850.00) (89,794.00}
Income received from purchase of securities - 98,98,214.75
Net Proceeds from Debt securties issued 11,64,760.00 1,70,32,450.85
NCD Capitalised on new issue (420.99) .
Interest on debentures paid (3,04,079.95) {1,30,04,762.86)
Redemption of NCO's due {Principat) (9,33,272.99} {1,35,55,000.00}
Interest Received from Fixed Deposits . .
Interest payment on debt security (actual) (18,000.00) .
Income from NCD Haldings - 11,352.00
Fixed Deposits placed with bank . {1,00,000.00;
Fixed Deposits redeemed with bank - 40,002.53

Net cash flow from finrancing activities (C) (97,26%.13) 2,18,729.03
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Statement of Consclidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2025

{Rs. In thousands)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31-March-2025 31-March-2024

Continued...
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+(C) 62,064.59 6%5,589.85
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 67,841.66 2,251.81
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,29,906.25 67,841.66
Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Balances with banks

On cusrent accounts 14,536.12 7,839.14

On deposits with Banks 1,15,370.14 60,002.53
Total cash and bank balances at end of the year 1,29,906.76 67,841.67
Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial staten 1-43

Summary of significant accounting policies

Note 1: During the year, debentures worth Rs. 22,62,63,66,100 were reduced based on the confirmation received from the debenture trustee
that the regemption of the debentures would be payable only to the extent of the reatizable value of the investments held by the helding
Company. However, since this is a non-cash itemn, it shall not have any impact on the Cash Flow Statement and is disclosed separately in this

note,

Note: 2. The total interest expense during the year is added back in the adjustment section of the Cash Flow Statement; however, the

interest and principal amounts paid are separatety disclosed in the financing activities section.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Jana Capital Limited
For RAC & EMMAR

Chartered Accountants
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{All amounts are rupees in thausands, unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the Consolidated financiaf statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Company Gverview

Reporting Entity

The Company was incorporated on March 26, 2015 Lo carry on the business of an Investment Company and to invest, buy, sell,
transfer, deal in and dispose of any shares, stocks, debentures, whether perpetual or redeemable debentures, stocks, securities
of any Government, Local, Authority, Bonds and Certificates. The Company received a certificate of registration dated 24 March
2017 from the Reserve Bank of India as a Non-Banking Financial Institution - Non-Deposit taking - Systemically Important Core
Investment Company {'NBFC-CIC-ND-51"} under section 4514 of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

The company helds 100% investments in its wholly owned subsidiary company - Jana Holdings Limited (the Company'). The
wholly owned subsidiary company hotds 22.285% of Equity shares in Jana Small Finance Bank being the Associate company.

The Board at its meeting held on October 21, 2019, and December 09, 2019, approved fast-track method for merging Jana
Holdings Limited (JHL}, being the wholly owned Non-Operating Financial Holding Company (NOFHC), with its Holding as welt as
Core investment Company, Jana Capital Limited, after receiving the fn-principte approval from the RBI on 10th August 2020, As
per the existing guidelines, the requirement of having a NOFHC has been dispensed with by the R8I for setting up smali finance
Banks and Universal Banks. Further, such a merger of the wholly owned subsidiary with the Holding Company will simplify the
compliances reported to various Regulatory Authorities, besides resulting in lower operating costs. After the receipt of the in-
principle approval from the RBi, the Board of Directors of the transferor and the Transferee Companies met on 24th August 2020
and approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of Jana Holdings Limited (Wholly Owned subsidiary) with Jana capital Limited
(Holding Company).

Jana Capital limited, transferee Company, submitted necessary application to the Regional Director, South-£ast Region, Mintstry
of Corporate Affairs, Hyderabad, on 6th November 2020 for obtaining approval of Amalgamation under Section 233 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Regional Director, Ministry of Company Affairs, Hyderabad, vide letter dated 26th March 2021 rejected the
application filed an 6th November 2020 for the merger of JHL with JCL, since JHL had obtained consent from the creditors to the
extent of 82.78% fn value as against the minimum threshold of consent from 50% of the creditors in value as required under
Section 733 of the Companies Act, 2013 and, as such, the provisions of Section 233(1}{d) could not be fully complied with. The
Board of Directors considered the aforesaid rejection order and resoived to fite fresh merger

application subject to the approval of the Scheme by the Board of Directors, Shareholders, Creditors, and such other authorities
as may be required, Accordingly, the Board of directors of both Jana Holdings Limited and Jana Capital Limited on November 14,
2022, have once again approved the scheme of amalgamation and resolved to appty afresh for the merger of the company with
Jana Capital Limited, the Holding Company. In line with the decision of the Board of Directors, the company has taken steps to
obtain affidavit in the prescribed Formats from the creditors and shareholders for the merger.

However. the Company, in the meanwhile, received a request from Jana Small Finance Bank Limited (JSFBJ regarding the
merger and, due to certain commercial considerations, the Company has decided to put the merger on hold till the listing
process of the Jana Small Finance Bank Is completed. JSFB shares have been listed with effect from 14th February 2024, The
Company received the n-principte approval afresh from RBI on July 29, 2024, Further, in order to mitigate the stamp duty
implications associated with the approval of the merger scheme by the NCLT, the Company shifted its registered office from the
State of Karnataka to the State of Tamil Madu w.e.f. January 24, 2029, basis the approval of the Regional Director South Fast
Region, Hyderabad, Ministry of Corporate Affair and other regutatory approvals and consequently the Clause Il of the
Memorandum of Association of the Company was altered to that extent.

The Board re-approved the dreft scheme of amalgamation on February 3, 2015, as the previgus approval was dated, The
Company has obtained the consent from all the shareholders and debenture holders in the prescribed format. The Company
received the No-objection letter from BSE on May 22, 2025. The application to NCLT will be submitted in due course.

1.2 Statement of compliance

These financial statements are Consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("tnd
AS"), the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™} (as amended). The Ind AS as prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendments Rules, 2016.

Basis of preparation

The Consclidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 have heen prepared by the Company in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind A%} notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India under the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment} Rutes, 2016, as amended
from time to time, in this regard.
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

1.4 Principles of consolidation

The consolidated firancial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary together referred to
as (“Group™) and Associates as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025. The Company consolidates a subsidiary when it controls
it, Control is achieved when the Group 15 exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.Generaily, there is a presumption that a majority of
voting rights result in control. Yo support this presumption and when the Company has less than a majority of the vating or
similar rights of an investee, the Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses
control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Company gains control until the date the Company ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in simitar
vircumstances. )1 a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial
statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s
financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Company’s accounting
policies.

The financiat statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are same reporting date as that of the parent
company, i.e., year ended on March 31, 2025,

1.5 Consolidation procedure:

i,

Cambine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, and expenses of the parent with those of its subsidiary. For this
purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

Offset (eliminate} the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent's portion of equity of each
subsidiary.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
entities of the Group (profits or {osses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, are eliminated in
full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 17
Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup
transactions.

Profit or loss ang each component of OQCl are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the nen-
controiling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance,

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary to bring their accounting policies in line with
the Company’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows retating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidatien,

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of controt, is accounted for as an equity transaction,

The financial statements of the following subsidiary company have been consolidated as per Ind AS 110 - Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Below mentioned subsidiary has been incorporated in india

Name of Subsidiary Country of Incorporation % Holding as at March 31, 2025

Jana Holdings Limited India 100%

The Group has investments in the following associates, which are accounted under the Equity Method in accordance with the nd
AS 28 on Accounting for Investment in Associate in Consolidated Financial Statements as on March 31, 2025:-

Name of associates as on March 31, 2025  [Country of Incorporations  |Ownership Interest (%)

Jana Small Finance Bank India 22.29%

1.4 Functional and Presentation currency

These Ind AS Financial Statements are presented in indian Rupees in thousands (Rs.), which is atso the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts are rounded off te the nearest thousands, unless otherwise indicated.

1.5 Basis of measurement

The non financial items of the financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, however the financial items of
the financial statements have been prepared cn a fair valuation basis in line with IND A5 109 {read with IND AS 113},
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1.6 Significant areas of estimation, itical judgments and assumptions in applying accounting policies

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumplions that affect the reported amaount of revenues, expenses, assets and Habilities, and the accompanying disclosures, as
well as the disclosure of contingent labilities. The Company’s management believes that the estimates used in preparation of
the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Accounting estimates could change from periad to period. Actual results
coutd differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of the changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Any changes in the accounting estimates are reflected in the period in which such
change in circumstances are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

The key estimates and assumptions used in preparation of financial statements are;

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions
(l.e., an exit price) regardiess of whether that price is directly ohservable or estimated using ancther valuation technigue. When
the fair values of financial assets and financial {iabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets,
they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this {s not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements and estimates inctude considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to items,

Significant accounting policies

The Company has applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition

Dividend is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established,

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets

Initiai recognition and measurement

Except for items at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL), ail financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus or minus
transaction costs that are directly attributable and inementat to the origination/acquisition of the financial asset.

Financiai assets at amortised cost

Afinancial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the fellowing conditions and is not designated as at FYTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractuzl terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest outstanding on the principal amount outstanding (SPPY).

After initiat measurement, such financial assets are subseguently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method, Amartized
cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium or acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR and
reported as part of interest income in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The losses, if any, arising from impairment are recognized
in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial assel is measured at FVQC! only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FYTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose abjective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash fiows and selling
financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates te cash flows that are SPPI.

The loss altowance is recognized in other comprehensive income and does not reduce the carrying value of the financial asset.
When the financial asset is derecognized the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity te profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Financial assets at fair vatue through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Any financial instrument, which does not meet the iteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCH, is classified to be
measured at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may also elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FYQCI iteria, as
at FVTPL. However, such election is done only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(referred to as ‘accounting mismatch').

Debt instruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in profit or loss.

Classification and subsequent measurement

The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortized cost or fair value based on the business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
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Financial Liabitities

Initial recognition and measurement

Except for items at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL), all financial liabitities are recognized initiatly at fair value plus or
minus transaction costs that are directly attributable and inemental to the issue of the financial liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

All financial Habilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost except for financial liabitities at FYTPL. Such liabilittes
including derivatives that are (iabilities are subsequently measured at fair value.

De-recognition of financiai assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized when

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assurned an obligation to pay the received
cash fiows in full without material delay to a third party under & ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially alf the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially ail the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount
allocated to the portion of the asset derecognized} and the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any
new liability assumed) shail be recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or canceiled, or expired.
Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financiat assets

If the terms of & financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified asset are
substantially different. if the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original
financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is
recognized at fair value adjusted for any eligible transaction costs.

if the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the modification dees not
result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial
assel and recognizes the amount arising from adjusting the pross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in Statement of
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes & financial Uability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are
substantiatly different. In this case, 2 new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The
difference between the carrying ameount of the financiai iability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms
is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting financiat assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the statement of financial position when
the Company has a tegal right to offset the amounts and intends to settle on net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Fair value measurement

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the
Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When one is available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quated price in an active market for that
instrument. A market is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for the asset or Uability take ptace with sufficient frequency and
volume te provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses vatuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservabie inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates ali of the factors
that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

Provisions and contingencies related to claims, fitigation, etc.

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of econemic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions
are measured at the present vailue of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present cbligation at
the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The inease in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as finance cost.
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Cnerous contracts

A contract is considered as onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company from the contract are
lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured
at the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before
a provision is established, the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Contingencies related to claims, litigation, ete.

Pravision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessmeny, fines, penalties, etc., are recognised when it
is prebable that a liability has been incurred, and the amount ¢an be estimated retiably. Provisions are reviewed at each balance
sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Income taxes
Income tax expense comprises clrrent and deferred tax. It is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent
that it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax:

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income for the year in accordance with the
Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax comprises the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year and any adjustment
to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset onty if, the Company:

a) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and

i) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the tability simultaneously.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes ang its tax base.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and, based on management's judgment, are reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future
taxable profits improves.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and rccognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits witl be availabie against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the baiance sheet date.

The measurement of defesred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expeacts, at the balance sheet date, to recover or settle the carrying arnount of its assets and liabilities.

The effect of changes in the tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognised as income or expense in the period that
includes the enactment or substantive enactment date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:
a) the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and
b} the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate (o income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earning per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss that is attributable te ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted-average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Oiluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss that is attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, except where
the results are anti-dilutive.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include balance with banks and fixed deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. Cash
and cash equivalents are carried at armortized cost in the balance sheet.
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Statement of cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effecis of transactions of
neni-cash transactions, any deferrats or acuals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated. for the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, Cash and cash equivalents include bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

viii, Impairment af financial assets

The Company recognises impairment allowances for Expected edit Loss {ECL} on all the financial assets that are not measured at
FVTPL:

ECL are probabitity weighted estimate of future edit losses based on the staging of the financial asset to reflect its edit risk.
They are measured as follows:

« Financial assels that are not edit impaired - as the present values of all cash shortfalls that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date.

« Financial assets with significant inease in edit risk but not edit impaired - as the present vatues of all cash shortfalls that result
from all possible default events over the expected life of the financiat asset.

- Financial assets that are edit impaired - as the difference between the gress carrying amount and the present value of
estimated cash flows

Financial assets are fully provided for or written off (either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

The Company accounts for investments in subsidiary at cost and tests for impairment at each reporting date. At each reporting
date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carrfed at amortised cost are impaired. The financial assets are tested for
tmpairment and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the net investment {(a ‘loss event’} and that loss event {or events} has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows from the net investment that can be reliably estimated.

Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses whose results are regularty reviewed by the Company’s chief operating decision maker (CODM) to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which disete financial information is
available.

Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items that are directly attributable to a segment as well as those that
cah be allocated on a reasonable basis.

Change in registered office address

The Holding company has changed its registered office address during the year after filing necessary forms with the ROC from
former address “2nd Floor, No. 80, Sth Cross, 4th Main, Marutht Extension Bangalore 560021” to the current address "3rd Floor, S+
Krishna Towers, Sy. No./2581, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur £ast, Hosur, Krishragiri- 635109, Tamil Nadu.”




JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U67100TZ2015PLCO33424
Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109,
Tamil Nadu,
(All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

{Rs. In thousands)

3 Cash and Cash Eguivalents As at As at
31-March-2025 31-March-2024

Cash on hand - -

Balances with banks in current accounts 14,536.12 7,839.14
Fixed Deposits with bank 1,15,370.14 60,002.53
Total h 1,29,906.26 67,841.67

Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalent

Other bank balances 7.44 7.44
Total other bank balances ih 7.44 7.44
Total Cash and bank balances {+1l $,29,913,70 67,849,12

Cash and cash equivalents and Bank halance

Cash and cash equivalents and bank balance is Rs.1,29,906.26 thousands as at 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024; Rs, 67,841.67
thousands), The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and financial institutions counterparties with acceptabie edit
ratings and inciudes interest receivable on fixed deposits.

Other bank balances represents amount held towards Debenture subsiption account amounting to Rs, 7.44 thousands as at 31
March 2025 (31 March 2024: Rs. 7.44 thousands).

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

On current accounts 14,536.12 7,839.14

Deposits placed with bank 1,15,370.14 60,002.53
Cash on hand - -
Sub Fotal 1,29,906.26 67,841.67
Less: Bank overdrafts - -
Total 1,29,906.26 67,841.67

The Company has not taken bank overdraft, therefore the cash and cash equivalent for statement of cash flow is same as cash
and cash equivalent given above.
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JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CB: U67100T22015PLCO33424
Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy, No./2581, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109, Tamil Naduy,

(All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Cansolidated financial statements far the year ended 31 March 2025

Investments

(Rs. In thousands}

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Amcrtised cost

At Fair Yalue

Through Cther

Through Profit

Amortised cost

At Fair Value

Through Gther Through Profit

Comprehensive Camprehensive
or Loss or Loss
Income Income
1 2 3 1 2 3
Equity instruments
Jana Holtdings Limited (Subsidiary)*
Unquoted (fully paid-up of Rs. 10/- - 46,35,961.26 - 14,50,375.10
each)
Shar§ of Net Worth of associates from 67,85,074.70
previous years
% Change in favestment - Sale of }
investment
@ N -
% Change in Investment - New Issue of 1,089.0%
Shares
Share in the Profit/ (loss) of associates 1,74,098.06 - 25,06,276.87
Share in Other comprehensive Income 43,852.07 1,79.209.28
Share of Associate from Share Premium
and Other Reserves 1,B4,168.63

Total - Gross {A)

1,19,21,193.75

- 46,35,961.26

(i} Investments outside India

(i) Investments in ndia

1,16,21,193.75

46,25,961.26

Total (B}

+,19,21,193.75

- 46,35,961.26

tess: Aliowance for impajrment loss -
carried forward from last year (C)

46,35,961.26

tess: allowance for Impairment loss -
during the current year (D)

A£dd: Reversal of Allowance for
Impairment loss for the year (F)

3,72,886.21

Net Impairment {oss carred forward
(F= D-E)

46,35,961.26

- {3,72,886.2%;

Less: impairment Loss recognised during
the year

(50,08,847.47)

Total - Net E= (A)-(C)

72,85,232.49

Investments represent the shares invested by Jana Holdings Limited in its associate company Jana Srnail Finance Bank. The IPO of equity shares of Jana
Smali Finance Bank Ltd has been completed and the shares are listed in the steck exchanges with effect from 14th February 2024. The fair market
value of shares of Jana Small Finance Bank as on March 31, 2025 is Rs. 407.05 and accordingly the investments are valued at fair market value as per IND
AS 28-investment in Assaciates and Joint Ventures and presented under nvestments at Fair Value through profit or loss at a standafone basis. The
increase / decrease in the market value of share shall be recognised through Profit or loss in the statement of profit and loss.

The investments by Jana Hotdings Limited in Jana Small Finance Bank being the associate entity has been evaluated during the current year at a
Consolidated basis amounting to Rs. 720.85 crores by corsidering the restits of JSFB for the FY 2024-2025 as per 1HD AS. The networth of JSFE betng
computed as on March 31, 2025 per IND AS amounts to Rs. 3,234.67 crores and accordingly the share of associate being at 22 285% pertaining to JHL

amounts to 720.85 crores.

Previous year figures have not been re-grouped / reclassified in this regard and the share of net worth of JSFB being attributable to JHL has been
transferred to the reserves of the current year of JBL on & consolidated basis.




JANA CAPITAL LIMITES
CIN: U67100TZ2015PLCO33424
Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy, No./2581, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Read, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109, Tamil Nadu,
(Ali amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Further references from retevant clauses of IND AS standards as mentioned below has been considered in adopting the said treatment namety:

In accordance with Ind AS 113, Fair Value Measurement, the fair value of the Company's Non-Convertible Debentures reflects the impact of non-
performance risk, as outlined ir paragraphs 42 to 44 of the standard. Given that the debentures were derecognized and re-recognized considering
extinguishment accounting, resulting in 2 substantial modification, and are measured at Fair Value threugh Profit or Loss (FVTPL) duc to their linkage to
the investment in Jana Small Finance Bark. the fair valuation incorporates the risks associated with the Campany's reliance on the performance and
moretization of this investment.

in accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial instruments, the Company's Mon-Canvertible Debentures were derecognized and re-recognized considering
extinguishment accounting, resulting in a substantial modification, with the difference taken to the Profit and Loss Account as an exceptional item.
Given the linkage to the investment in Jana Small Finance Bank, the debentures are measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). As per
paragraphs 5.7.7 and 5.7.8 of Ind AS 109, changes in the fair value of financial liabilities are disaggregated between changes attributabte {¢ credit risk
and other changes. Since the fair value movement is primarily attributable to Asset-Specific Performance Rick, being the risk that the equity investment
may nat yield realizable value, and not credit risk, the entire fair value adjustment has been recognized in the Statement of Profit and Lass, consistent
with paragraph B5.7.15(b) of ind AS 109,

In this regard the entity had received 2 confirmation from the NCD holders indicating their agreement of the fact that the payment of Non-Convertible
Debentures (NCDs) issued by Jana Capital Limited (JCL) and Jana Holdings Limited (JHL} is dependent on the realizable value of JCL's investment in JHL
and JHL's fnvestment in Jana Small Finance Bank Limited (J5FB). Prior to distribution of the outstanding amounts the operational expenses, statutory
tiabilities, taxes and other dues may be deducted from the gross realizable value and the remaining Net Realizable Value (Principal + returns) shail be
distributed to investors on a pari passu basis in accordance with their respective definitive decuments,

Considering the aforesaid aspects the existing Mon-Convertible Debentures at amortized cost has been de-recognised and has been recognised in the
financial statements at fair value through Profit & Loss amounting to INR 250,10 crores thereby the resultant fair value gain amounting to INR 2,262.64
crores has been recognised as an exceptional item in the statement of Profit and Loss for the financial year 2024-2025.

A) Computation of Assaciate Share of Profit / Loss
in Thousands

%sh i H
JSFB Resutts are attributable to JHL
27.79% 22.54%
Particulars. 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
PEL as per IND AS of JSFB far Fy 2024.
2;‘25“ per ° r 7,67,772.32 | 1,11,19,240.79 171.098.06 | 25,06,276.87
QCl (toss) / Gain of JSFB for FY 2024-
2915( ! 1,96,778.41 7,95,515.90 43,852.07 | 1,79.309.28
f ISFB - ity and
Share of JSFG - Dther Equity an 3,13,82,191.22 | 1,81,87,615.53 1 69.93.521.31 | 40,99,488.54
Reserves
3,23,46,741.95 | 3,01,02,372.22 | 72,08,471.44 | 67.85.074.70

impairment Loss for the year ended
In thousands

Particulars Amount

Gross Investment Value at Cost as on

March 31, 2024 46,35,961.26
Less: Allowance for Impairment loss -

carried forward from last year (46,35,961.26)

Net Investment Value as on March 31,
2024 -

Share in the Profit/loss) of associates

during the year FY 2024-2025 1,71,098.06
Share in Other comprehensive Income

during the year FY 2024-2025 43,852.07
Share of Net Worth of associates from

previous years 69,93,521. 31

Total investment Value inctuding share

of Associate Profit / (Loss) ¥2,08,471.44




JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U67100TZ2015PLC0O33424

Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109,
Tamil Nadu,

(Al amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Rs. In thousands)

As at As at

Other financial assets 31-March-2025 31-March-2024
Other Receivables - 22.40
Security Deposits 3,451.97 3,400.50
Total 3,451.97 3,422.90
As at As at

Current Tax Assets 31-March-2025 31-March-2024
TDS receivable 483.93 1,15,728.65
483.93 1,15,228.65
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JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U67100TZ2015PLC033424

Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, 5ri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109,
Tamit Nadu,

(All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Rs. in thousands}

Other Non-financial assets S 3 As at As at
31-March-2025  31-March-2024

Prepaid Expenses ) : 177.00 156.40
: : ' 177.00 196.40




JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U7100TZ2015PLC0O33424
Reg. Office; 3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109,
Tamil Nadu,
{All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

{Rs. in thousands)
10 Trade Payables As at As at
31-March-2025  31-March-2024

{a) Total outstanding dues of mio enterprises and small enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of editors other than mio enterprises and srali enterprises

Based on the information available with the Company, there are no outstanding dues and payments made to any supplier of
gocds and services beyond the specified period under Mio, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 [MSMED
Act]. There is no interest payable or paid to any suppliers under the said Act.

Ageing schedule of trade payabies (Rs, In thousands)

Outstanding from the due date of payment Total
As at 31 March 2025 Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
year

Mio, smati and medium enterprises - - - . K

Otkers - - - - -

Disputed dues — MSME -

Disputed dues - Others - - . i

Outstanding from the due date of payment Total
As at 31 March 2024 Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
year

Mio, smalt and medium enterprises

Others

Disputed dues — MSME

Disputed dues — Others - B B _ R
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JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN; U67100TZZ015PLC033424

Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, 5ri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109, Tamil

Madu,
{All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Rs. in thousands)

15 Equity Share capital

(2)

(b

{<

—

As at As at
31-March-2025 31-March-2024

Authorized *

Equity Share Capital (As at 31 March 2025-Rs.3,00,00,000 {36,00,000 Equity shares at par 30,000.00 30,000.060
value of Rs.10 each}, As at 31 March 2024 : Rs.3,00,00,000 (30,00,000 Equity shares at

par value of Rs_10 each)*

Total 30,000.00 30,000.60
Issued, subsibed and paid up
Equity Share Capital (As at 31 March 2025-Rs.2,70,41,810 {27,04,181 Equity shares at par 27,041.81 27.041.81

value of Rs.10 each), (As at 31 March 2024 : Rs.2,70,41,810 (27,04,181 Equity shares at
par value of Rs.10 each)*

Total 27,041.81 27,041.81

Reconcitiation of shares outstanding at the beginning As at 31-March-2025 As at 31-March-2024

and at the end of the year Number of Amount Number of shares Amount
shares

Cutstanding at the beginning of the year 27,04,181 27,041.81 27,04,181 27,041.81

Add: Issued during the year - - . -

Outstanding at the end of the year 27,04,181 27,041.81 27,04,181 27,041.8%

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10/- each. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote
per share.

The Company declares and pays dividend on equity shares in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject
to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. The company has not
declared any dividend during the current FY 2024-25.

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the assets of the Company. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the equity shareholders.

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at 31-March-2025 As at 31-March-2024
Name of the shareholder Number of % of holding | Number of shares | % of holding in the
shares in the class class
Equity Shares

Jana Urban Foundation 11,87,746 43,92% 11,87,746 43.92%

TPG Asia VI 5F Pte Ltd 5,40,574 19.99% 5,406,574 19.99%

Caladium lnvestment Pre, Ltd 5,40,574 19.99% 5,40,574 15.99%

Narth Haven Private Equity Asia Platinum Pte Ltd 2,35,656 8.71% 2,35,656 8.711%

QRG Investments and Holdings Limited 1,72,025 6.36% 1,72,025 6.36%

Shares allotted as fully paid-up without payment being received in cash / by way of bonus shares:
The Company has not issued bonus shares or shares for consideration other than cash during the five year period immediately
preceding the reporting date.

Name of promoter* As at 31-March-2025

No. of shares
a No, of shares

at ﬂ.’le . Changes during at the end of |% of Total shares % change during the
beginning of  |the year year
the year
the year
Jana Urban Foundation 11,87,746 - 11,87,74% 43.92% 0.00%

Ramesh Ramanathan 1 - 1 0.00% 0.00%




JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CiN: U67100TZ2015PLLG33424

Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 63510%, Tamil
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(c)
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(a)

(k)

{c)

Nadu,

{All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the Consolidated firancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

{Rs. In thousands)

Name of promoter* As at 31-March-2024

Na. of shares
at the Changes during
beginning of  the year

No. of shares
at the end of

% of Totaf shares

% change during the
year

th
the year @ year
Jana Urban Foundation 11,87,686 - 11,87,746 43.92% 0.00%
Ramesh Ramanathan 1.00 - 1 0.00% 0.00%
As at As at

Cther Equity

Securities Premium Account

Opening balance

Add : Securities premium edited on share issue
Less : Premium utilized for varicus reasons
Closing balance

Statutory Reserve

Opening balance

Add: Transferred during the year

Less; Utilization on account of transfer
Closing balance

Retained Earning and Surplus/{deficit} in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Cpening balance
Add: Net Profit / {Loss) for the current year
Add : Transfer from reserves
Less: Proposed dividends
interim dividends
Transfer to Statutory Reserve
Closing balance

Other Comprehensive Income

Opening balance

Add: Net Profit/{Net Loss) for the current vear
Closing balance

Total Reserves and surplus

Nature and purpose of reserves
Securities Premium reserve

3t-March-2025

31-March-2024

1,22,54,702.48

1,22,54,702.28

1,22,54,702.28

1,22,54,702.28

39,279.92 39,279.92
27,97,512.45 -
28,36,802,38 39,279.92

(3,58,57,993.57)
1,41,86,789.66
70,%93,130.53

127,97,521.45)

(3,56,74,816.33)
(1,83,177.24)

(1,73,75,595.84)

(3,58,57,993.57)

(59,101.16) (2,38,410.45)
43,852.07 1,79,309.28
(15,249.10) (59,101.16)
(22,99,340,28)  (2,36,23,112.34)

Securities premium reserve is used tc record the premium on issue of shares, The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes
such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Statutory Reserve

in terms of Section 45-1C of the RBI Act, NBFCs are required to eate a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not less than twenty per
cent of its net profit every year. The above requirement is to give intrinsic strength to the balance sheets of the NFBCs. This reserve

could be used for purposes as stipulated by the Reserve Bank of India from time to time.

Retained Earnings

Retatned earnings are the profits/ (losses) that the Company has eamned to date, less any dividends or other distributions paid to

shareholders.




JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U67100TZ2015PL.CO33424

Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109, Tamil

Madu,
(All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Rs. In thousands)

{d} Contingent Liabilities and commitments

if

i

Contingent Liabilities As at As at
31-March-2025 31-March-2024
Claims against the NBFC not acknowledged as debt - -
Guarantees excluding financial guarantees - .
Other money for which the NBFC is contingently Liable {Note-1) . 5,24,438.24

Total . 5,24,438 24
Note-1

Other money far which the entity is contingently liable represents the difference between Cap Rate and Floor rate for each series of
non convertible debentures issued by the entity as agreed upon in the Debenture Trust Deed with the debenture holders detaited as
under:

Series L2 and P are in the nature of fixed interest rate and hence no contingent liabilities has been recognised.

Series Floor Rate Cap Rate z;ftf:rence n 31-March-2025 31-March-2024

B1 16.50% 49.00% 32.50% - 3,51,639.98

B2 16.50% 49.00% 32.50% - 1,72,798.26
Total - 5,24,438.24

Commitments - Note-1

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not -

provided for;

Uncalled Hability on shares and other investments partty paid; - -
Other comrmitments (specify nature). - -

Total

*Note-1

The Company has a process whereby periodicatly all long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. As at the period
end, the Company does not have any {ong term contracts (including derivative contracts) for which there were material foreseeable
losses.

The Cempany has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

As per the information available , the Company is not having any relationship with struck off Companies during the year.

The Company does not have any undisclosed income that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961

During the year, the Company has not traded or invested in ypto Currency or in Virtual Currency.

Penalties imposed by RB|
There has been no penalties tmposed by REI for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Previous Year: Nil).



JANA CAPITAL LIMITED

CiN: U67106TZ2015PLCO33424

Tamil Nadu,

{All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Consotidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

17 Revenue from Opetations

8

19

20

21

Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Fowers, Sy. No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Haosur, Krishnagiri- 635109,

(Rs. In thousands)

Particulars

For the year ended
31-March-2025

For the year ended
31-March-2024

Interest income (NCD's Holdings)

11,352.00

Income From Purchase of NCDs at FV

98,98,214.75

Totat - $9,09,566.73
Other Income

For th
Particulars For the year ended or the year ended

31-March-2025

31-March-2024

Interest Income

Interest income from Fixed deposits 4,747,659 604.28
Interest Income from IT Refund 1,816.%6 40.79
Interest inceme on loan advanced * - -

8,564.65 645,07
Others
Reversal of processing fee - .

- 1,12,32,514.50

Receipt on Waiving off of Loan (Principal + Interest) payable to JCL
Others Total - 1,%12,32,514.50
Total 8,564.65 1,12,33,159.56

Finance Cost

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31-March-2025 31-March-2024

Interest on debt securities 85,43,681.13 73,71,178.04
Interest on Short Term borrowings 345.21 13,734.25
Other Finance Cost charges 8,850.00 1,02,176.03

Total

85,52,876.34

74,87,088.22

Impairment on Financial Instruments

Particulars

For the year ended
31-March-2025

For the year ended
31-March-2024

Impairment of Investments in Equity Shares of Associate Entity

50,08,847.61

Total

50,08,847.61

Employee Benefit Expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31-March-2025 31-March-2024
Salaries and wages 75,794.94 24,664.20
Provision for leave encashment (Refer Note-1 below) . .
Total 25,794.94 14,664.20

Note:d

The Company has a Leave policy defined as per which employees are entitled to 21 workings days of privilege/earned leave during
a financial year, The leave shail be edited at the beginning of the financial year for existing employees as at 01st April and for
employees joined during the year the leave shall be edited on a proportionate basis.
As per the Company policy only 10 days of privilege leave from the current financial yeer can be carried forward to the next
financial year: unused privilege leaves will be lapsed. Encashment of privilege leave wilt be possible at the time of separation on

a pro rata basis.

During the reporting period, Lhe Company did not make any contributions towards Provident Fund or Gratuity. This is due to the
fact that the relevant statulory provisions were not applicable, as the Company did not have more than ten employees at any
point during the year. However, the Company continues to comply with other applicable statutory requirements, including regular

payment of Professional Tax.
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JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CiIN: U67100TZ2015PLCO33424
Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Hosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109,

Tamil Nadu,

(Al} amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2075

22 Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses

Particuiars

For the year ended
31-March-2025

For the year ended
31-March-2024

on tangible assets (Refer note 7) 135.41 66.91
on intangible assets (Refer note 8) . R
Total 135.41 66.93

CSR Expenditure

Particulars

For the year ended
31-March-2025

For the year ended
31-March-2024

Expenses towards CSR

Totat

24 Other Expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31-March-2025 31-March-2024
Rent, taxes and energy costs 10,805.28 807.60
Repairs and maintenance 62.90 135.88
Communication costs 163,29 104,76
Advertisement Expenses 523.12 295.92
Printing and stationery 57.05 37.86
Director’s fees, aliowances and expenses 4,336.50 4,484,00
Auditor’s fees and expenses (Refer below note) 1,077.9¢ 1,144.70
Cther Audit Expenses - 194.70
Legal and Professional charges 23,333.30 65,576.68
Subsiption fFees i2.10 -
Insurance 285.80 325.96
Bank Charges 156.54 17.91
Surveillance Fees - -
Travelling Expenses 299.90 109,79
Filing Fee 81.20 81.70
Internal Audit 94,40 179.80
Stamp and Franking charges -1,914.90 2,511.27
Loss on sale of Investments

Bad Debts - Loss on Waiver of Loan {Principal + Interest) to JHL .

Gther expenditure 1,058.08 2,890.35
Total 40,432.47 78,995.87

Note : The following is the break-up of Auditors remuneration (exclusive

of Goods and service tax)

For the year ended
31-March-2025

For the year ended
31-March-2024

Particutars

As auditor:

- for Audit 830.10 943.10
- for Limited review 212.40 201.60
- for Other services 33.40 -
Totat 1,077.90 1,144.70
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Reg. Office: 3rd Floor, Sri Krishna Towers, Sy. No./25B1, Krishnagiri Bye-Pass Road, Haosur East, Hosur, Krishnagiri- 635109, Tamil Nadu
(All amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

JANA CAPITAL LIMITED
CiIN: U67300TZ2015PLC0O33424

Notes to the Consclidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

31 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities (Based on RBI guidelines)

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed accerding to when they are expected to be recovered or settled,

’

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Within 12 | After 12 months Total Within 12 After 12 months Total
Assets months months
Financial assets

(a} [Cash and cash equivatents 1,29,906.26 1,29,906.26 67,841.67 67,841.67

(b} [Bank batance other than cash and
cash equivalents 7.44 7.44 7.44 7.44

(c) [investments 72,85,232.49 72,85,232.49 - - -

(d) {Other financial assets - 3,451.97 3,451.97 22.40 3,400.50 3,422.90
Total Financial assets 1,29,906.26 72,88,691.89 74,18,598.16 67,864.07 3,407.93 71,272.01
Non-Financial assets

{a) |Current tax Assets 483.93 483,93 1,15,228.65 1,15,228.65

(Y [Property, plant and equipment 329.35 329.35 329.52 329.53

() [Goodwil! on Consolidation 17,985.00 17,985.00 17,985.00 17,985.00

td) |Other intangible assets . .

(b) |Other non-financial assets 177.00 - 177.00 196,40 - 196.4¢
Total Non-financial assets 660.93 18,314.35 18,975.78 1 1,15,425.05 18,314.53 1,33,739.58
Total Assets 1,30,567.19 73,07,006.25 74,37,573.,44 | 1,83,289.12 21,722.47 2,053,011.59
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities
Financial liabilities

{a) |Payables
Trade payables

(i} total outstanding dues of
mio enterprises and small
enterprises

(&) |Pebt Securities . 95,58,409.22 95,58,409.72 - 2,37,29,168. 11 1,37,29,168.11

{c) |Other financial habilities 605.00 - 605.00 605.00 - 605.00
Total Financial liabilities 605.00 | 95,58,409.22 %5,59,014,22 605.00 2,37,29,168.11 2,37,29,773.1%
Non-Financial liabilities

(a) [Provisions - 1,093.01 1,093.01 - 1,393.83 1,393.83

{b} [Other non-financial liabilities 73,003.63 73,003.63 69,915.38 69,915.38
Total Non-financial liabilities 73,003.63 1,093.01 73,003.63 69,915.38 - 71,309.21
Equity

(a) [Equity share capital 27,041.81 27,041.81 27.041.81 27,041.81

(b) [Other equity (22,99,340.28) (22,99,340.28) (2,36,23,112.54)]  (2,36,23,112.54)
Total Equity - (22,72,298.47) (22,72,298.47) - {2,35,96,070.73)| (2,35,96,070.73)
Totat Liabilities and Equity 73,608.63 72,87,203.77 73,60,812.39 70,520.38 1,33,097.39 2,05,011.59
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